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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information (continued)
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Corporate Profile

Ay

Central China Real Estate Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “CCRE” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”, stock code: 832.HK) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 15 November 2007 as an
exempt company with limited liability, the shares of which were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 June 2008. The Company
has been granted the “First Class Qualification of Real Estate
Developer” in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC" or
“China”).

The Company has been committed to the real estate business
and the development of branded properties as its principal
activity since its establishment. Over the past 30 years, we
have continued to guide residents to new exposures in lifestyle
through our articulately crafted architectural masterpieces
in honor of our core value of “Taking Root in Central China
and Contributing to Society”. The Company is of the view that
enterprises relate to society in the same way as trees relate
to the earth. When we establish our presence in a city, we
cooperate with our local peer developers to contribute to the
local community by improving the standards of construction,
increasing tax collections for local governments and creating job
opportunities. Our relentless efforts in driving the urbanization
process and promoting the economic and social growth in Henan
Province have won the accolades of government authorities,
professionals, peers, investors, customers and our employees.
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Corporate Profile (continuea)
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The Company has always been following the corporate
mission of “providing quality living standards for the people
in Central China”, insisting on the developmental strategy of
serialization, standardization and housing industrialization. On
the concrete foundation of serialization and standardization laid
for years, the Company has progressively achieved large-scale
commercialization. The Company has always regarded customer
experience as the core of product development and continues
to optimize and upgrade its product lines. It has clearly identified
the matching relationship among land, customers and product
lines, and focused on creating a number of high-end/high-
medium end product lines such as “Modern Wisdom”, “National
Rituals”, “Modern Health”, “Oriental Elegance” and “"Modern
Chinese Style”. Meanwhile, the Company endeavors to construct
a "lianye+" mega service eco-regime by coordinating related
resources such as property, education, hotel, football, commerce
and cultural tourism, achieving an upgrade and transformation of
the Company to a new lifestyle services provider. The Company
is firmly committed to its philosophy of “providing customers
with zero-defect products and first-rated services”. In addition,
we apply concepts of scientific decision-making, management
standardization and operation professionalization in our business
management to ensure the qualification and quality of our
products and services.

In its persistent professional pursuit of premium residential
housing development over the past 30 years, the Company
has fostered a "CCRE model” based on provincial and regional
development, created a brand name well trusted for social
responsibility, groomed a high caliber management team,
given substance to the corporate philosophy of “Perseverance
for Excellence” and embarked on a “Stable and Healthy”
development cycle. Since 2019, the Company has achieved
full coverage in 122 cities on and above the prefecture level
(including 17 provincial cities, Jiyuan Demonstration Zone and
104 counties).
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Corporate Profile (continued)
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As of 30 June 2022, the Company had delivered development
projects with an accumulated aggregate gross floor area (“GFA”)
of approximately 46.85 million square meters (“sq.m.”) and
owned 192 projects under development in total, total GFA under
development of approximately 32.26 million sg.m. and land
reserves GFA of approximately 56.21 million sg.m., including
beneficially interested GFA of approximately 40.82 million sg.m.
In line with its corporate culture underpinned by “honesty,
responsibility, integrity, focus and endurance”, a state of business
featuring a high level of integration between “economic and
social benefits, material and spiritual pursuits, corporate and
staff interests, strategic objectives and execution process” is
coming into shape.

In July 2022, Fortune published the list of the top 500 Chinese
corporates. With its capabilities, the Company was placed 298th
and is the only real estate company within the twelve Henan
companies on list. In August, the Company was persistent to
its credit bottom line and successfully repaid US$500 million
of bonds, maintaining a record of zero default with financial
institutions and zero evasion with the tax authorities in the thirty
years since the Company was established. The Company adheres
to its corporate philosophy of “Perseverance for Excellence” and
its core value of “Taking Root in Central China and Contributing
to Society”. The Company remains committed to making
contributions to the development of the real estate industry and
the private economic sector, as well as the strengthening of the
nation and the prosperity of the country.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

I hereby present, on behalf of the Board, to you the business
review of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and
business prospects for the second half of the year.

Economic Environment Review

Since this year, international situation has been complex and
severe, with the evidential slowdown in global economic growth.
Numerous spreads of the pandemic within the country have
caused a certain level of impact to the stability of economic
operation. With the general trend of pandemic prevention and
control improving, and a series of policy measures to stabilize
growth showing results, the economic operation gradually
stabilized and rebounded, with a period-on-period growth of
2.5% for China’s GDP in the first half of the year. Henan province
showed a more resilient economy, with GDP growth rate of 3.1%,
exceeding the national average by 0.6 percentage points.

The real estate industry also suffers from unprecedented
difficulties, with the period-on-period growth rate of sales area,
newly commenced GFA and other core indicators dropping to
a new low in more than a decade; the market wait-and-see
sentiment is strong, for which the rate of sales decommission
slowed down significantly and the decommission cycle extended
exponentially. The TOP100 real estate companies showed a
period-on-period decline of approximately 50% in sales for the
first half of the year. The industry was under pressure of both
financing and sales declines, and corporate cash flow was
tightened to varying degrees.

In the face of industry difficulties, several special meetings
were held at the Central Government to release positive signals,
including a clear stance to prevent reaching the bottom line
of systemic risks and to support local authorities in city-by-
city policy in light of local situations. Many locations within the
country continue to enhance and adjust relevant policies to
promote the stable and healthy development of the real estate
market. The Henan province also clearly stated in the first half of
the year that further efforts shall be made to assist enterprises
to alleviate their difficulties, to maintain a stable and orderly real
estate market, and to promote the implementation of the real
estate policies in accordance with local conditions.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Under the clear situation of pandemic prevention and control
and favorable policies, the real estate industry shows signs of
gradual marginal improvement since May. In June, the area of
property sold in the country and the sales amount increased
significantly by 65.8% and 68.1% respectively compared to the
previous month.

Business Review for the First Half of the Year

The Company has always adhered to its responsibilities, not
to lie flat, and applied multiple measures at the same time as
a self-rescued “package combo”, stabilizing its fundamentals
in the face of the severe industry situation. At the beginning
of the year, on the premise of adhering to the strategic
direction, the Company implemented the business adjustment
strategy of “Do less, do small, do better”; “Turning the blade
inwards”, adjusting the organizational structure, implementing
less-hierarchical management, improving decision-making
efficiency and enhancing per capita effectiveness; leasing some
commercial projects to Wanda Commercial Management or
its connected parties, improving the asset operation efficiency
and income level; cooperating with the Henan Cultural Tourism
Investment Group CAIm XMCikRIER EEE) to revitalize the
cultural tourism assets and improve the capital utilization rate;
launching the “Summer Defense Battle” to reinforce the main
body of responsibility, achieving the goal of strengthening sales,
promoting cash collection and guaranteeing delivery to ensure
the stable operation of various indicators.

In the first half of the year, the Company achieved sales amount
of RMB14.0 billion, and sales area of 1.91 million square meters.
Major business indicators of the Company are better than the
average level in the industry, and the Company continued to
maintain the No. 1 market share in Henan Province, and further
expand its regional competitive advantage.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Under the guidance of the working guideline of “guaranteeing
delivery is guaranteeing brand”, the Company made sufficient
estimations and flexible responses, planned dynamically and
innovated work, actively promoted the resumption of work and
production, and delivery levels were far exceeding those of the
industry. In the first half of the year, the Company completed the
delivery of a total of 11,457 properties in 31 batches, maintaining
market reputation, and laying the foundation for sales and cash
collection for the second half of the year.

It is worth mentioning that the state-owned shares also provide
strong support for the sound operation of the Company. On 21
July 2022, Henan Railway Construction Investment Group (A&
HRERICEEE) officially completed its shareholding through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Henan Tongsheng Zhiye Co., Ltd.
CimERBEXABMRAT) and became the second largest
shareholder of the Company. In the future, the two parties will
integrate their brands, industries and resources advantages to
achieve synergistic integration, complementary advantages and
win-win cooperation in multiple fields.

Prospect of Work for Second Half of the Year

The long real estate industry chain has an obvious pulling effect,
which is significant for stabilizing the economy. On 28 July 2022,
the Political Bureau of the Communist Party of China Central
Committee held a meeting, stating that to stabilize the real
estate market, adhere to the positioning that houses are used
for living, not for speculation, implement policies based on local
circumstances with full use of the policy toolbox, support rigid
and improve housing demand, ensure the local government of its
responsibility, guarantee the delivery of properties and stabilize
people’s livelihood. Since this year, real estate regulation policies
have been issued for over 550 times in different locations, with
over 80 policies to stabilize the property market in over 80 cities
in July alone.

With the easing of policies, the gradual maturity of dynamic
pandemic prevention measures, the reduction of mortgage
interest rates, the introduction of measures to guarantee delivery
of properties, and the improvement of supply and demand,
confidence in the real estate industry will be gradually mended,
and be in a gradually improving state for the second half of the
year.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Looking forward, both opportunities and challenges exist for
the real estate industry. In the face of the complex and ever-
changing external environment, the Company adheres to its
established business strategy without wavering and focused on
guaranteeing the delivery of properties, sales, returns, profits
and stability and other aspects. We will continue to stay steadfast
in the Henan market with the “three aspects”, namely reputation,
craftsmanship and diligence, that CCRE has accumulated for
30 years, to ultimately achieve a smooth passage through the
industry cycle.

Maintain healthy and stable operation. In the second half
of the year, the Company will continue to firmly implement the
strategic objectives set at the beginning of the year, establish
various indicators as the baseline and focus on tackling the
difficult points to ensure a stable and healthy development
throughout the year.

Continue to accelerate cash collection. Through practices
in the first half of the year, the Company has initially formed a
frontline business-led operating structure. In the second half of
the year, we will continue to focus on frontline sales and cash
collection, and utilize operating cash flow to work backwards and
achieve our set targets.

Guarantee delivery and stabilize livelihood. Guaranteeing
delivery equals to guaranteeing brand, while guaranteeing
delivery of properties is guaranteeing people’s livelihood. The
Central Political Bureau even included guaranteeing delivery in
the meeting documents for the first time on 28 July 2022. In the
second half of the year, the Company will continue to vigorously
promote the resumption of work and production, to achieve
high standard, high quality, timely delivery, and defend product
confidence.

State-owned shares, promising future. Henan Railway
Construction Investment Group has a large amount of land
development resources and capital strength along the railway
line, while Henan Tongsheng Zhiye Co., Ltd. CAiEERIRE% A
FfR/A®]) also has long term commitment in the development
and construction of the TOD project. Both parties will synergize
their respective advantageous resources, explore and develop
cooperation in more segments with the Group in the future.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Timely debts repayment, persistent in credit bottom
line. In the face of severe industry situation, the Company
maintained the credit bottom line, and repaid the US$500 million
debt on 8 August 2022, maintaining the 30-year streak record
of zero default with financial institutions and zero evasion with
the tax authorities. It has been a difficult year for the Company,
as the industry is generally under pressure, the Company
has also recorded loss for the first time in 30 years due to
the year-on-year decline in sales, discount sales, and one-off
asset and inventories impairment. On behalf of the Company’s
management and myself, | would like to send our apologies to
all Shareholders and investors. The more difficult the situation
is, the further we go forward. The Company will always stay
value-driven and strategy-oriented, adhere to the “bottom-line
thinking”, with the brand advantages that accumulated over
the past 30 years, we will fight and work hard to achieve all set
annual tasks and targets, so as to realize the steady and long-
term development of the corporate. | believe with the effort of
every CCRE personnels, the Company will enhance its operation,
capital and profitability level in the second half of the year.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders for their trust in the Company,
choosing to trust CCRE under unprecedented changes; | would
also like to express gratitude to all our staffs for their effort and
contribution, facing the hardships alongside the Company. We
will live up to the trust, pass through the cycle, adhere to the
pursuit of long-term value.

Chairman
Wu Po Sum
16 September 2022
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Financial Highlights
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SUMMARY OF INCOME STATEMENT

W 2k 4 ik 22

For the period ended 30 June

HZ6H30H LLHARS
2022 2021 Changes
20224 20214 =)
Revenue (RMB’000) W (NR ¥ F70) 7,300,552 20,356,906 -64.1%
Gross profit (RMB'000) EH (ANRHFT) 553,955 3,637,804 -84.8%
Gross profit margin ESVIUES 7.6% 17.9% -10.3*
Gross profit from core businesses ZIEEEF
(RMB'000) (AR F 1) 451,731 3,046,300 -85.2%
Gross profit margin from ZOEBREFX
core businesses 6.4% 15.7% -9.3*
Net (loss)/profit margin 3 (B18) af=E (24.8%) 3.6% n/a 48 A
(Loss)/Profit (RMB'000) (B18) /amF)
(AR TF7T) (5,941,484) 1,025,213 n/a- %
(Loss)/Profit margin (B548) mF = (81.4%) 5.0% n/a-~ % A
(Loss)/Profit attributable to equity HHFE AR (B8
shareholders (RMB’000) wmH (AR FT) (5,605,323) 729,124 n/a-~3# F
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (BB &BF
(RMB cents) (NED) (195.07) 25.63 n/a-~7E i
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SRE#E (BB &7
(RMB cents) (AR D) (195.07) 25.54 n/as~ 4 F
Interim dividends per share SRABERE
(HK$ cents) (BW) n/a% A 14.75 n/a7~3&
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Financial Highlights (continued)

W55 4 B )

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL AR DL B
POSITION
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
7220224 1220214 Changes
6830H 12831H g
Total cash (including cash and W (BERER

cash equivalents and REEEYWUR

restricted bank deposits) ZIREIIRITER

(RMB'000) (ANR#TF ) 6,507,826 9,847,808 -33.9%
Total assets (RMB'000) wEE (ANRETT) 145,782,649 145,806,652 0.0%
Total liabilities (RMB'000) mas (ARBTFT 139,672,708 133,063,331 5.0%
Total equity (including MarEs (BIEIFEREDR)

non-controlling interests) (AE T 1)

(RMB'000) 6,109,941 12,743,321 -52.1%
Total borrowings (RMB'000) wEE (ANRE®FT) 25,790,153 21,940,013 17.5%
Net borrowings (RMB’'000) FEE (AR®TT) 19,282,327 12,092,205 59.5%
Current ratio™ TRENEEERM 100.4% 104.6% -4.2%
Liabilities to asset ratio FIRTEMFRIER D

(excluding receipts EEEERX

in advance)* 92.9% 86.4% 6.5*
Net gearing ratio@* FEELEE 315.6% 94.9% 220.7*
Cash to short-term debt ratio* REREL 0.59 1.46 -0.87*
Net asset value per share (RMB)® BREEFE

(NRHETT)©@ 2.06 4.30 -52.1%
Equity attributable to equity HEFEABMER
shareholders (RMB)® ONE- Sl 1.12 3.15 -64.4%
Notes: * change in percentage points Bz * BOLLEE
" Core business represents the sales of properties " ZLEBABYEHEE
" Three Red Lines Indicators i = RALARIE T
) Calculated based on the Group's total current assets (1 NEBNERDEERUSER
divided by the Group’s total current liabilities. N REhaEstE/He
) Calculated as set out on pages 21 to 22. ) STRIBREF2HAE21E28
(3) Calculated based on 2,964,116,120 shares issued and (3) RIENR2022F6H30H I

fully paid as at 30 June 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

5 DI 5w 8L 5

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall performance

The Group announced that the contracted sales of heavy assets
amounted to approximately RMB14,040 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 (six months ended 30 June 2021:
approximately RMB31,053 million), representing a period-on-
period decrease of approximately 54.8%. The cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits of the Group in total
amounted to approximately RMB6,508 million as at 30 June 2022
(31 December 2021: RMB9,848 million).

As at 30 June 2022, the total net borrowings was approximately
RMB19,282 million (31 December 2021:. approximately
RMB12,092 million). The Company adheres to prudent financial
principles to maintain reasonable cash holdings and borrowing
levels.

The Group continued to implement a prudent approach to
acquire land and accelerated the project construction progress
S0 as to shorten the development cycle.

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group delivered
31 property projects (six months ended 30 June 2021: 43
property projects). Besides, the Group owned 192 projects under
development for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (six months
ended 30 June 2021: 180 projects).

Due to 1) the period-on-period decline in sales as a result of the
continuing downturn of the real estate industry; 2) the decline
in delivery and decrease in revenue recognised during the
period as the COVID-19 epidemic caused delays in construction
progress; 3) the declining demand for commercial leasing and
the decrease in fair value of investment properties due to the
overall weak performance of China’s macro market; 4) the
decrease in gross profit margin as a result of the declining
average selling price of properties; and 5) the increase in
inventory impairment during the period, the Company incurred
loss attributable to the equity shareholders of approximately
RMB5,605 million for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (six
months ended 30 June 2021. profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of approximately RMB729 million).

SV 5 ol
T8l

NEE TS B E2022FE65308 LE/<E B
EEECRHERBEANARK14040ET
(BEZEZ—FB=1tHILXEB : &
AR #310.53f87T) > BILL R D 4954.8% © &
E@EMN202256830HN IR - IREEEY
EZREBTERNEEN A AR 65.08
B (RIBEZT—F+ZB=+—H ' AR
#98.48(= 7T) ©

202206 B30 FEEHBEAA AR
192820 (ZTE_—F+_RB=+—08":
HAANRME120.92E7T) c AR B RFHIER
BERAD UESSENRESFELAIREE
K o

AEBFEXRDREOBMBERRINRIE
BREBRERE  UIEEREER-

HZE20225 68308 L NERBANEEEME
RYBEEE EHEZSZZ—FB="
HIEZX@EAR : 4318) > A& B & E20224F6
BI0HIEANEENERIEE A 192@ EEZ
T —FA=+HIEAEA : 180@) o

BRNEHETEFEBEK HERLT
BOHMTBREBREEN T REREIESE 5
AR E B SR AR ; 3)REE
BREMERFEKS AXHEERTRE
REMERFEBEEERL ; AT EF
HEBTRE EFEED ; U5 HRES
BB > LU E E2022FE6 8308 LE/<1E
BARNBRESEIFTE ABGEEIENAA
R#E56.05(80 (B ZE _ T _—FA=+H
IFAREA  BRFEARGRGENAARE
7.29187T) ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PR ) im L o5 B )

As at 30 June 2022, the property sales of the Group not
recognised was approximately RMB64,269 million (six months
ended 30 June 2021: approximately RMB67,627 million) with a
corresponding gross profit of approximately RMB6,805 million
(six months ended 30 June 2021: approximately RMB10,414
million). The amount is expected to be recognised as revenue
and gross profit in the next two to three years. In addition,
the property sales of the joint ventures and associates not
recognised were approximately RMB7,428 million (six months
ended 30 June 2021: approximately RMB14,565 million) with a
corresponding gross profit of approximately RMB1,125 million
(six months ended 30 June 2021: approximately RMB2,519
million).

Revenue: The Group's revenue decreased by 64.1% from
approximately RMB20,357 million for the six months ended 30
June 2021 to approximately RMB7,301 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2022, primarily due to 1) the period-on-period
decline in sales as a result of the continuing downturn of the
real estate industry; 2) the decline in delivery and decrease in
revenue recognised during the period as the COVID-19 epidemic
caused delays in construction progress.

o Income from sales of properties: Income from
property sales decreased by 63.9% from approximately
RMB19,418 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021
to approximately RMB7,018 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 which was due to a decrease of 62.1%
in the GFA recognised from 2,663,313 sqg.m. for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 to 1,009,010 sg.m. for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 while the average selling price
(excluding underground parking spaces) decreased by 6.8%
from RMB7,013 per sg.m. for the six months ended 30 June
2021 to RMB6,535 per sg.m. for the six months ended 30
June 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

(gL R TR )

o Rental income: Income from property leasing decreased
by 21.7% from approximately RMB92 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 to approximately RMB72
million for the six months ended 30 June 2022, which was
mainly due to the weak overall macro market performance
in China and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, for
which the Group provided rental relief to certain tenants.

o Revenue from hotel operation: Revenue from hotel
operation decreased by 46.0% from approximately
RMB166 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 to
approximately RMB89 million for the six months ended 30
June 2022 which was primarily due to the rebound of the
epidemic in the period that the occupancy rate decreased
in some areas which are in a static state.

o Revenue from provision of project management
service: Revenue from provision of project management
service was derived from operation and management
services provided by the Group for light-asset projects. The
revenue amounted to approximately RMB566 million for the
six months ended 30 June 2021, which was contributed by
Central China Management Company Limited (“CCMGT")
during the five months before its spin-off on 31 May 2021.
CCMGT was independently listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 31 May
2021 (Stock Code: 9982.HK). After the spin-off, the Group
only provided project management services under legacy
contracts entered into by the Group prior to CCMGT's spin-
off for project management service income. Therefore, for
the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group's project
management service revenue was approximately RMB21
million.

Cost of sales: The Group’s cost of sales decreased by 59.6%
from approximately RMB16,719 million for the six months ended
30 June 2021 to approximately RMB6,747 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2022. The decrease in cost of sales was
due to the decrease in GFA recognised as mentioned above.

e WA WEHEEWAHEZE2021
F6H30H L/ EB A AR 0.928 7T
21, 7% E2022F FHA AR 160.72
B FEHARPEERRBET SR
IEVBS&%E‘?W%%:%;E ZiNc e

DEEHESETRE

e REBEERKEMWA I BELERA
HEZE2021FE6B30H EAREEHAR
M1 661270 L 46.0%E20224F B EA 4
AR#08ET TEHARAKEFARTZ
BIENEE > 50 & K FE WA
RARREMERAFEFE T o

e IEHEERBEKA G BEEEERKIK
ARBEXREEAKREEBEERMHEDN
SEEIERF - B E22021F6H30H
IEREA  ZWABFTREEXEBRA
8 (THRREZE)) R2021FE58318 %
FANABEB ERMA B ARES.6618
TR RBEERBRAD (REHI -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PR ) im L o5 B )

Gross profit: The Group's gross profit decreased by 84.8% from
approximately RMB3,638 million for the six months ended 30
June 2021 to approximately RMB554 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2022, while our gross profit margin decreased
by 10.3 percentage points from 17.9% for the six months ended
30 June 2021 to 7.6% for the six months ended 30 June 2022. It
was primarily because 1) properties sold at discounts last year
were delivered and recognised during the period, resulting in a
significant decrease in the overall gross profit margin; and 2) the
implementation of a focused destocking policy for apartments,
parking spaces and villas of commercial nature so as to promote
sales, which resulted in a decrease in the average selling price
of the properties delivered and a greater decrease in gross profit
margin. As a result, the overall gross profit margin of property
sales decreased from 15.7% for the six months ended 30 June
2021 to 6.4% for the six months ended 30 June 2022.

Other revenue: Other revenue decreased by 49.8% from
approximately RMB131 million for the six months ended 30 June
2021 to approximately RMB66 million for the six months ended
30 June 2022. This was primarily due to a decrease in interest
income.

Other net (losses)/income: Other net loss for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 was approximately RMB2,620 million, as
compared to other net income of approximately RMB190 million
for the same period in 2021. This was primarily due to the
increase in inventory write-down of approximately RMB1,485
million, the increase in net loss on deemed disposal and
disposal of subsidiaries of approximately RMB855 million and the
decrease in net foreign exchange gain/(loss) of approximately
RMB147 million during the period.

Selling and marketing expenses: Selling and marketing
expenses decreased by 8.4% from approximately RMB773 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 to approximately RMB708
million for the six months ended 30 June 2022, which was mainly
due to a decrease in staff costs such as sales commission of
approximately RMB93 million, offset by an increase in outbound
labor costs of approximately RMB13 million. The rate of selling
and marketing expenses on revenue increased by 5.9 percentage
points from approximately 3.8% for the six months ended 30
June 2021 to approximately 9.7% for the six months ended 30
June 2022 due to decline in revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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General and administrative expenses: general and
administrative expenses decreased by 22.0% from approximately
RMB789 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 to
approximately RMB615 million for the six months ended 30
June 2022. This was primarily due to a decrease in staff costs
of approximately RMB139 million and a decrease in hospitality,
travel and office expenses of approximately RMB20 million.
The rate of general and administration expenses on revenue
increased by 4.5 percentage points from approximately 3.9% for
the six months ended 30 June 2021 to approximately 8.4% for
the six months ended 30 June 2022 due to decline in revenue.

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables and
contract assets: Impairment losses on trade, other receivables
and contract assets increased by approximately RMB292 million
from approximately RMB35 million for the six months ended 30
June 2021 to approximately RMB327 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2022. This was mainly because the balance
of other receivables being considered as having a significant
increase in credit risk at the end of the period increased, and the
provision for expected credit losses increased as compared with
the same period in 2021.

Finance costs: finance costs increased by 1.2% from
approximately RMB464 million for the six months ended 30
June 2021 to approximately RMB470 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2022. This was mainly because 1) an increase
of approximately RMB124 million in interest expense on
borrowings; offset by 2) the forward foreign exchange contracts,
foreign exchange options and foreign exchange swap contracts
affected by the fluctuation of RMB/USD exchange rate during the
six months ended 30 June 2021 have expired in 2021, the loss
on change in fair value of derivative financial instruments for the
period decreased by approximately RMB118 million accordingly.

Share of profits less losses of associates: share of profits
of associates for the six months ended 30 June 2022 amounted
to approximately RMB3 million, representing an increase of
RMB2 million compared with share of profit of associates of
approximately RMB1 million for the same period in 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Share of profits less losses of joint ventures: share of
losses of joint ventures for the six months ended 30 June 2022
amounted to approximately RMB65 million, as compared to share
of profits of joint ventures of approximately RMB69 million for
the same period in 2021.

Net valuation (loss)/gain on investment property: A net
valuation loss of approximately RMB1,514 million on investment
properties for the six months ended 30 June 2022 was
recognised by the Group. As compared with an increase in fair
value of investment properties of approximately RMB97 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2021. This was mainly due to
the overall weak macro market performance in China, where the
demand for commercial leasing decreased and the fair value of
investment properties decreased.

Income tax: Income tax mainly comprises corporate income tax
and land appreciation tax. The Group’s income tax decreased by
76.5% from approximately RMB1,039 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 to approximately RMB245 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2022. This was mainly due to a decrease
in income tax as a result of a decrease in income from property
sales recognised during the current period.

(Loss)/Profit for the period: As a result of the foregoing, l10ss
for the period amounted to approximately RMB5,941 million for
the six months ended 30 June 2022 (for the six months ended 30
June 2021: profit for the period of RMB1,025 million).

Financial resources and utilisation: As at 30 June 2022, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits
amounted to approximately RMB6,508 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB9,848 million). Subsequent to the
reporting period, the Company resolved not to declare an interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (30 June 2021:
approximately RMB364 million in total).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Structure of Borrowings and Deposits

The Group continued to adopt a prudent principle on financial
management and centralise our funding and financial
management. Therefore, we maintained a reasonable level

B B A7 A &

75

BEFBEHEMRR EREEMN

MHEE HIEBUMEE S EFEEMNEEK
T o 1R2022F6 H30H » ZEEIRIT R EAME

of cash and borrowings. As at 30 June 2022, the repayment EMNEREHOT :
schedule of the Group’s bank and other borrowings was as
follows:
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
#2022 1120214
6830H 128318
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Repayment Schedule ETEH AR¥T T ARBETIT
Bank loans RITER
Within one year —FR 3,341,460 2,399,050
More than one year, but not —FE FBRBAME
exceeding two years 2,048,322 1,077,560
More than two years, but not MEU EERBBRE
exceeding five years 1,344,856 1,314,005
Exceeding five years Bl A E 158,600 159,000
6,893,238 4,949,615
Other loans HEmR
within one year —&FNR 2,420,400 1,201,760
More than one year, but not —F L EERBBEME
exceeding two years 149,000 319,000
More than two years, but not ML EBRBBAF
exceeding five years 1,000 1,000
2,570,400 1,521,760
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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As at As at
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
120224 1220214
6H30H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
Repayment Schedule EMEH AR¥FT AREBTT
Senior notes BREE
Within one year —FR 5,354,493 3,160,096
More than one year, but not —FEM EERBBME
exceeding two years 5,979,158 5,685,348
More than two years, but not MEUELBRBBERE
exceeding five years 4,992,864 6,623,194
16,326,515 15,468,638
Total borrowings fEE4#% 25,790,153 21,940,013
Deduct: Po
Cash and cash equivalents and BERIREEEY M
restricted bank deposits ZRHIIRITIERR (6,507,826) (9,847,808)
Net borrowings BEE 19,282,327 12,092,205
Total equity G R 6,109,941 12,743,321
Net gearing ratio (%) FEELEE%) 315.6% 94.9%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Pledge of assets: As at 30 June 2022, we had pledged
completed properties, properties under development, properties
for future development, plant and equipment, and loan deposit
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB14,371
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB8,957 million)
to secure general bank credit facilities and other loans granted
to us. We also pledged properties for sale with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB624 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB4,673 million) to secure loans granted
to joint ventures.

Capital commitment: As at 30 June 2022, we had contractual
commitments undertaken by subsidiaries, the performance
of which was underway or ready, in respect of property
development amounting to approximately RMB18,356 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB18,033 million), and we had
authorised, but not yet contracted for, a further approximately
RMB72,229 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB71,140 million) in other expenditures in respect of property
development and capital investments.

Foreign exchange risk: Our businesses are principally
conducted in RMB. The majority of our assets are denominated
in RMB. As at 30 June 2022, our major non-RMB assets and
liabilities are (i) bank deposits denominated in H.K. Dollar;
and (ii) the senior notes denominated in U.S. Dollar. We are
subject to foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than RMB.

Interest rate risk: The interest rates for a portion of our loans
were floating. Upward fluctuation in interest rates will increase
the interest cost of new and existing loans. We currently do not
use derivative instruments to hedge their interest rate risk.
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HAAEN ARM143.71 75 (2021F128 31
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REREE (FABRMER —RIBITEERM
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AR 2485 (2021128318 : YA
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FHVIE IR ©

BRI 1202268308 » I Y R
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BEENEERBT NS AREE183.56
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I.
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Market Review

1.

The Macro-economic Environment

Since 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic and the Ukraine
crisis have led to increased risks and challenges.
The complexity, severity and uncertainty of the
economic development environment in China have
increased. In the face of the exceptionally complex
and difficult situation, the CPC Central Committee led
by comrade Xi Jinping has a profound understanding
of the international and domestic situation, efficiently
coordinates pandemic prevention and control with
economic and social development, coordinates
development and security, and insists on taking the
lead in stability and seeking progress in stability. The
main economic indicators of the PRC fell deeply in
April, narrowed in May, while the economy stabilized
and rebounded in June. In the second quarter, the
PRC economy withstood the pressure and achieved
positive growth. According to preliminary estimates,
the GDP of the PRC in the first half of the year was
RMB56,264.2 billion, representing a period-on-period
increase of 2.5% at constant prices.

Since 2022, Henan has been conscientiously
implementing the spirit of the important speeches
of General Secretary Xi Jinping and the major
national decisions and deployments, insisting
on the general keynote of stability and seeking
progress in the midst of stability, acting proactively
and overcoming difficulties, focusing on stabilizing
the economy. The provincial economic operation
is basically stable, showing an overall trend of
“stabilization and improvement, accumulation and
advancement”, laying a solid foundation for the
economic development “full-year success”. With the
implementation of the Central Government's policy
of “preventing pandemics, stabilizing the economy,
and securing development”, Henan's economy has
rebounded strongly, with the province’'s GDP in
the first half of 2022 reaching RMB3,075.7 billion,
representing a period-on-period increase of 3.1% in
comparable prices.
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The Real Estate Market

In the first half of 2022, China’s real estate market
experienced unprecedented challenges due to
the continued downward pressure, lack of market
confidence and the impact of the pandemic. The
overall market supply and demand and transactions
did not show any obvious signs of recovery, and
the cumulative period-on-period growth in real
estate development investment was negative for the
first time. Amidst the severe and complex external
environment and increasing downward pressure on
the economy, “stabilizing the real estate market” is
still crucial to “stabilizing the economy”. From April
to May, various regions successively introduced
easing policies to “save the market”, and each region
optimized policies for nearly 500 times. Under the
main tone of stabilizing the real estate market, the
overall supply and demand began to show signs of
recovery, with a significant increase in June from the
previous month and a narrowing of the period-on-
period decline, showing that the market rebounded
from the bottom.

In the first half of 2022, the area of properties sold in
China amounted to 689.23 million sg.m., representing
a period-on-period decrease of 22.2%; the property
sales amounted to RMB6,607.2 billion, representing
a period-on-period decrease of 28.9%, and the total
investment in the property development in China
reached RMB6,831.4 billion, representing a period-on-
period decrease of 5.4%.
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In the first half of 2022, under the general
environment of national economic pressure and
downturn in the real estate market, the real estate
investment in Henan Province slowed down
noticeably, and the newly commenced GFA and
the sales area decreased significantly period-on-
period. Since March 2022, the national real estate
market policies have been relaxed constantly. A
number of places in Henan Province have actively
implemented the city-based policies and gradually
released the relevant regulatory policies, which have
played an important role in the recovery of the real
estate market. The signs of recovery are gradually
emerging. From January 2022 to June 2022, the area
of property sold in Henan Province amounted to
56.7065 million sg.m., representing a period-on-period
decrease of 8.9%, the property sales amounted to
RMB348.471 billion, representing a period-on-period
decrease of 17.3%; and the investment in the property
development in the province reached RMB371.336
billion, representing a period-on-period decrease of
0.4%.
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IL.

Market Outlook

1.

The Macro-economic Landscape

In the second half of 2022, in order to welcome the
victory of the Party’s 20th National Congress, the
PRC Central Government continues to adhere to
the general tone of striving for stability, continues
to improve people’s livelihood, and focuses on
stabilizing the macroeconomic situation, keeping
the economy in a reasonable range and maintaining
the general social stability. In the second half of
the year, with the rollout of normalized nucleic
acid testing, the coordination between pandemic
prevention and control and economic growth will
be more reasonable, and a package of policies to
stabilize growth will be fully released. Incremental
policies such as monetary, fiscal, real estate, domestic
demand expansion, smooth cycle, SMEs relief and
employment stabilization will continue to increase,
and economic growth will return to strength in the
third and fourth quarters.

Since this year, especially in the second quarter,
Henan Province has taken effective measures to
deal with the pandemic, and the economy has
shown stronger resilience, greater potential and
resistance to risks and shocks. In the second half
of the year, the external environment for economic
development in Henan Province remains complex
and severe, and the stable recovery of the economy
faces numerous challenges. The next step is still to
insist on the pandemic prevention and control as well
as the economic and social development, pay close
attention to stabilize the growth of a series of policy
measures, and ensure that the economic operation in
a reasonable range.
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Real Estate Market Outlook

In the second half of the year, the real estate
market still faces great challenges, and the pace of
market recovery depends on the degree of macro-
fundamental recovery, the effect of pandemic
prevention and control, and the strength of policy
optimization. The importance of “stabilizing the real
estate market” to “stabilizing the economy” has
increased, and the frequency of city-based policies
implementation may remain at a faster pace, with
room for policies on both the supply and demand
sides. With the steady recovery of the macro-
economy, the steady improvement of residents’
income, coupled with the continued emergence
of favorable policies in the real estate market, the
market’s confidence in housing purchases has been
gradually restored and the backlog of market demand
has been released, driving the steady growth of
commodity sales in the second half of the year.

With the peak period of debt repayment being over,
the pressure on real estate enterprises has been
relieved. With the introduction of systematic policies
of various cities and the greater supervision of policy
implementation by the central government, it is
expected that in the second half of the year, high-
quality leading real estate enterprises will be more
willing to seek additional land storage opportunities,
S0 as to drive the recovery of industry performance
figures from the origin. Key cities are expected to
have bottomed out and market transactions will
gradually improve.
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PROPERTY SALES PERFORMANCE

The Company actively drove property sales. As of 30 June 2022,
the contracted sales amount of heavy assets of the Company
was approximately RMB14.04 billion, and the contracted GFA of
heavy assets was approximately 1.9149 million sq.m., a period-
on-period decrease of 54.8% and 52.7% respectively. In terms of
the contracted sales amount, the market share of the Company
as of 30 June 2022 in Henan Province was 4.0%.

J7 Wb s 3 1 46 DL
RNFEIBRE R EHE > B E20224F
6B30B A ABEREEESRIHESS
HWARM140.4ET EEECRHEETR
191,498 F 5 K> BILE 7 AR/ 54.8% 0
527% e REBETE > A AT EE2022
F6HHEAEE MIBHEX%4.0%°

Contracted sales Contracted
amount GFA
BHNHESE BHNHEER
(RMB million) ('000 sg.m.)
AR¥EBEET (FFEAHK)

1H2022 1H2021 Change 1H2022 1H2021 Change

2022%F 20214 2022%F 20214
City T t¥E  E¥F 28 L¥F LFEF =)
Zhengzhou I 2,763 5,784 -52% 187 475 -61%
Kaifeng E3) 252 875 ~71% 29 120 ~76%
Luoyang &b 1,483 3,643 -59% 158 356 -56%
Pingdingshan FIBEW 330 384 -14% 53 46 15%
Anyang 20 682 2,384 ~71% 101 432 ~77%
Hebi poEE 434 769 -44% 72 124 -42%
Xinxiang WA 912 1,442 -37% 142 263 ~46%
Jiaozuo £ 382 1,375 -72% 66 197 -66%
Puyang S 796 1,434 -44% 117 250 -53%
Xuchang e 622 1,147 ~46% 119 168 -29%
Luohe BIA 319 1,195 ~73% 57 165 -65%
Sanmenxia =PIk 116 307 -62% 24 59 -59%
Shanggiu [l 1,876 2,805 -33% 310 373 -17%
Zhoukou B0 937 2,162 -57% 155 319 -51%
Zhumadian SEEE 682 2,166 -69% 116 315 -63%
Nanyang M5 515 700 -26% 75 101 -26%
Xinyang =k 518 1,598 -68% 86 222 -61%
Jiyuan R 242 442 -45% 27 45 -40%
Hainan i=1E] 179 441 -59% 21 22 -5%
Total At 14,040 31,053 -55% 1,915 4,052 -53%
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NEWLY COMMENCED PROPERTY PROJECTS

During the reporting period, the Company commenced the
construction of 12 projects in total with newly commenced GFA
of approximately 988,000 sg.m., representing a decrease of 70%
compared with that of the corresponding period of last year. The
Company adhered to determining the sales-based production to
ensure the match among supply, sales and inventory. It managed
project commencements based on the geographical distribution
of customers and estimated sales, which enabled the Group to
further enhance the competitiveness and market performance
of its products, and maintain a safe and reasonable inventory
structure.

7% 4t B 10 H A D

BREAN ARBHBI2EEESHTER
WA TERAQ8EBF IR BREAFEBRAT
[£70% A ABBRFUBEEE  BREHEEF
Ui RIBEZR DMK EHEBERETH
ITEE ARNE— P RATERELRF
INHHRF X REFRFZE2EENE
Gt

Newly

Principal commenced

use of GFA for the 1H

City Project name property (sg.m.)

faE 3

MIE®E

] HEAE TEYEERY (EARR)
Zhengzhou Junlin Grand Courtyard Bamboo Court Residential

BN BRI AR50 £ 197,245
Anyang Anyang lianye City Phase IV Wonderland Zone 1, Zone 2 Residential

25 ZHEERERMNAZE-—& "B = 150,261
Hebi Hebi Longmen No.7 Courtyard Residential

fREr EREEREPIZR SR *=E 51,297
Xinxiang Hui County Gongcheng Dongwang Residential

gl B ERE *=E 28,409
Xinxiang Xinxiang Jianye Mansion Residential

A MBRER FE 24,932
Xinxiang Xinxiang Dongjing Mansion Residential

AR #4058 & F=E 120,939
Shanggiu Art Mansion Residential

(s R F=E 67,444

Shangaiu Binhe Art Mansion Residential &
Commercial

[ BRI FTEREE 138,339
Zhoukou Taikang Jianye Mansion Residential

B0 KEEZERN £ 5,532
Zhumadian Xiping Spring Time Phase |l Residential

BEE ATEXREZH = 5,231
Zhumadian Chinoiserie Palace Phase llI Residential

BEE R =53 = 137,842
Hainan Zhonghe Jiayuan Phase |l Residential

BE FHIRE_H F=E 60,270

Total
CEl 987,741
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PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

As of 30 June 2022, the Company had 192 projects under
development with a total GFA of approximately 31,438,000
sg.m., including 24, 165 and 3 projects under development in
Zhengzhou, other cities in Henan Province and Hainan Province
respectively.

7 e s H

HZE2022568308 > A AT EREERH192
B ER AR EBM24@E Ama  EtEm
165 R EmME3E TREBERRERANS
3,143.8EF 5K o

GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEHE
W™ HEATE FEYEER (7 K)
Zhengzhou Dengfeng Songyue Mansion Residential
EB N e Y SV T= 194,554
Zhengzhou Gongyi CCRE Mall Residential
I EE PP = 37,775
Zhengzhou Gongyi Spring Time Residential
EL N BEREXRE F= 231,872
Zhengzhou Gongyi Chinoiserie Palace Residential
BB PN EERHENG = 160,870
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Financial Island Commercial
I BN & Rl B EES 838,863
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou CCRE Tihome International City Residential
EB N B 322 2 2 7 B PR O = 1,204,319
Zhengzhou Xinmi Spring Time Residential
EB N mEEXRE T= 74,639
Zhengzhou Xinmi Code One City Residential
I MBS R = 81,159
Zhengzhou Xinzheng Blue Ocean Zhengfeng Residential
EL N IR REL R F= 176,441
Zhengzhou Xinzheng Tianhui City Residential
EB N B R EE I T= 152,455
Zhengzhou Xingyang Central Garden Residential
I e ZYNEES = 178,264
Zhengzhou Zhengxi U-Town Residential
EL N B 7 Bk BRI F= 149,415
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou J18 Commercial
EB N ELYNI18 (S 594,289
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Chengyuan Residential
I ERH 5 E = 227,175
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Spring Time Residential
EL N ENEXRE F= 52,185
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEHE
W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (7 K)
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Riverside Mansion Residential
ER N BRI A B F= 252,495
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Huayuankou resettlement area Residential
(Huihua New City)
EB N FINTEEOZE& (BICHIL) = 293,154
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Blossom Garden Residential
BB PN EBINTEREE =E 576,190
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Junlin Grand Courtyard Residential
ZBN BRI B #B AR PB = 560,979
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Intelligent Square Commercial
EB N BB 151 19 [ 35 EES 230,205
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Intelligent Palace Residential
BB PN BB 1 102 /= =E 15,238
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Royal Mansion Residential
EEN BRI BE 1R T = 221,557
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Art Mansion Residential
EB N BN TSR = 352,303
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Wonderland (Harbour Zone N0.123) Residential
ZE N BN ER (B&123) = 134,829
Kaifeng Lankao CCRE Mall Residential
E=) EERER PN = 99,109
Kaifeng Lankao Red World Commercial
ESES) [BEEF AN (SES 135,312
Kaifeng Tongxu Jianye City Residential
(ES) IBETEEW = 113,712
Kaifeng Tongxu Code One City Residential
GEE) BTSSRI = 246,897
Kaifeng Kaifeng Taihe Mansion Residential
ESES) B F= 67,896
Luoyang Luanchuan Luanzhou Palace Residential
&% 881158 M T = 92,846
Luoyang Luoyang Binhelong House Residential
& & 5 78 Rl 3B I = 237,424
Luoyang Luoyang Dachengxiaoyuan Residential
1 7% B R\ F= 146,814
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEHE
W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (FHAK)
Luoyang Luoyang Dingding Palace Residential
1 7% b5 T SR T = 669,467
Luoyang Luoyang Code Two City Residential
&b 7% b5 &SR I FR = 244,474
Luoyang Luoyang Fengdu Residential
&5 &P I = 154,414
Luoyang Luoyang Technology City Residential
1 7% B R 3 F= 62,262
Luoyang Luoyang Longcheng Dongwang Residential
&b & PH BRI R & = 102,549
Luoyang Luoyang Zhongzhou Mansion Residential
-1 & % SR N FE FE 124,279
Luoyang Luoyang Honour Mansion Residential
1 &P E T = 112,199
Luoyang Yichuan Dragon Mansion Residential
&b FIBERT = 238,594
Luoyang Luoyang zhonghong City Residential
B & B HR 5L = 319,208
Luoyang Luoyang Longshang Court Residential
1 & PmEE e F= 26,637
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Spring Time Residential
TIELW TFIELUEXRE =E 240,502
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Guangming Mansion Residential
TIELW FIEWYERAR = 138,374
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Eighteen Cities Residential
TIELW FIEW A\ F= 64,518
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Honour Mansion Residential
TIELW TEUERF =E 105,813
Pingdingshan Ruzhou Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential
FIEW M EE = 42,250
Pingdingshan Wugang CCRE Mall Residential
TFIEW SR 5 Ik K ot s 29,496
Pingdingshan Wugang Forest Peninsula Residential
TIEW BRAMEE = 193,423
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEHE
W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (7 K)
Anyang Anyang Phoenix City North Bank Residential
2% 2[5 BRI I6 = F= 257,353
Anyang Anyang Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential
Z b5 25 E =E 133,332
Anyang Anyang Jianye City Residential
Z 5 2[5 2 = 509,605
Anyang Anyang Junlin Grand Courtyard Residential
2% 25 B R ARBR F= 77,830
Anyang Anyang Chinoiserie Palace North Garden Residential
25 Z b5 R 16 E =E 303,541
Anyang Anyang Sky Mansion Residential
Z 5 2R 5 = 71,078
Anyang Anyang Tonghe Palace Residential
2[5 % [ 38 A T F= 208,728
Anyang Anyang Code One City Residential
2[5 2[5 = SR = 39,042
Anyang Linzhou Jianye City Residential
Z 5 MINE ZE I = 178,176
Anyang Huaxian Honour Mansion Residential
2[5 BREN F= 78,313
Anyang Tangyin Central Garden Residential
205 vzl = YN =E 143,968
Hebi Hebi Chinoiserie Palace Residential
BeEE B BE A Y = 224,546
Hebi Hebi Code One City Residential
iSEE S EES SR FR = 92,187
Hebi Hebi Zhenyuehui Residential
BoEE BREEERINDE =E 770
Hebi Hebi Longmen No.7 Courtyard Residential
B EE BSEEREPIZR SRR e 201,303
Hebi Hebi Flower Creek Town Residential
iSEE BSEETE R /NR = 137,118
Hebi Qi County Jianye City Residential
BSEE R = 139,140
Hebi Hebi Taihe Mansion Residential
B EE B EERANAT e 121,229
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEHE
W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (7 K)
Xinxiang Beverly Manor Residential
Al ELEER S E = 94,190
Xinxiang Fengqiu Central Garden Residential
48 HEARE F=E 89,278
Xinxiang Hui County Gongcheng Dongwang Residential
48 MERR IR R = 303,765
Xinxiang Hui County Code One City Residential
Al HE RA = SR FR = 187,800
Xinxiang Weihui Spring Time Residential
48 BEERE = 206,449
Xinxiang Xinxiang Blossom Garden Residential
4B WMBIERE = 108,774
Xinxiang Xinxiang Chinoiserie Palace Residential
40 8 1 A F= 535,757
Xinxiang Changyuan Forest Peninsula Courtyard Residential
H 4 RIEZMFE L =E 40,026
Xinxiang Xinxiang lJianye Mansion Residential
4B H AR IR AT = 202,020
Xinxiang Xinxiang Honour Mansion Residential &
Commercial
48 ST FEREE 54,577
Xinxiang Xinxiang Dongjing Mansion Residential
40 3 40 SR AU F= 120,939
Jiaozuo Bo'ai Spring Time Residential
=IF BEEXRE = 191,517
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Spring Time Residential
= %= EEEXRE = 37,075
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Chinoiserie Palace Residential
FE1E R = 59,778
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Jianye Mansion Residential
EE EERERN =E 136,618
Jiaozuo Mengzhou Jianye Mansion Residential
FE1E &N T FE 110,791
Jiaozuo Wuzhi Majestic Mansion Residential
RIE Hpy R E FE 177,787
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEHE
W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (FHAK)
Jiaozuo Wuzhi Star Mall Residential
FE1E BBy 2 X ith (e 120,481
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Shuxiang Yard Residential
E1E EEESKRTF =E 110,000
Puyang Puyang Jianye New City Residential
4 RS B 2T I (e 13,013
Puyang Puyang Longcheng Residential
i EPE BRI F= 365,455
Puyang Puyang Puyuan Residential
i EFEE = 149,180
Puyang Puyang Chinoiserie Palace Residential
RS RS T A T = 237,571
Puyang Puyang Tonghe House Residential
e BERZ BT (e 40,328
Puyang Puyang Code One City Residential
RS RS = SRR = 141,559
Puyang Puyang Zhenyuehui Residential
RS HEFRERIRE = 62,572
Puyang Taigian Jianrun House Residential
i =REEENENE] F= 159,556
Puyang Puyang Sky Mansion Residential
RS PG R 2 = 222,281
Xuchang Xiangcheng CCRE Mall Residential
= EAER BNl (e 247,000
Xuchang Xuchang Pleasure Garden Residential
= FFE A% F= 225,670
Xuchang Xuchang Zhenyuehui Residential
EiR= SFERINE = 73,447
Xuchang Yanling Eco-City Residential
= B B A RE T IR (e 132,885
Xuchang Yuzhou Spring Time Residential
= BINEXRE F= 97,986
Xuchang Yuzhou Dachengxiaoyuan Residential
Eid=] BN K%/ =E 58,140
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEHE
W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (FHAK)
Xuchang Changge Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden New City Residential
= EEEEM = 77,178
Xuchang Changge Forest Eco-City Residential
Eid=] RERZ LR =E 26,215
Luohe Linying Forest Peninsula Residential
B BEERMEE = 147,622
Luohe Luohe Danjiang House Residential
2 ) SIp AN = 80,081
Luohe Luohe Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential
2 BIEEE =E 144,533
Luohe Luohe Blossom Garden Residential
ot BOATEEE (e 223,468
Luohe Luohe Xicheng Forest Peninsula Residential
byl BRI TR AR MY B = 207,954
Luohe Luohe Longhushuxiang Mansion Residential
2 BRI ERN =E 260,995
Luohe Luohe Art Mansion Residential
ot BRI R (e 229,101
Luohe Luohe Ideal City Residential
| R IR AR I F= 134,846
Sanmenxia Sanmenxia New District Forest Peninsula Residential
=PIl M@ RZMEE =E 78,748
Sanmenxia Sanmenxia Honour Mansion Residential
=PIl =PI E 7 = 70,564
Sanmenxia Yima Chinoiserie Palace Residential
=PI =S UM F= 213,509
Shanggiu Minquan Happy Place Residential
[iflas RiE=EE = 43,377
Shanggiu Shanggiu Chengyuan Residential
[5fas B ERE = 64,460
Shangagiu Shangagiu Central Garden Residential
s mEAEE F= 3,255
Shanggiu Shangaiu Eighteen Cities Residential
[Elas [z VAN 3 =E 51,332
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEHE
W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (FHAK)
Shangaiu Shangagiu Future City Residential
s & R AR F= 115,515
Shanggiu Shanggiu Art Mansion Residential
[Elas R =E 300,673
Shanggiu Sui County Shangheyuan Residential
[5fas BE R4 _EAD B = 108,649
Shangaiu Xiayi Jianye City Residential
[Z)as EEEEN = 183,254
Shanggiu Yucheng Hill Water Lake City Residential
[Elas 22 378 LI ZAAR 3k =E 338,693
Shanggiu Zhecheng Lianmeng Dongwang Residential
[ IR FE 83,747
Shangaiu Shanggiu Chinoiserie Palace Residential
s [Elaeeils; F= 147,377
Shanggiu Mingquan Long Palace Residential
[iflas R EREIT = 148,434
Shanggiu Shangaiu Jiangshan House Residential
[5fas R TWAT = 102,954
Shangaiu Shanggiu Shangheyuan Residential
s [l F= 70,982
Shanggiu Shangagiu Jianye Country Garden — Yuelong Mansion Residential
[iflas M REEE TR IR R = 282,574
Shanggiu Shangagiu Binhe Art Mansion Shangjun Residential
[Elas & B T R AR (e 138,339
Zhoukou Fugou Jianye New City Residential
AN HROB R EE I (e 34,789
Zhoukou Huaiyang CCRE Mall Residential
A Vi B B IR R 3 =E 58,159
Zhoukou Luyi Jianye City Residential
A FEE = 98,143
Zhoukou Luyi Mingdao City Residential
B FEE PR = 7,234
Zhoukou Shangshui Yangcheng Courtyard Residential
B O P 7K 5 3 £ B = 15,311
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEHE
W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (7 K)
Zhoukou Taikang Eco-City Residential
B KBS F= 59,465
Zhoukou Taikang Happy Place Residential
B O KE=ZRE = 130,194
Zhoukou Xihua Central Garden Residential
A FAELEE = 15,206
Zhoukou Xihua Jicheng Courtyard Residential
AN [EES=3 el = 30,103
Zhoukou Xiangcheng Jianye City Residential
AA TH 3% 22 25 3 =E 30,298
Zhoukou Huaiyang Binhe Courtyard Residential
A FERZ B P B = 299,027
Zhoukou Zhoukou Jianye City Residential
B B O F= 369,747
Zhoukou Zhoukou Hill Water Lake City Residential
AA JB X WL 7RG IRk =E 307,303
Zhoukou Zhoukou Chinoiserie Palace Residential
A /B Ot A = 327,113
Zhoukou Zhoukou Shiyue Mansion Residential
B B O IR R F= 35,319
Zhoukou Fugou Jianye New City Residential
B O RBEERN = 140,524
Zhoukou Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden New City Residential
A PG EEE A = 39,317
Zhoukou Zhoukou Canal Ancient Town Commercial
B B OE R A (SES 24,523
Zhoukou Zhoukou Canal Yard Residential &
Commercial
B B D& Rl BT F FEREE 79,342
Zhoukou Zhoukou Guandi Temple Residential &
Commercial
B /B O R85 A FEREE 14,896
Zhoukou Taikang Jianye Mansion Residential
B O KEEZERN = 163,210

Interim Report 2022 H1{§]1#i+% | Central China Real Estate Limited #3303 B 7 15 P2 m)

39



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEHE
W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (7 K)
Zhumadian Pingyu Central Garden Residential
B SIE TEHAEE FE 122,145
Zhumadian Suiping Jianye City Residential
SIS BT REW = 144,893
Zhumadian Suiping Forest Peninsula Residential
HEIE BEZMEE = 40,386
Zhumadian Xiping Spring Time Residential
EE AFrEXRE (e 5,232
Zhumadian Xincai CCRE Mall Residential
HEIE HE B R =E 30,169
Zhumadian Xincai Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential
B EIE wmEEE = 60,148
Zhumadian Zhengyang Jianye City Residential
EE NaFeE3i7 = 20,379
Zhumadian Zhumadian Binhelong Palace Residential
SIS BT 55 15 78 R T T = 139,231
Zhumadian Zhumadian Spring Time Residential
B EIE HEEEXE = 445,361
Zhumadian Zhumadian Chinoiserie Palace Residential
B SIE RIS EAA F= 601,382
Zhumadian Zhumadian West Lake Villa Residential
SIS SIS TR F=E 34,312
Zhumadian Zhumadian Honour Mansion Residential
B EIE EEEER = 151,330
Zhumadian Shangcai Jianye Mansion Residential
B SIE TR F= 111,003
Zhumadian Zhumadian Boshan House Residential
SIS FHRIEFELN = 131,407
Zhumadian Suiping Jianye Mansion Residential
B EIE 2R ENT = 162,998
Zhumadian Pingyu Jiangshan House Residential &
Commercial
HEIE FESTURS FEREE 96,232
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
EEER
W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (7 K)
Nanyang Nanyang Central Garden Residential
Bl Bl VNS F= 42,233
Nanyang Nanyang Longyue City Residential
Bl [ BE 1R I =E 656,741
Nanyang Nanyang Art Mansion Residential
EL A [ T 5 FE 101,098
Nanyang Xixia Central Garden Residential
Bl LN F= 13,738
Nanyang Dengzhou Qingyunli Residential &
Commercial
ElZ NS EE FEREE 124,448
Nanyang Nanyang Shilihushan Residential &
Commercial
Bl B =N FEREE 54,562
Xinyang Gushi Future City Residential
B [&] 45 7R 2R 3k = 142,146
Xinyang Huaibin County Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential
5% EBEEE = 78,150
Xinyang Huangchuan Huangguo Palace Residential
=% =P b==tET S F= 173,542
Xinyang Shangcheng Jianye City Residential
=5 726 0 2R 0 =E 73,783
Xinyang Xi County Jianye New City Residential
5% BRAEZENW = 111,825
Xinyang Xinyang Mansion Residential
=% (L1 F= 365,110
Xinyang Xinyang Jianye City Residential
=5 BRI =E 113,634
Xinyang Luoshan Jianye Mansion Residential
=% ELEZER FE 130,480
Xinyang Gushi Jianye Mansion Residential
= EliaE E N = 30,448
Xinyang Huaibin Huaihe Courtyard Residential
= BRI B F =E 130,935
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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GFA

Principal under

use of development

City Project name property (sg.m.)

TEEHE

W™ EHBE 4 TEMEER (7 K)
Xinyang Xinyang Sky Mansion Residential

&% EERE F= 79,615
Xinyang Huangchuan Dingchengfu Residential

= & )| E W =E 156,543
Jiyuan Jiyuan Spring Time Residential

R EREXE (e 98,014
Jiyuan Jiyuan Blossom Garden Residential

R EIRICEE F= 127,011
Jiyuan Jiyuan Jianye City Residential

R B R 2 S =E 332,548
Jiyuan Jiyuan Code One City Majestic Mansion Residential

R RS SRR E = 64,094
Hainan Chengmai Zhonghe Jiayuan Residential

i HBEPMRE = 80,236
Hainan Danzhou Junlin Grand Courtyard Residential

sl fEINE HB KB =E 95,372
Hainan Dongfang Jiayuan Residential

B RAE=EE = 376,637

Total
A% 31,438,421
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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P b 22 I H
B E2022F6830H AR B HAIMEEER
2T BREROBI77ABF K

PROPERTY PROJECTS DELIVERED
As of 30 June 2022, the Company had 31 projects delivered in
total, with a GFA of approximately 1,774,000 sg.m..

Principal GFA

use of delivered
City Project name property (sg.m.)

RAER
W HERE TEYRERY (FEHK)
Luoyang Luoyang Luanzhou Palace Residential
&b & B N T £ 39,763
Luoyang Luoyang Dingding Palace (Phase 3) Residential
& BEERN=18 FE 80,911
Luoyang Luoyang Longcheng Dongwang (Phase 2) Residential
&b BIGREMEE = 26,793
Luoyang Luoyang Dachengxiaoyuan (Phase 1) Residential
= & AN —HA = 74,472
Pingdingshan Wugang Forest Peninsula (Phase 5) Residential
FIEL SEHHRMFERH = 49,699
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Eighteen Cities (Phase 4) Residential
FIEL AW+ A\ = 51,955
Anyang Anyang Code One City (Phase 1) Residential
25 25 = R —HA = 81,928
Hebi Hebi Zhenyuehui (Phase 1) Residential
e BERIRE—H FE 105,062
Xinxiang Xinxiang Chinoiserie Palace Residential
EAIE At AT = 27,869
Xinxiang Changyuan Forest Peninsula Courtyard (Phase 1) Residential
EAIE i REZM+E FiR—H = 151,896
Jiaozuo Jiyuan Jianye City East Residential &
Commercial

fEIE IR R FEREE 66,683
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 2) Residential
EIE EEEAF 8 *=E 29,923
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Spring Time (Phase 2) Residential
fEIE EEEXREZH FE 17,313
Puyang Puyang Jianye New City (Phase 4) Residential
-4 T I T2 2 3T 3 T A *=E 94,585
Puyang Puyang Zhenyuehui Commercial
#R EGRIRE [HES 7,996
Xuchang Xuchang Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 3) Residential
HE FEMMF=1H *=E 57,706
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
B B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

Principal GFA
use of delivered
City Project name property (sg.m.)
RftER
m HEAE TEYEERY (EAHR)
Xuchang Xuchang Zhenyuehui (Phase 1) Residential
FE FERME—N £ 82,700
Xuchang Changge Forest Peninsula (Phase 2) Residential
Ei=! REAMFEEZH = 6,963
Xuchang Yuzhou Dachengxiaoyuan (Phase 1) Residential
FE BB INA IR/ N —HB £ 26,000
Xuchang Xiangcheng CCRE Mall (Phase 1) Residential
Ei=! EI 5 m A —H FE 33,245
Xuchang Yanling Eco-City (Phase 3) Residential
FE BEA M= £ 23,500
Shangaqiu Shanggiu Chengyuan (Phase 1) Residential
=il 5 18 B —HA *=E 117,444
Shangaiu Shangaqiu Eighteen Cities (Phase 6) Residential
[l [ i AN PN £ 102,000
Zhoukou Fugou Jianye New City (Phase 1) Residential
Ao RoEREMN—H FE 56,727
Zhumadian Xincai Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden (Phase 1) Residential
BEE MEERE—H F=E 14,913
Zhumadian Xiping Spring Time (Phase 1) Residential
BEE ATEXE—H *=E 106,560
Nanyang Nanyang Art Mansion (Phase 1) Residential
B 8 P i 5 — A1 £ 88,000
Nanyang Xixia Central Garden (Phase 1) Residential
Bl AR AEE—H FE 28,817
Nanyang Nanyang Central Garden (Phase 1) Residential
E17; mEARE—H F=E 5,489
Xinyang Huaibin County Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential
= HEEEER *=E 37,220
Xinyang Xinyang Jianye City (Phase 2) Residential
= EREER_H F=E 79,996
Total
a&t 1,774,128
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

(gL R TR )

Hotel profile

Henan Jianye Zhizun Hotel Investment Co., Ltd. GAf
EMREEZGREIEEEARRAE), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Group, is mainly responsible for
brand management, design management, engineering
management, opening preparation and operation
management for all hotel projects of the Group.
Currently, the Group has established strategic
cooperation with various well-known international
hotel management groups, such as Marriott,
InterContinental and Accor, under which five high-
end hotel projects are in operation. The five high-
end hotel projects, namely Le Méridien Zhengzhou,
Pullman Kaifeng Jianye, Holiday Inn Nanyang, Four
Points by Sheraton Luohe and Aloft Zhengzhou
Shangjie commenced operations successively
between 2011 and 2015. In addition, our own brand
hotels, namely Yanling Jianye The Mist Hot Spring
Hotel, Zhengzhou Jianye Sky Mansion, Unigue Theatre
Hotel, Xuchang Shenhou Town e Jianye Starry Hills,
Xinyang Jigongshan e Jianye Starry Hills and Xijian Inn
(EREHR) opened successively between 2018 and
2021. In addition, another four hotels under our own
brand, namely, Pingdingshan Jianye Triumph Hotel,
Zhumadian Jianye Triumph Hotel, Yunxiu Hotel, Lingi
Hotel and Wugang Jianye Starry Hotel are all under
construction. Our total investment in hotels has
reached RMB4.94 billion up to now, and the number of
hotels invested in Henan has reached 16.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Le Méridien Zhengzhou

Le Méridien Zhengzhou opened on 30 November
2013. It is the first international brand hotel focusing
on art, design and culture in central China. Adjacent
to Zhengdong New District and Zhengzhou East
Railway Station, the largest railway station in Asia,
and it is located at the intersection site of Zhengzhou
Metro, Line 3 and Line 4, it is only a 10 minutes’
and 28 minutes’ drive to Zhengzhou International
Convention and Exhibition Centre and Xinzheng
International Airport, respectively.

Located at No. 1188, Zhongzhou Avenue, Zhengzhou
City, the hotel composes a complete integrated
business district with the surrounding shopping malls,
restaurants and commercial office buildings. Modern
art elements and local features are integrated into
the design of the restaurant, guest rooms and lobby
in the hotel. The unique design and brand concept
distinguish the distinctive Le Méridien Zhengzhou.

The hotel has a total of 337 deluxe rooms and
suites, equipped with world-class facilities and a
mix of classic design and fashion elements. The
feature restaurants and bars will further enrich the
stay experience and provide splendid Chinese and
international cuisines. The fitness center combining
fitness, spa, swimming pool, yoga and jogging track,
the sizeable pillarless banquet covering an area of
approximately 800 sg.m., and 8 multi-function halls in
the hotel, are all ideal places for relaxing and hosting
events.

Address: No. 1188, Zzhongzhou Avenue (northwest
corner of the junction of Zhengbian Road
and zhongzhou Avenue), Zhengzhou City

Tel: 0371-55998888
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Aloft zhengzhou Shangjie

Aloft Zhengzhou Shangjie opened on 6 August
2011. Located on the opposite side of the District
Government of Shangjie District, Zzhengzhou City,
Henan Province, the hotel is conveniently situated,
within only 50 minutes’ and one hour’s drive from
Zhengzhou Railway Station and Zhengzhou Xinzheng
International Airport, respectively.

The 16-floor hotel has 172 stylish, fresh and fun
Aloft Cheerful Rooms (% &% ), including 8 deluxe
Cheerful Suites (4B EE) and 2 accessible Cheerful
Rooms. Besides, equipped with the 9-foot ceiling,
velvety dreaming beds, Wi-Fi Internet service, 42-inch
LCD TVs, oversized shower space with rain showers,
and fragrant specialty coffee, the 3,698 sg.m. cool
conference room and the sizeable banquet space,
countless whimsies would spark within.

Address: No. 101, Zhongxin Road, Shangjie District,
Zhengzhou (opposite to the District
Government of Shangjie District)

Tel: 0371-68136666
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Holiday Inn Nanyang

Holiday Inn Nanyang opened on 8 August 2012. It
is located in Nanyang, the ancient capital of China,
which is famous for its natural fresh air and jade
culture. Holiday Inn Nanyang is the first internationally
renowned five-star hotel in Nanyang. Covering an
area of approximately 66,700 sg.m., the hotel has a
favorable geographical location with pleasant garden
landscape and a rippling lake.

The 353 guestrooms and suites are tailor-made for
guests’ luxury and comfort experience. The 1,000
sg.m. sizeable banquet hall offers banguet services to
both local and international companies, with wireless
internet accessing to all areas of the hotel, including
the fitness center and the swimming pool. Whether
on vacation, planning a wedding or holding a meeting,
Holiday Inn Nanyang is the perfect choice for the
guests.

Address: No. 2000, Xinchen Road East, Wancheng
District, Nanyang City
Tel: 0377-60218888

Four Points by Sheraton Luohe

Four Points by Sheraton Luohe opened on 29
November 2012. It is located by the west branch
of Songshan Road, Yancheng District, Luohe City,
adjacent to Luohe International Convention and
Exhibition Centre. It is about a 10 minutes’ drive to the
downtown and Luohe Railway Station, and only a 90
minutes’ drive to Zhengzhou Xinzheng International
Airport.

The hotel has 244 warmly designed rooms, with the
only international buffet restaurant in the city, namely
The Eatery (E& %), a Chinese restaurant integrated
with traditional and new Cantonese cuisine, namely
Juweixuan (FBk#F), an indoor heated swimming pool,
sauna equipment, a fitness centre, chess rooms and a
pillarless banquet hall, which can bring guests infinite
surprises of accommodation, catering and leisure.

Address: No. 6, west branch of Songshan Road,
Yancheng District, Luohe City
Tel: 0395-2566999
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Pullman Kaifeng Jianye

Pullman Kaifeng Jianye opened on 1 November 2015.
Embraced by the rippling surface of a lake, Pullman
Kaifeng Jianye is located on the northwest side of
the ancient city walls in downtown Kaifeng, within 10
minutes’ drive from Kaifeng Railway Station and 50
minutes’ drive from Xinzheng International Airport.
The hotel covers a total GFA of 43,536 sg.m. and a
site area of approximately 58,300 sg.m., with the
vegetation within the city wall area having been
preserved.

Pullman Kaifeng Jianye offers 186 guest rooms
and is a five-star resort hotel comprising business
conference, food & beverage, accommodation,
leisure and entertainment. The hotel is equipped with
conference centre, banquet centre, all-day dining
restaurant, Chinese restaurant, featured bar, lobby
bar, executive lounge, gym, swimming pool, SPA,
yoga room, indoor golf and other facilities to provide
guests with “convenience and sense of superiority”.
The building is a post-modern architecture in Northern
Song Dynasty style, adopting wood-like exterior
finishing material to cast beautiful reflections in the
blue lakes.

Address: No. 16, Longting North Road, Longting
District, Kaifeng City
Tel: 0371-23589999
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Zhengzhou Jianye Sky Mansion

Zhengzhou Jianye Sky Mansion opened on 1 October
2018. It is located at the northwest corner of the
intersection of Dongfeng East Road and Kangning
Street in Zhengzhou City. It gathers three city
centers within 3 kilometers, namely the CBD Central
Business District, the new provincial government and
Zhengzhou East High Speed Railway Station. The hotel
covers a total GFA of 34,251.8 sg.m..

The project is featured as a high-end service
apartment of CCRE with a total of 302 sets of rooms,
ranging from bachelor apartments to four-bedroom
apartments. The apartment is equipped with all-
day dining restaurant, Japanese lzakaya, gym center,
children’s play room and other facilities providing
guests with a safe, convenient, warm and comfortable
living space.

Address: Block 9, 58 Kangning Street, Zhengzhou City
Tel: 0371-65686888

Yanling Jianye The Mist Hot Spring Hotel

Yanling Jianye The Mist Hot Spring Hotel opened on
1 February 2018. It is located at Chenhuadian Town,
Yanling County, Xuchang, Henan Province, covering an
area of 50,264 sg.m..

The hotel is a joint masterpiece of Amata Luphaiboon
and Twitee Vajrabhaya Teparkum who are both
internationally renowned architects. The hotel offers
51 guest rooms and is equipped with all-day dining
restaurant, Chinese restaurant, outdoor hot spring
and pool, indoor swimming pool and pool, SPA, gym
center, lobby bar, tea room, banquet hall and other
facilities.

Address: North side of Huadu Avenue, Chenhuadian
Town, Yanling, Xuchang City, Henan
Province

Tel: 0374-7968888
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Xuchang Shenhou Town e Jianye Starry Hills

Xuchang Shenhou Town, “Capital of Jun Porcelain
in China”, is one of the first batch of characteristic
towns in China, and the Jun Porcelain produced
during the reign of Emperor Huizong of the Northern
Song Dynasty was designated as “Treasures of the
Royal Court”. Xuchang Shenhou Town e Jianye Starry
Hills is our first Starry Hills brand theme characteristic
hotel, which opened on 1 October 2019.

Relying on the Jun Porcelain culture and historical
heritage of Shenhou Town, Xuchang Shenhou Town
e Jianye Starry Hills is committed to creating an
immersive staying experience of Jun porcelain art.
While integrating into the local area, residents have
the opportunity to personally touch the developing
sequence of Jun Porcelain by learning and making
porcelain. In addition to 30 comfortable guest rooms,
the hotel is equipped with restaurants, book bars, tea
rooms and living rooms, providing customers with a
comfortable space to empty their minds and have a
dialogue with history.

Address: Beside Dongda Primary School, Jianshe
Road, Shenhou Town, Yuzhou City, Henan
Province

Tel: 0374-8616999/0374-8618999
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Xinyang Jigongshan e Jianye Starry Hills

Jigongshan Mountain, Xinyang, one of the four
summer resorts in China, is located on the northsouth
boundary of China, and is known as “Greenness
Dividing Chu (Hubei Province) and Yu (Henan
Province)”. It is grand, magnificent and beautiful,
making it an excellent choice for sightseeing and
vacation.

Xinyang Jigongshan e Jianye Starry Hills opened
on 1 July 2020. It is located at the mountainside of
Jigongshan Mountain of Xinyang, adjacent to the
“villa-clusters of multi countries” built from the late
Qing Dynasty to the early Republic of China. The hotel
has a panoramic view of the beautiful mountains,
and provides a space for guests to have a rest and
imagination while viewing different architectural
styles and exploring history, thus interpreting the
brand idea of “living next to the stars and doing what
you want”.

The 89 guest rooms, together with restaurants,
conference rooms, shared spaces and mahjong
rooms, can meet various holiday needs of individuals,
groups, parents and children, and provide experience
of the comfortable life of viewing mountains, knowing
mountains and enjoying mountains.

Address: Beside zhongzheng Plaza, Jigongshan
Scenic Area, Shihe District, Xinyang City,
Henan Province

Tel: 0376-8658888
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Uniqgue Theatre Hotel

Zhengzhou lJianye Unique Theatre Hotel opened on
5 June 2021. The hotel has a total of 400 cozy and
tasteful guest rooms, including comfortable rooms,
exquisite rooms, family rooms and suites, two full-day
restaurants, one Chinese restaurant, gyms, Treasure
Park and foot health centre.

The hotel is located at Zhongmu County, Zhengzhou,
adjacent to Henan Drama Magic City. It takes only 10
minutes to drive from lJianye Huayi Brothers Movie
Town and International Cultural and Creative Industry
Park in Zhengzhou, and about 40 minutes’ drive from
Zhengzhou East High Speed Railway Station and
Xinzheng International Airport. It is the first theme
hotel in Jianye cultural tourism section. Henan Drama
Magic City is the first panoramic and fully immersive
drama theme park in China, which was co-developed
by CCRE and director Wang Chaoge. Therefore, the
customers will experience of “living in the drama” and
the opportunity to get a closer look at the splendid
Central China in Unique Theatre Hotel.

Address: Unique Theatre Hotel, the northeast corner
of intersection of Wenxin Road and Ping’'an
Avenue, Zhongmu County, Zhengzhou,
Henan Province

Tel: 0371-86568888
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Xifian Inn

Xijian Inn opened on 21 September 2019. The inn is
located in Taiji Street, Jianye e Huayi Brothers Film
Town Park, and belongs to the “Xijian” brand operated
by Jianye. “Xijian” comes from the Tang Dynasty
poet Liu Yuxi's work: “Suddenly hearing the arrival
of a horse, | am happy to see an old friend coming”,
meaning that when guests come here, there will
be a kind of joy like meeting an old friend, which is
also in line with the theme of “living in a movie”. The
inn is divided into four different types, namely the
Jianghu style “One Night in Jianghu”, the mountain
style “Qingshan Hou”, the Republic of China style
“Crescent Moon House”, and the opera style “West
Wing". The area of One Night in Jianghu is 760n; the
area of Qingshan Hou is 615nm; the area of Crescent
Moon House is 1,537m; the area of the West wing
is 1,840m, with a total construction area of 4,752m.
There are 67 guest rooms and 76 beds, which can
accommodate 136 people.

During daytime, customers can eat, watch operas
and visit folk customs, leaving an unforgettable
movie memory, at night, customers can stay at
the four themed inns and experience scene-based
accommodation. The 24-hour butler service brings
a unigue sense of customization to customers. The
superb hardware facilities provide home-like comfort.

Address: Jianye Huayi Brothers Movie Town at the
intersection of Wenchuang Road and
Baihua Street, Zhongmu County, Zhengzhou
City, Henan Province

Tel: 0371-62168000
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Pingdingshan Jianye Triumph Hotel and zhumadian
Jianye Triumph Hotel (Under Construction)
Pingdingshan Jianye Triumph Hotel and Zhumadian
Jianye Triumph Hotel are CCRE’'s own brand hotels,
both of which are standard hotels built by Henan
Jianye Zhizun Hotel Investment Co., Ltd.. Pingdingshan
Hotel is also the representative of our standard hotel
construction of Jianye. There are 161 guest rooms in
each of Pingdingshan and Zhumadian hotels, which
are equipped with banquet halls, all-day restaurants,
conference rooms, gyms and other service facilities to
meet the needs of business travelers. The two hotels
are expected to open in the second half of 2024.

Wugang Jianye Starry Hills Hotel (Under Construction)
Wugang Jianye Starry Hills Hotel is located at the
southwest corner of Tieshan Avenue and Wenzhou
Road. The main body of the hotel is integrated with
Baicheng Tiandi business. It has 9 floors and 87
guest rooms. The first to second floors are the hotel
lobby, and the third to ninth floors are guest rooms.
It abandons the traditional monotonous hotel space
and creates a stylish hotel public area and private
space. After going downstairs, it is the Baicheng Tiandi
Commercial Street, which meets the needs of hotel
guests for food, accommodation and transportation.
The hotel is expected to open in November 2023.

Lingi Hotel (Under Construction)

Zhengzhou lJianye Lingi Hotel is located beside
Zhengzhou Navigation Stadium, adjacent to the
super high-rise Jianye headquarters office building
and Jianye Exhibition Hall under construction. The
hotel is designed by Amata Luphaiboon, a well-
known architect and designer of Six Senses Samui on
Samui Island. The hotel draws inspiration from nature,
integrates the concepts of trees and forest shade into
architectural design, and advocates that residents
living in it enjoy relaxation through the senses like
perching in the forest, feel the process of life growth
and rest, and experience the inner nature.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The main body of the hotel is an ultra-modern low
density building with 5 floors above the ground, with
177 guest rooms, equipped with full-time restaurants,
lobby bars, outdoor bars, conference rooms, gyms,
swimming pools, etc. The hotel is committed to
interpreting the aesthetic impression and living
experience of Henan with the world-class design and
pure courtesy of Central China. The hotel is expected
to open in July 2027.

Yunxiu Hotel (Under Construction)

Zhengzhou Jianye Yunxiu Hotel is located in
Zhengzhou International Cultural and Creative
Industry Park. Designed by Oki Sato, founder of Nendo,
it is the world premiere hotel work of Nendo.

Nendo draws inspiration from Henan's characteristic
geographical and cultural elements, such as caves
and Longmen Grottoes. With the help of stacks,
shadows, hollows and layers of caves, Nendo
develops architectural textures in various areas
of the hotel, which makes the hotel full of sense
of sculpture, sense of light and shadow and three
dimension effect. When guests live in it, they will be
accompanied by wind, light and fog, so they can feel
the rich gifts of nature and start a rare journey of art
design.

The hotel has 231 guest rooms, which are equipped
with Xiu cafe, Qingfeng Chinese Restaurant, Xiuju
Japanese Restaurant, Ciao Bella Italian Restaurant, Sky
Terrace Hotel, Yunshang Swimming Fitness Center and
other sound facilities. It is a luxury art design hotel
integrating business conference, food & beverage,
accommodation, leisure and entertainment. The hotel
is expected to open in December 2024.
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Cultural tourism

Cultural tourism sector of the Group is engaged in
development and operation of property projects
for cultural tourism principally located in historic
in Henan Province, such as Zhengzhou, Kaifeng
and Luoyang. With rich history, culture and natural
resources, it tells the “Jianye story of cultural
tourism” in different styles, forms and substance
through theme park, tourist district and real scenery
performance. As of 30 June 2022, the Company
had the following projects for cultural tourism,
namely Jianye Huayi Brothers Movie Town, Unique
Henan Land of Dramas (RE/A& « B EIZIH) and
Qishengjiao in Kaifeng.

With the good performance of the cultural tourism
sector in recent years, the Company has attracted
enormous attention in China’s cultural tourism
industry and gained industrial influence greatly.
In 2021, the Company was awarded the “Top 20
China Tourism Groups 2021" in the China Tourism
Group Development Forum, ranking first in the
national tourism industry again, the only one in
Henan Province and the second time after 2020.
Henan Central China Culture Tourism Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
won the “Most Potentious Tourism Property Developer
Award” and other honors in China Entertainment
Technology and the 12th Theme Park and Attractions
Summit. The Company’'s Unique Henan Land of
Dramas project was selected as the “2021 Cultural
Tourism Integration Innovation Project”. Movie Town
was awarded the “Best Tourism Industry Innovation
Award” and other honors at the 10th China Tourism
Investment ITIA Award Ceremony.

Jianye Huayi Brothers Movie Town project is located
in International Cultural and Creative Industry
Park in Zhengzhou with a total land use scale of
approximately 600 Chinese-mu. In the form of
film sets and with an essence of historical culture
and memory of the city, the project provides an
experiential site for experiencing film culture
incorporating tour of film sets, exhibition of film
culture, film interactive games, folk and intangible
cultural heritage experience, a series of large-scale
performance, unigue cuisine and themed inns.
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The first two blocks of the project covering an area
of 163.2 Chinese-mu was grandly premiered on 21
September 2019 and put into operation, receiving
an enthusiastic market response. The project has
become the most famous site for taking photos in
Central China. Successively mentioned in special
reports of national media like People’s Daily,
Xinhua News Agency, China Central Television,
Xuexi Qiangguo (xuexi.cn), the project has received
favorable comments from all walks of life. In 2020, it
was rated as an AAAA National Tourist Attraction. As
of 30 June 2022, a total of 5.23 million tourists were
received.

Unique Henan Land of Dramas is a large-scale acting
and performance project co-developed with Wang
Chaoge (E£3#3), a famous director of real scenery
performance. With 21 theatres, the project boasts the
largest theater cluster in China. The project is located
in International Cultural and Creative Industrial Park
in Zhengzhou with a total site area of approximately
622 Chinese-mu and is also one of the Type-A Key
Construction Projects in Henan Province. Inspired
by the long-standing and rich history and culture
of Henan with innovated forms of performance,
the project aims to reveal the rich Central China
culture and the glorious Chinese culture through
the combination of several dramas with outdoor
scenes as well as functional spaces by making use
of its unique architectural space, helping people
understand the history and culture in multi-sensory
approach. The project is of great significance for
highlighting the characteristics, reshaping the style,
manifesting the spirit and contributing to cultural
confidence of Henan. In its 21 theaters of the project,
more than 30 plays have been presented by nearly
1,000 performers. The theaters in the park have a
total capacity of 10,000 people, including three main
theaters, which have a capacity of nearly 5,000
people. The total duration of a single show of all
plays is nearly 700 minutes and the total number of
performances in a single day during the peak season
is nearly 200, with a total duration of nearly 5,000
minutes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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After four years of construction, Unigue Henan
Land of Dramas held a grand opening ceremony on
5 June 2021, the day of Chinese lunar Grain in Ear.
This attracted attention nationwide. More than 2,000
entrepreneurs, cultural celebrities, partners of CCRE
and media guests from all over the country witnessed
the premiere. As of 30 June 2022, it has received more
than 700,000 audiences, nearly 3.5 million viewers.

Located at the Longting District, Kaifeng City (used
to be an Ancient Capital of Eight Dynasties), Henan
Province, Kaifeng Qishengjiao project is a culture,
tourism and leisure street which imitates the style
of Song Dynasty, featuring shopping, unique cuisine,
guest houses, entertainment, leisure, and cultural
experience. With rich tourism resources nearby,
the project enjoys obvious advantages. Adjacent
to the 2-km-long Yuhe River constructed with
our investment, the project has highlighted the
characteristics of a northern waterside city and has
successfully connected tourism resources. Since its
opening in 2014, Qishengjiao has attracted attention
from all walks of life, becoming a new spot popular
with tourists. The project is facing adjustment and
exploration to keep with the increasingly mature
tourist market. The project is currently speeding up to
upgrade. In October 2020, the project completed the
rejuvenation and upgrading. Through the collection
of 17 designer concept stores, the original Baogong
culture IR, the container Internet-famous site, the rail
steam train, the ice and snow world theme park and
other highlights, as well as the new building light
show, graffiti show and other light cultural travel
performing arts products, it realised the combination
of youth, trend and classicality, and created a new
image of the commercial street combining “art +
trend + culture + architecture + space + creativity +
aesthetics”.
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Green House

CCRE's green houses are main body of the
establishment and operation of CCRE's modern
agricultural projects. As at the end of the reporting
period, the Company had four green houses
completed and in operation, namely Yanling Jianye
Green House, Hebi Jianye Green House, Yichuan
Jianye Green House and Zhoukou Jianye Green House;
one green house was under-development, namely
Nanyang Jianye Green House.

Yanling Jianye Green House

Yanling Jianye Green House is located in Yanling
County, Xuchang City, less than 100 km from
Zhengzhou City, with a site area of over 5,000
Chinese-mu. The project is equipped with intelligent
gutter-connected greenhouse, multi-functional
exhibition hall, technology research center and
culture room for cut flowers as well as 3,000
Chinese-mu eco-tree seedlings, endeavouring to
build a modern agricultural countryside complex
zone concerning six highlights of “efficient
agriculture, agritourism, cultural creativity agriculture,
demonstration and experience agriculture, science
popularisation agriculture, and healthcare and
wellbeing improvement agriculture”.

In the first half of 2022, the Squirrel Land project
of Yanling Jianye Green House has launched. In the
first half of the year, more than 200,000 visitors were
received, including provincial and municipal leaders,
domestic and foreign experts, scholars, construction
owners, members of the “Jianye Junlin Club”, and
tourists from within and outside the province.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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In recent years, Yanling Jianye Green House has
been awarded the National 4A Grade Tourist
Attractions and the “2019-2021 Provincial Key Leading
Enterprise of Agricultural Industrialisation”; in the
first half of 2021, the cucumber variety “Jianye No.
1" independently developed by Yanling Jianye Green
House was awarded the registration certificate
of “Non-major Crop Species” by the Ministry of
Agriculture and Rural Affairs, and the plague of
“Natural Ecological Plate” by Xuchang Education
Bureau; it participated in the “Facility Flower and Tree
Industry Technology Innovation Strategic Alliance in
Henan Province” by Henan Provincial Department
of Science and Technology; and the Magnolia Tent
Campground was awarded the "Recommended
Campground in Henan Province”.

Hebi Jianye Green House

Hebi Jianye Green House is located at the urban-rural
integration demonstration zone in Hebi City with a
total site area of approximately 4,450 Chinese-mu.
It is a countryside complex zone covering modern
agriculture, leisure and tourism, and rural community.
At present, Hebi Jianye Green House is equipped
with six functional areas, namely, welcome area, folk
culture experience area, efficient agriculture tourist
area, farming culture experience area, waterside
ecological sightseeing area, and farming, forestry and
breed demonstration area, of which, 60,000 sq.m. of
13 intelligent gutter-connected greenhouses, 20,000
sg.m. of Qishui Biyu Lake, colourful flower field and
wedding lawn, 150 Chinese-mu of eastern flower
area, as well as 4,000 Chinese-mu of ecological
conservancy belt and picking garden have been open
to the public. Hebi Jianye Foodcourt has also been put
into use. The project also cooperated with Chenzhai
Flower Group, a China “Top 3 Enterprises” in the floral
industry and introduced professional service team
of Chenzhai Flower Group, with a view to building a
flower trading center in North Henan Province.
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In the first half of 2022, Hebi Jianye Green House
introduced the off-road kart project and welcomed
more than 300,000 visitors, including government
leaders, leaders of the Group, Jianye property owners,
social organisations and students. In the first half
of the year, Hebi Jianye Green House was selected
into the “2022 5G Project Library of Henan Province”
and “Key Project Library of Henan Province's Digital
Transformation” by the Henan Provincial Department
of Industry and Information Technology; and was
successively rated as the “Hebi Municipal Government
and the Hebi Urban-Rural Integration Demonstration
Zone. “Advanced Unit for Building Harmonious
Labor Relations in Hebi City”, “Advanced Unit for
Employment Absorption in Hebi City”, “Urban-Rural
Integration Demonstration Zone Party Construction
Advanced Unit in Hebi City” and other honorary titles,
and won the “Urban-Rural Integration Demonstration
Zone for Open Development Contribution Award in
Hebi City”.

Yichuan Jianye Green House

Yichuan Jianye Green House is located at North of
Zhangyao Village, Jiangzuo Town, Yichuan County,
Luoyang City, with approximately 6,725 Chinese-mu
and total investment amount of approximately RMB2
billion. The overall positioning strategy of the project
is a countryside complex concerning six highlights
of “modern agriculture, ecological leisure, cultural
creativity, experience center, science popularisation
and healthcare”, with maintaining sustainable
development for protecting ecological environment
as its basis and with development strategy focusing
on “agricultural + cultural tourism + healthy”, and
with local characteristics of “demonstration zone
of modern agricultural complex + ecological culture
protection + picturesque village + Jianye foodcourt”.
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By the end of the reporting period, the construction
of phase | of the modern agricultural demonstration
zone had been completed, which was equipped with
a number of high-specification agricultural facilities
such as 11,000 sg.m. of high-standard intelligent
greenhouses, plant factories, cave dwellings for
fungus growing, 16.3km-long park roads, 200
Chinese-mu dropper fields, 70,000 sg.m. overflow
dam for irrigation and water storage, etc.. In addition,
a number of leisure and entertainment facilities
had been completed and put into use, including
Yaji Lakeside Restaurant, Cave Dwelling Experience
Residence, Forest Valley Natural Restaurant &
Bar, Meng Chong Paradise, Children’s Playground,
Fruit and Vegetable Picking Experience Garden,
Forest Leisure Area, Xingkongli-Caravans Camp,
Guanshanxu-Weijing Restaurant, Pastoral Hot Pot
Restaurant as well as Research and Learning Space.

In the first half of 2022, Yichuan Jianye Green House
launched investment formats such as physical
fitness park, glass water slide, UTV all-terrain off-
road vehicle, and small store in the starry sky, and
held more than a dozen operation activities such as
“Live up to the Springtime, Pick up the Fun” spring
events, city romance program, wild growth summer
camp, graduation travel season package, etc., and
received more than 120,000 visitors in total. In the
first half of the year, Yichuan Jianye Green House was
awarded “Henan University of Science and Technology
Outstanding Agriculture and Forestry Talent Education
Base” and “Yichuan County Study Tour Demonstration
Site”; and Xingkongli-Caravans Camp was selected
as "Recommended List of Campgrounds in Henan
Province”.
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Zhoukou Jianye Green House

Zhoukou Jianye Green House is located on the
banks of the old canal in the urban-rural integration
demonstration zone in Xuwan Village, Xuwan
Township, Zhoukou City with a site area of more than
6,000 Chinese-mu and a planned total investment
of RMB3 billion. The project covers modern
ecoagriculture, old canal reconstruction and urban
wetland restoration, leisure experience, cultural
tourism, health and elderly care, etc. and integrates
high-end flower, fruit and vegetable production,
fine seedling and flower cultivation, culture mining
of old canal six centuries-old shipping ferry,
experience of special diet in Central Plains, urban
wetland and riverside landscape belt along the old
canal, folk wedding celebration photography base,
etc. with a view to forming an urban countryside
complex with an international leading and domestic
first-class modern agricultural industry chain
integrating “research and development, production,
demonstration and experience”. Relying on the
construction of the timehonored old canal, the House
aims at resuming the prosperity of the old canal
as the artery of water transport in the Ming and
Qing Dynasties, so that tourists can experience the
profound history and culture of the ancient Zhoukou
there, reminding their memories for the canal, filling
the market gaps in tourism, vacation and recreation
in Zhoukou and meeting the recreational tourism
demands of residents during weekends and nighttime.

Projects completed and put into operation as at
the end of the reporting period: 1) the office and
accommodation area of 6,000 sg.m.; 2) the intelligent
gutter-connected greenhouse of 36,000 sq.m.; 3) the
core landscape demonstration area of 200,000 sg.m.;
4) the Tongle Valley Parent Child Paradise of 20,000
sg.m.; 5) the experience agriculture demonstration
park of 60 Chinese-mu; 6) Jianye foodcourt of 5,200
sg.m., 7) modern and technical agriculture exhibition
hall of 5,000 sg.m.; 8 comprehensive service center
of 7,500 sg.m.; 9) Kart Club of 5,000 square meters;
10) Equestrian Club of 20,000 sg.m. and 11) planting
area of seedlings, fruit trees and lawns has achieved
over 3,000 Chinese-mu.
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In the first half of 2022, Zhoukou Jianye Green House
received more than 540,000 tourists, including nearly
1,200 provincial and municipal leaders, experts and
scholars in relevant fields at home and abroad,
nearly 30,000 tourism teams, and established long-
term and stable cooperative relations with various
sports associations, wedding associations, expansion
training institutions, research and education
institutions. In February 2022, Zhoukou Jianye
Green House was rated as “2021 Advanced Unit
of Key Construction in Zhoukou City” and selected
as “Recommended List of Campgrounds in Henan
Province”.

Nanyang Jianye Green House

Nanyang lianye Green House is located at the north
of Wolong District, Nanyang City, leaning on Dushan
Mountain to the west and facing Yong River to the
east, about 1.8 kilometers away from the direct line
of Baihe River. The project is located in a superior
transportation area, with Shangnan Expressway
to the north, Provincial Road 234 to the west and
Kongming North Road to the east. With a total area of
about 4,800 Chinese-mu and a planned investment
of RMB2 billion, it is the fifth idyllic complex project
of our Group. The project combines the characteristic
culture of Nanyang, with the China rose, mugwort and
unique jade industry as the support, forming a new
mode of “agriculture-travel-production” closedloop
development, and is committed to creating an
agricultural field complex project integrating
agricultural demonstration, village revitalization,
ecological leisure, suburban tourism, health and
wellness, cultural entertainment, etc. After the
completion of the project, it will directly and indirectly
promote the employment of nearly 10,000 people, and
will develop into a special agricultural industrial park
in southwest Henan, a demonstration area of rural
revitalization in southwest Henan, and a research and
experience base of Dushan jade culture in Nanyang,
and strive to build a provincial or even national-level
demonstration project of idyllic complex.
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The construction of the project started on 29
September 2021. The core function space in the park
is scheduled to open for business on 1 October 2022
and the construction is divided into two phases.

Phase I. Activation period (2021-2022): Pulling
framework, creating environment and building
platform.

The project will focus on building a technology
demonstration area, and will quickly start the
development of the park with the images of
“intelligent agriculture center, Jianye Cafeteria,
Dushan jade culture study base, rural revitalization
lecture hall, emerging vocational farmer training
center, 5C grade RV camping site, etc.” to build the
confidence of enterprises to invest. By introducing
the mature IP of the lJianye, the project of “Smart
Agriculture Center/Construction Industry Cafeteria”
can quickly attract people. Preliminary land
preparation work in the park to be completed, and the
construction of roads and infrastructure around the
core area to be improved.

Phase II: Mature stage (2023-2025): Excellent
supporting facilities, fine living and strong services.

The project will gradually develop the medical and
health zone and intelligent agriculture zone; basically
settle the construction of roads and infrastructures in
the park area and refine the overall spatial landscape
appearance. Guihua Village and Da Chenzhuang
Village Revitalization Demonstration Area will be
developed. And further optimization, implantation
of highly creative agricultural experience tourism
projects and supporting facilities, establishment of
the park's creative image, attracting popularity, and
becoming a highly well-known domestic destination
for special rural tourism.
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III. LAND RESERVES o R4
During the reporting period, the Group acquired land with a REHAR AEEBBBREMERE
site area of approximately 266,000 sq.m. through tendering, BEER T 1 4926.688 F J5 K > 7 1 4
auction and listing as well as equity cooperation. It had BIREmMEAS8.68 F 75 K o & F£2022
newly added land reserves with a GFA of approximately F6HH AR B HEE L HEERE
886,000 sg.m.. As of 30 June 2022, the Company had land HEAS5,0378F A K HP R EE
reserves with a GFA of approximately 50.37 million sg.m., HEFE493,6558 F 5 K o
including attributable GFA of approximately 36.55 million
sq.m..
1. Land Tendering, Auction and Listing 1. i

On 6 April 2022, the Group acquired the land use
right of a land parcel (Zzhengzhengdongchu No. [2022]
1) located at the north of Zhengzhou Nongyedonglu
and east of Dixiu Street, in tendering (listing) for
sale process held by Zhengzhou Natural Resources
and Planning Bureau (B8N BAERMREF) for
transfer of state-owned construction land use rights
with RMB74 million. Zhengzhengdongchu No. [2022]
1 land parcel has a site area of 5,030 sg.m., with a
mandatory detailed planned plot ratio of 1.5.

On 13 April 2022, the Group successfully acquired the
land use right of a land parcel (Yonggua 2018-53-1)
located in Yongcheng City, Shanggiu City from Houling
Road to the east, Zhongyuan Road to the west,
Shuanghu Avenue to the south and College Road to
the north in tendering (listing) for sale process held
by Land Use Right Online Trading System in Henan
Province for transfer of state-owned construction
land use rights with RMB188.51 million. No. 2018-53-
1 land parcel has a site area of 69,120 sq.m., with a
mandatory detailed planned plot ratio of 1.8.
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2. Equity Cooperation 2. HESTE
As at 30 June 2022, the Group acquired three land HE2022F 68300 AEBFER
parcels with a total site area of 192,074 sg.m. in BESEERUREE -BEEIE
Shanggiu City, Zhumadian City and other cities by way EMH M EE3TR ) T HAEEE
of equity cooperation. 192,074 753K ©
3. Distribution of Land Reserves 3. LIEkeE o
(1) Distribution of the Company'’s land (1) AL EHBELES
reserves by development status i
As at 30 June 2022, the distribution of the B E2022%6830H > &R
Company's land reserves by development status Bl M EERERE DM
is set out in the table below: WHk:

37.59% 62.41%
Held for future development Under development
RIS T2
(2) Distribution of the company'’s land (2) ZERELHMGEEE LG
reserves by land use right certificates Vil
As at 30 June 2022, the distribution of the HE202256H830H AR
company’s land reserves by land use right B 4 it 5E B IR AR
certificates is set out in the table below: METHR:
3.67% IO
W“_ Land use rngt certificates granted
certificates not yet granted B e
SRR £ 05
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(3) Distribution of the Company’s land
reserves by property types
As at 30 June 2022, the distribution of the

Company’s land reserves by property types is
set out in the table below:

Commercial

[EES
0.61%

65.50%

(3) ZFRELMHEEERYEEE
b
B E202286830H &2
Bl ERYEEE
DR TR:

Hotel Residential

BIE
25.77%

(4) Distribution of the Company’s land
reserves by cities

As at 30 June 2022, the distribution of the
Company’s land reserves by cities is set out in
the table below:

@ Jiyuan %R 1.85%

FE

(4) ZRELMHFEEEBTD M

B E202256830H &R
EEZWH I MEHEE TR

@ Zhengzhou 2841l 24.65%

@ Hebi #8582 2.45%
@ Anyang %15 5.54%

@ Xuchang & 3.75% /
© Puyang k5 3.95% /
@ Xinxiang 45 6.09% /
@ Hainan 5@ 1.12%
© Jiaozuo £ 1E 3.09%
@ Luoyang 3BE5 8.63%
@ Zhoukou B 7.59%
@ sanmenxia =FIUE 1.46%
@ Shangqiu B 9.09% \ / @ Zhumadian ELE/E 5.79%
\ / @ Xinyang 555 4.18%
i 3 o,
Kaifeng B} 2.15% 7 P
yang

@ Pingdingshan FI&LL 2.70%

@ Luohe ’857 3.59%
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PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
1. Product Development and Serialisation,
Standardisation and Commercialisation

The Company has always been following the corporate
mission of “providing quality living standards for the
people in Central China”, insisting on the developmental
strategy of serialisation, standardisation and housing
industrialization, and has progressively achieved large-scale
commercialisation on a concrete foundation of serialization
and standardisation which the Company had laid for years.
The Company always regards customer experience as the
core of product development and continues to optimize
and upgrade its product lines. It has clearly defined the
logic of “land-customer-product line”, focusing on creating
a number of high-end/high-medium end product lines such
as "Modern Wisdom”, “National Rituals”, “Modern Health”,
“Oriental Elegance” and “Modern Chinese Style”.

The Company has for long adhered to the strategy
of housing industrialization, vigorously promoted the
transformation and upgrading of the industry, and
implemented the development and application of housing
industrialization and other technologies in projects.
Based on the accumulation of product serialization,
component standardization, and design modulization,
the Company have been developing innovative standards
and establishing a full-chain product design system.
Through the promotion of product map standardization,
the product will be transformed from a single project and
single city design approach to regional and provincial
design integration. Based on the strategy of product
map, the product line will be serialized, standardized and
industrialized according to the mode of the whole industry
chain, and the barriers will be opened from the “positioning
end, product end and production end” to realize the
product upgrade of the whole industry chain.
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Customized Design

For the purpose of increasing living quality, the Company
launches the Junlin Grand Courtyard product based
on custom development. The core philosophy of this
project is to start from customer demand, backed by
apartment design, architectural style, landscape design,
supporting facilities, elevator configuration, decoration
style, decoration standards, kitchen and electrical parts,
bathroom parts, and property services, breaking the
stereotyped design model of property development, and
leading housing products into the epoch of customisation
and individualisation. Based on Bamboo Garden (f738),
Plum Garden in Beilong Lake Junlin Grand Courtyard, the
Company is innovating the custom models continuously,
and has updated a series of product custom models,
like Pine Garden in Zhengzhou Beilong Lake Junlin Grand
Courtyard, Laojie Rance Junlin Grand Courtyard.

Fully Decorated House

The research of fully decorated house relied on the strong
integrated strength and years of in-depth strategic forward-
looking of the Company. Through survey and analysis of
local culture and customer demand, in-depth research on
the living habits of Central Chinese people, the Company
has achieved “localisation + modularisation + refinement”
of the fully decorated house system, offering high quality
residential solutions for owners, with greatest workmanship
and sincerity. Currently, the Company has completed
the design and implementation of some projects, like
Zhengzhou Beilong Lake Junlin Grand Courtyard, Xinyang
Sky Mansion and Xinxiang Xinfei Jianye Mansion.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Featured Complex

During the reporting period, the Company had higher
requirements for urban development planning. Based on
Luoshen Plaza project, the Company wanted to explore
new planning models, hoped that through street block-
level developments, it could motivate all advantageous
resources from all business segments to join in urban
development, and along with urban growth, there would
be a full industry chain upgrading from development,
construction to operation, as well as a upgrading of roles
and missions. As the orderly continuum, supplement and
guarantee of block-level developments, this exploration
would help the Group to transform its role as urban
operator, planning for mid-long term planning strategies,
aiming to erect a better living platform for owners, giving
an energetic block to the city operation, equipped with
traffic, education, medicare and commercial facilities,
offering the owners with peaceful life and prosperous city.

Waste and Emission Reduction

In active response to the national “carbon neutral” and
“carbon peak” policies, in order to promote environment-
friendly construction business and promote low-carbon
living culture, the Company explores various energy-
saving technologies in accordance with the current
national regulations and standards, and fully improves the
environmental protection and energy-saving efficiency
of residential projects. Meanwhile, the Company actively
promotes the housing industrialisation and the fully
decorated houses development in Henan Province,
researches new technologies or new measures, and
improves the effectiveness of emission reduction and
waste reduction.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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CUSTOMER SERVICE AND CUSTOMER RELATIONS
INTERIM REPORT

In 2022, the thirtieth year since CCRE was founded, CCRE has
further upgraded its services and developed the service system
4.0. With artificial intelligence technology as technological
support and the mega service regime as the platform, the
Company creates an all rounded, complete service system
to provide quality living standards for the people in the Great
Central China.

CCRE's service system 4.0 aims to provide an any format, any
time, one-stop, and one-on-one brand-new service experience,
hence create a new form of lifestyle by collecting and combining
CCRE’s 30 years of service advantages and internal and
external resources. The Company sets its eyes on a city level
service interface and CCRE's community level service unit to
construct the “Happiness Butler” service center with 6 major
service regimes, namely targeted, interests, customization, life,
technology, and neighborhood, and 13 service contents.

During the reporting period, the Company continue to carry out
the innovative “Improvement and Enhancement” campaign (3 =%
178)) and proceed to “polish the jades, upgrade the community
(ERBE tt&F4k)". Through a series of "hardware
polishing and service polishing” and a series of activities such
as “Hardware Polishing and Upgrade Operation (BB 4 FH4R1T
&))", "Community Co-construction Project ((t &t A5tE)) ",
“Spring Breeze Communion Symposium (FE R E3E) " and
“Spring Breeze Community Hundred Family Banquet (ER &5
K E)", the Company has connected and strengthened the bond
of the interesting, warm, and energetic neighborhood. Together
we explore the beautiful lifestyle of community and create
more possibilities for a happy community life. The Company has
integrated multiple business segments and established a unified
400 customer service system. Through unified 400 numbers,
unified background management system, unified user perception
interface, unified data precipitation and centralized management
and tailor-made customization services, the Company has also
created the 4009617777 all-format service command platform to
further improve the customers service experience; the Company
has continued to promote normalization of the “No delay (&R
A#E) " policy. By improving the 400 customer complaint handling
process, the Company has implemented the “Weekly ranking,
monthly report” mechanism is in motion, introduced measures
such as material risk pull through early warning system,
customer complaint risk investigation at critical time points
and dedicated delivery risk monitor and control, and promoted
fast response and efficient handling of customer complaints;
the Company has also bettered the delivery management
system. By perfecting the delivery system, pre-controlling
delivery risk, setting delivery goals, and empowering the delivery
business to improve delivery management, the Company has
delivered a total of 11,457 properties in 31 batches during the
reporting period, in which 2,106 properties in 8 batches were
delivered early, winning market reputation and property owners’
recognition.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
B B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

COMMENCEMENT PLAN
In the second half of 2022, the Company plans to commence
construction of 36 projects with a GFA of approximately

2,188,000 sg.m..

BH L 5H
20226 T4 > K AT S EIH B36EEE B
TR BREENA2188BES K.

Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
1 HE%E FTEFEBHER EEBER
(sg.m.)
(FFHAK)
Zhengzhou Chengyuan (Phase 3) Residential
BB PN BE=5 = 280,000
Zhengzhou Jianye 18 (Phase 4) Residential
I fe e Ero il Pt = 218,000
Luoyang Luoyang Dachengxiaoyuan (Phase 3) Residential
&5 7% B Kk \BE = HR F=E 15,670
Luoyang Yichuan Jianye Dragon Mansion (Phase 1) Residential
&5 RINEERN—H = 9,982
Luoyang Luoyang Jianye Code Two City (Phase 4) Residential
& B FEESR I Y AR = 48,000
Anyang Anyang Chinoiserie Palace North Garden Commercial
2[5 ZiE It E EES 1,739
Anyang Anyang Jianye City Wonderland (Phase 1) Residential
Z b5 ZIFREREZIR—&E F= 23,583
Xinxiang Xinxiang lJianye Dongjing Mansion Residential
4B B E RAUN FE 87,264
Xinxiang Xinxiang Xinfei Jianye Mansion Residential
40 AR R IR ZE T F=E 176,489
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Xinrui Mansion Residential
=X REF IR T = 152,587
Puyang Jianye Sky Mansion (Phase 2) Residential
RS B e RE T FE 185,176
Xuchang Xuchang zhenyuehui (Phase 2) Residential
& FERIRE —HA F=E 24,047
Xuchang Changge Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential
New City (Phase 2)
e REEEEZH Es 27,696
Xuchang Changge Forest Peninsula (Phase 2) Residential
Fa RE/RM¥EH FE 19,206
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
W™ EHBE 4 FEIERHER BEERE
(sg.m.)
(F7K)
Luohe Luohe Jianye Changjian Dream City (Phase 1) Residential
2 B E SRR —HA = 13,194
Luohe Luohe Jianye Longhushuxiang Mansion Residential
-9t BARERNEDH Es 8,994
Luohe Luohe Jianye Blossom Garden Residential
| B EETEEE F=E 17,045
Shanggiu Yongcheng zhongyuan Road Project Residential &
Commercial
s K Ik R 2R 18 B FEREE 123,282
Shanggiu Yongcheng Lianmeng Dongwang Residential &
Commercial
[Z)as K I Bk B B 22 FTEREE 142,452
Zhoukou Canal Courtyard (Phase 2) Residential
B O b 8 = 9,067
Zhoukou Zhoukou Guandi Temple East Land Lot Commercial
A B [ R =5 BA 3R 1 3 [EES 32,713
Zhoukou Huaiyang Binhe North Courtyard (Phase 2) Residential
AN VB & A e 7 36 Bt — B T= 85,038
Zhoukou Zhoukou Hill Water Lake City (Phase 1) Residential
AA J& [ LWL 7K 8 3k — HA = 31,266
Zhoukou Zhoukou Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 3) Residential
A /B O A FT = A F=E 63,468
Zhumadian Pingyu Jianye Jiangshan House Residential
SEIE THEEFETIR T= 24,083
Zhumadian Suiping Jianye Mansion Residential
SIS BT EER FE 11,873
Zhumadian Shangcai Jianye Mansion Residential
HEIE EEBEER T=E 30,000
Nanyang Nanyang Binhelong House (Phase 1) Residential
B b5 B I I Y — HA T= 150,000
Nanyang Rural Countryside Complex Commercial
Bl HE4 &S [EES 10,400
Nanyang Xixia Laojie Ridge Residential
EL 75 E 5 58 F=E 54,000

Interim Report 2022 H1{§]1#i+% | Central China Real Estate Limited #3303 B 7 15 P2 m)

75



76

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
B B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
b7 1 EHBE 4 FTEEBHER BEERE
(sg.m.)
(F7HK)
Xinyang Huangchuan Huangguo Palace (Phase 1) Residential
B B =BT —HA = 8,496
Xinyang Luoshan Jianye Mansion (Phase 1) Residential
= BULEEN—H e 37,079
Xinyang Luoshan Jianye Mansion (Phase 1) Commercial
= wmULEEN—H [EES 1,075
Xinyang Huaihe Courtyard (Phase 1) Residential
&% VA B F — B F= 35,115
Xinyang Jianye Sky Mansion Residential
&% BEXRHE F=E 10,926
Xinyang Huangchuan Dingcheng Mansion Residential
= & )| E W T= 18,841
Total
=5 2,187,846
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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In the second half of 2022, the Company plans to deliver 75
projects in total with a GFA of approximately 7,737,000 sqg.m..

2022F T HF A AT FEHATHEEREER
> BREBNR/773TEFH Ko

Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
wh HE % TEEEEY BEAER
(sq.m.)
(FAK)
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Art Mansion (Phase 1) Residential
= 3690 7 52— HA = 158,527
Zhengzhou Gongyi Spring Time Residential
ZB I BRERE £ 196,222
Zhengzhou Dengfeng Songyue Mansion (Phase 2) Residential
ZB I BEHEHN_H £ 137,168
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Chengyuan (Phase 2) Residential
= 360 1% B — A = 133,952
Zhengzhou Junlin Grand Courtyard Bamboo Court Residential
ZB I FEE P NUAET £ 132,014
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Wonderland Residential
B EINEIR FE 52,015
Zhengzhou Zhengxi U-Town (Phase 6) Residential
= B 78 B B A R 7S R = 146,204
Zhengzhou Intelligent Palace (Phase 1) Residential
ZB B8 E—H F=E 220,000
Kaifeng Lankao Red World Commercial
FEE=) HEAR M [HES 7,754
Kaifeng Tongxu Code One City (Phase 1) Residential
ES) BETE S —H £ 78,000
Kaifeng Tongxu Jianye City (Phase 1) Residential
F5Ea) TR £ 38,000
Xinyang Huaibin County Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential
= EEER B 81,855
Xinyang Xinyang lianye City (Phase 2) Residential
= ERRREN 8 = 37,911
Nanyang Nanyang Longyue City (Phase 1) Residential
7 AR 30— £ 315,993
Nanyang Nanyang Central Garden (Phase 2) Residential
L mEAEEZH B 42,724
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PR ) im L o5 B )

Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
i) HE4 TEEEHEY BEER
(sg.m.)

(FAXK)
Luoyang Luoyang Dingding Palace (Phase 5) Residential
& &5 E RR IR B £ 124,844
Luoyang Luoyang Luanzhou Palace Residential
B & B3 N FE 12,819
Luoyang Yichuan Dragon Mansion (Phase 1) Residential
& BB/ — £ 120,999
Luoyang Luoyang Binhelong House (Phase 1) Residential
B & b B A BN — A F=E 90,453
Luoyang Luoyang Longcheng Dongwang (Phase 2) Residential
& BEREMEE B 81,764
Luoyang Luoyang Dachengxiaoyuan (Phase 2) Residential
B B AN — 8 £ 59,581
Pingdingshan Wugang Forest Peninsula (Phase 5) Residential
TIELW FEHAMEELR T=E 32,542
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Spring Time (Phase 2) Residential
FELW FELEXREZH B 235,876
Pingdingshan Jia County Jianye City (Phase 1) Residential
FIEW KRR — £ 107,126
Pingdingshan Wugang CCRE Mall Mansion
TIELW S iERIPN Ul YN 9,384
Anyang Anyang Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Residential &

Commercial

2 2R FEREE 66,011
Anyang Tangyin Central Garden (Phase 1) Residential
205 HERARE—1 B 144,581
Anyang Anyang lianye Yunzhi City (Phase 3) Residential
2 ZHREEHNEE=S £ 187,917
Anyang Anyang Tonghe Palace (Phase 1) Residential
25 2@ T — 5 £ 172,976
Hebi Hebi Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 1) Residential
kS EEEt AT — A FE 238,487
Hebi Qi County lianye City (Phase 1) Residential
fBEE EREEN—B £ 89,840
Hebi Hebi Tonghe Mansion (Phase 1) Residential
fBEE BEBNN—B F=E 104,852
Xinxiang Xinxiang Chinoiserie Palace Residential
4D 40 A FE 322,325
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
i) EHE4 TEEEEY BEER
(sg.m.)
(FHK)
Xinxiang Hui County Code One City Residential
48 1834 = SR B F=E 60,304
Xinxiang Xinxiang Blossom Garden Residential
4D HATERE Eec 108,873
Xinxiang Hui County Code One City Residential
48 1B RA S SR 7B £ 49,180
Xinxiang Weihui Spring Time Residential
Gl BEERE £ 206,449
Xinxiang Fenggiu Central Garden Residential
g HEAEE B 90,141
Jiaozuo Wuzhi Star Mall (Phase 1) Residential
I Ry 2 X — 5 £ 61,081
Jiaozuo Bo'ai Spring Time (Phase 2) Residential
3 BEEXREZH F=E 48,905
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 2) Residential
EE R 25 B 14,006
Puyang Puyang Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 3) Residential
4o T T A T = 15 £ 97,953
Puyang Puyang Puyuan (Phase 1) Residential
-4 B EE— £ 103,432
Puyang Puyang Longcheng (Phase 1) Residential
4o PR — B 111,830
Xuchang Yuzhou Spring Time (Phase 1) Residential
#FE BNERE—H £ 124,758
Xuchang Xuchang Zhenyuehui (Phase 1) Residential
FE SFEERE—H F=E 40,600
Xuchang Changge Forest Peninsula (Phase 2) Residential
FE EEAMFEEZH FE 19,940
Xuchang Yuzhou Dachengxiaoyuan (Phase 1) Residential
FE B AT —H £ 58,200
Luohe Luohe Xicheng Forest Peninsula (Phase 3) Residential
B BB AMEE=H £ 115,242
Luohe Linying Forest Peninsula (Phase 1) Residential
| BREARMY E—H B 54,515
Luohe Luohe Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden West District Residential &
(Phase 1) commercial
| BIEEAE—B FEREE 115,897

Interim Report 2022 H1{§]1#i+% | Central China Real Estate Limited #3303 B 7 15 P2 m)

79



80

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
i) HE4 TEEEHEY BEER
(sg.m.)
(F75K)
Sanmenxia Sanmenxia Honour Mansion (Phase 2) Residential
=Pl —PIBREF 8 F=E 62,007
Sanmenxia Sanmenxia New District Forest Peninsula (Phase 3) Residential
=Pk =M EH M S =5 FE 44,698
Shangaiu Yucheng Hill Water Lake City (Phase 1) Residential
[ F& 390 LI A4 30— HA £ 183,449
Shangaiu Sui County Shangheyuan (Phase 1) Residential
[)ss BE SR AR —HA T=E 106,112
Shangaiu Shanggiu Eighteen Cities (Phase 6) Residential
[l & E+ A\ FE 67,000
Shanggiu Xiayi Jianye City (Phase 1) Residential
[)as EEEy—H £ 221,415
Shangaiu Shanggiu Future City (Phase 1) Residential
=i &R — F=E 84,168
Shangaiu Minguan Tianming Happy Place (Phase 1) Residential
[)ss REXAERE—H B 19,479
Zhoukou Luyi Jianye City (Phase 9 & 10) Residential
B0 BEEEEHNN -+ £ 146,471
Zhoukou Zhoukou Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 2) Residential
B B Ot 5 F=E 227,509
Zhoukou Taikang Happy Place East Garden Residential
B0 ARERERE *FE 130,193
Zhoukou Huaiyang CCRE Mall (Phase 1) Apartment
B0 R B Rt — nE 58,159
Zhoukou Taikang Eco-City (Phase 1) Residential
B KEERE—H F=E 91,605
Zhumadian Zhumadian Spring Time (Phase 2) Residential
BEE BEEEREZH B 215,000
Zhumadian Zhengyang Jianye City (Phase 2) Residential &
commercial
BEIE EREEN B FEREE 77,865
Zhumadian Xincai CCRE Mall (Phase 2) Residential
BEE METRKRM 8 £ 23,094
Zhumadian Zhumadian Binhelong Palace (Phase 1) Residential
BEE S EIE BN —H F=E 108,500
Zhumadian Pingyu Central Garden (Phase 1) Residential
BEIE TEHARE—H B 121,754
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
i) EHE4 TEEEEY BEER
(sg.m.)
(FHK)
Zhumadian Zhumadian Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 1) Residential
BRI HEEEMN—BH £ 97,271
Zhumadian Xincai Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden (Phase 2) Residential
BEIE MEERZH £ 34,677
Zhumadian Suiping Jianye City (Phase 1) Residential
S BIE B —8 £ 41,691
Jiyuan Jiyuan Jianye City East Residential &
Commercial
IR EREEWE FEREE 17,705
Jiyuan Jiyuan Spring Time Residential &
Commercial
IR EREXE FEREE 73,794
Hainan Chengmai Zhonghe Jiayuan (Phase 1) Residential
=L BEPMKE—B £ 21,164
Total
=E 7,736,802
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PR ) im L o5 B )

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
REPORT DURING THE FIRST HALF OF 2022
I. Summary

According to the relevant regulations of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s revision of the “Corporate Governance
Code” and the “Corporate Governance Report” and the
relevant working requirements of the “Internal Control
Management System of Central China Real Estate
Group” approved by the Board Meeting, the Group's risk
management department built the risk management
and internal control in an orderly manner in accordance
with the annual work plan, and strictly perform risk
identification, analysis, evaluation, alert and response.
The Group strives to give full play to the role of risk
management and internal control in effectively promoting
operating efficiency and reducing the uncertainty of

achieving business objectives.

II. Current Situation of the Building of Risk
Management and Internal Control System

(I) Risk Management and Internal Control
Principles

The Group's risk management and internal control are

based on the following principles:

1. Completeness principle. Internal control
should run through the entire decision-making,
implementation and monitoring processes, and
cover the respective businesses and matters of

the Group and other subsidiaries.

2. Materiality principle. Internal control should pay
extra focus on material business issues and

high-risk areas on a total control basis.

3. Checks and balances principle. Internal control
should exercise mutual check and balance and
mutual supervision over various areas such as
governance structure, office setup, allocation
of powers and duties and business processes
without compromising the management system

of operational efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

(gL R TR )

4.  Adaptiveness principle. Internal control should
be adaptive in respect of scale of operation,
scope of business, competitive situation and risk
level of the company, and be modified promptly
in line with changes in the circumstances.

5. Cost effectiveness principle. Internal control
should exercise an effective control at the right
costs to achieve a balance between the costs of
implementation and expected benefits.

(1) Risk Management and Internal Control

Structure

The Group has clearly defined the internal control
responsibilities of the Board, the audit committee,
the management, and the internal audit which
are responsible for the coordination, organization,
establishment, implementation, evaluation and
effective assessment of the internal control systems
respectively.

The Group’s Audit and Supervision Centre has set
up an internal control team, with three fulltime
internal control personnel who are responsible for
coordinating, organizing, monitoring, evaluating and
other responsibilities; internal control teams are set
up in each functional centre, companies in cities and
professional companies, with the person in charge
of the centres and companies as team leaders, who
are responsible for the specific implementation of the
construction of the internal control system.

4. BREVERA o PR R
ﬂ BRI EIE
SERBARRA AR KT E
ﬁL%fﬁ%%@ﬁmﬁﬁ
R B L2 o

5. AAMERR - REREFIE
ERBBERNETREBRN
W UBEENHEERAN
PR

(Z) mpE EEE R EF R 18

SERRIANDTEFTE BELZE
Eg -EERBNAINETSHE
BRIERE Dh 8B REPEH
RANSS ES B B
EEMBUNMTES-

EREAERDPORIL T WE
HoEHIRERAEAR BB
WEER AT EHB BB T
BEIAFE, SBEPOL -HHQ
BEERFMNMNRE T RE
HohokABEEABER
BERIEFRIERERNARR

o

-

Interim Report 2022 H1{§]1#i+% | Central China Real Estate Limited #3303 B 7 15 P2 m)

83



84

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PR ) im L o5 B )

(Il) Risk Management and Internal Control (Z) REEEEARNSBEFERF

Procedure

Based on the five elements of the internal control
system, the Group have implemented the internal
control system mainly through the construction
and implementation of internal control system,
comprehensive risk management and internal control
supervision and evaluation.

1. Construction and Implementation of Internal

Control System

Each subsidiary reviews various business and
management activities, identify and evaluate the
key risk points in their operational management
activities, apply various control measures,
integrate relevant internal control requirements
and risk response measures into the design
of various management and business systems
and process, establish healthy systems and
processes and implement them effectively.

2. Comprehensive Risk Management

Each subsidiary actively identifies risk factors
arising from changes in the internal and external
environment in a timely manner, analyze,
assess and respond to various risks affecting
the achievement of internal control objectives
in its operation and management activities,
and establish, implement and continuously
improve internal control mechanisms. The Audit
and Supervision Centre organizes an annual
comprehensive risk assessment to assist
the subsidiaries in analyzing, evaluating and
preventing material risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

(gL R TR )

Internal Control Supervision and Evaluation

The Audit and Supervision Centre regularly
organizes internal control evaluation of the
Group's subsidiaries to identify internal control
deficiencies in both design rationality and
implementation effectiveness, formulate and
implement deficiency rectification measures,
prepare internal control evaluation reports, and
supervise and evaluate work quality of each
subsidiary’s risk management and internal
control, and supervise them to improve the
weaknesses.

(Iv) Achievements made in the establishment of
risk management and internal control systems
during the first half of 2022

7.

Updating and Revising Internal Control Relevant
Management Systems

During the first half of the year, to establish
a healthy internal control system and give
full play to the role of internal control, the
Group has updated and revised the “Internal
Control Management System of Central China
Real Estate Group”, which clarified the basis,
principles and division of responsibilities for the
Group's risk management and internal control
work, laying the foundation for the overall
internal control work to be carried out in the
year.

Organizing and Conduct Risk Review for
Subsidiaries

During the first half of the year, the Group's
internal control team organized each
functional centres, companies in cities and
professional companies to conduct risk review,
conducting separate inspections in risk matters
and business risk points, and take timely
preventative and countermeasures against
important and urgent risks to identify gaps and
deploy controls in advance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PR ) im L o5 B )

III. Risk management and internal control improvement =~ 2022 FF4F B BB B PE 92
plan for the second half of 2022 FHatdl
(1) According to business development requirements, (—) REBEBZEEER FTHRES
continuously improve the risk management and [ EEBA NI IEFIRE R ;

internal control system;

(2) Enhance internal risk prevention and control, and (Z) meanIEs ARmBEENE > &
progressively expand the coverage of business TIEANIEBEEZESEE ;

related to internal control;

(3) Constantly revise the internal control risk data (Z) BHERSIEFFELERREER
base on the basis of results of the internal control BlFERBER TEHTSRNE
evaluation work and the Company's policies; REEEE;

(4) Continuously organize and carry out training on () FEABRERG EIEEA N IPE
professional knowledge and skills of risk management HlEXMBEEEEI RBAZ
and internal control to enhance the risk prevention BREBHEEH  FECRAKREIE
awareness and deepen the risk management culture XAEo

among all employees.

BASIC INFORMATION OF CENTRAL CHINA STAFFS HEOENE B T IEAR

1. Staff count and classifications 1. BITABEGBEER
As of 30 June 2022, Central China (0832.HK) had 2,939 B FE 202268300 » M ZE (0832.HK)
employees in total, classified as follows: HBEBET2939% DfEA
By Function: BHESN

Total staff classified by function REZAAFIE|SNESLEE (BN A):
(Unit: per person):

Finance and cost FA 75 I R S 656
Engineering T 824
Management =i 229
Design AR5 151
Investment, preliminary work &~ BT HR 143
Sales, marketing and customer service $HE « HIE R E R 599
Administration 1T 319
Others H1ih 18
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By Age:

Total staff classified by age
(Unit: person):

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B P 5T e B o B o)

FleDHr

REBBDNESHEB (B : A):

20-30 20-30 724
31-40 31-40 1,779
41-50 41-50 376
51-60 51-60 58
61 or above 61Kk 2
By Education Level: BEDHT

Total staff classified by BREBFEINESHES (B A

education level (Unit: person):

Master degree or above MBS 360
Bachelor degree HY 2,272
Associate degree A& 280
Highschool or below =HRRUT 27

Remuneration and welfare policy

In order to promote healthy competition within the
Company and maximize the potential of our employees, the
Company has further optimized its existing remuneration
incentive system and advocated a performance-oriented
management concept and remuneration incentive
mechanism. The overall remuneration mechanism of the
Company will also be adjusted regularly with reference to
market rates to ensure the external competitiveness and
internal equity of the remuneration and provide guarantees
for retaining and attracting talent.

In addition, the Company adheres to the talent concept of
“professional spirit and professional quality’, and regards
professional ethics and professional ability as important
standards for selecting and employing employees and
strengthens employee training and continuous education
to constantly improve the quality of employees. Meanwhile,
the Company also places high emphasis on the career
development of its employees. It assists employees to
plan out their career paths according to their expertise
and capabilities, provides them with various career
channels and development opportunities, cultivates and
retains talent for key positions to promote the continuous
improvement of its organizing ability.

Bt I 4 RIBOR
HREATANERMEGFIRARE
HEETRESE ARE-—SEIER
TEHWHBER BENXELAER
WEBESMHFM B LS - A5
RFHERTEZ2ZHHENNXERR
2 > DUGR 58 # BN B S0 BR 35 3 1 A R BD
NEM > HRBEMRMAES AT RM
fReE ©
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Disclosure of Interests

il 2k A% 35

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures (the “Debentures”)
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows or as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below:

(a) Long positions in the Shares

Capacity and

R B RATBON BUR B ~ R
P R A8 Z5 v A RE RS Be DAY

122022568308 ARBEEREEITH
ABRFABHEBHZE (EER(EBHK
HIEHRA) (TGEFKREERG) 1) EXVE)
BBty (TRetnl) ~ BRERG kEZH (&%)
hoEAXATRARB(RSRAPERG)
BINFERECFENBLMATCHRURE
(BHFMEAERA) EXVERET7 R 87 B
BE LD R WEI0(EMETAEFETT
BEXZHRETA) (REFR)) ENE
RRB RS R XBWMT (KT
XIRE R 5T &) — B ER) !

(a) TREEHI IS

Approximate
percentage of
the interest in

Number of the Company's

Name of Director or nature of share options Number of  issued share
chief executive interest held? Shares held capital*
gl e N
BEg BEITRAN
TETHASHS BN kEZEE FRisREREH B2 FERMEE WA E 7 L
Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest in a controlled corporation - 2,078,036,867" 70.11%
HRBREE REZEEE
Mr. Wang Jun Beneficial owner 10,800,000 16,200,000 0.91%
(resigned on 1 August 2022)
T BRE BEREAA
(120228 A 1H & 1E)
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua)® Interest of spouse 44,000 14,200,000 0.48%
= L fof@ s
Ms. Chen Ying Beneficial owner 4,990,000 10,000 0.17%
(resigned on 1 August 2022)
R omit ERHEA
(1220228 8 1H&# 1F)
Mr. Xin Luo Lin Beneficial owner = 400,000 0.01%
EEMITE BEREEA
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Disclosure of Interests (continuea)

RESR B 38 )

Notes: Mok -

The 2,078,036,867 Shares were registered in the name of
and were beneficially owned by Joy Bright Investments
Limited (“Joy Bright”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu
Po Sum. Accordingly, he is deemed to be interested in the
2,078,036,867 Shares by virtue of the SFO.

2,078,036,867 RN F LI BIERE
ERATE (TB1E) A TEHE B
B-BENABRREEEBEEAD
NE) WRBE(BHRBEMRG) - 5
BRARFCERIRAYER2,078,036,867%

B in

Such interest in the Shares is held pursuant to the share 2. ERERMEmILBEBERESTE (B
options granted under the Share Option Scheme (as defined ER T BENEREMTE  HB
below), the details of which are disclosed on pages 91 to 94 BN APBHREFEINEME

of this interim report.

The 44,000 share options and 14,200,000 Shares are 3. FELZLIWERBE@RmHEEL4,00011E
beneficially owned by the spouse of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li J% # 52 14,200,0008% B 15 > BUAR % (58
Hua), therefore Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) is deemed to be FREABHO)  TELZIWERER
interested in her spouse’s share options and Shares for the H B ERERRH I #ER -
purposes of the SFO.

The approximate percentage of the interest in the 4, EKRABEBHETRANERBAB DL

Company’s issued share capital is based on a total of
2,964,116,120 Shares of the Company in issue as at 30 June
2022.

i1 2022F6 B30 AR B BETR
17 #8812,964,116,12008 5t & o
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Disclosure of Interests (continuea)

RESR I B )

(b) Long position in the shares of the Company’s (b) JARAS 2 \) H B L b 1 i A

associated corporation

Approximate
percentage of
the interest

in the issued
share capital
of the
Capacity and Company'’s
Name of Director Name of associated nature of Number of associated
or chief executive corporation interest shares held corporation
el Ry N
1BREE
BEITRAN
EEFFETHAEHSE EREEHS B kEREE FrfsiRm & E SRl
Mr. Wu Po Sum CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT Interest in a controlled 2,065,631,867" 62.79%°
COMPANY LIMITED (“CCMGT") corporation
HERERLE PREXBRAR (MREE) ZELE#ER
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) CCMGT Interest of spouse 7,000,000 0.21%°
F Rzt hREE oz #m
Mr. Xin Luo Lin CCMGT Beneficial owner 400,000 0.01%?
FEEMTE RREE BEREAA
Notes: B EE
1. Such shares are beneficially owned by Joy Bright, a company 1. BEARMVHREERHER MBEED

wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum. Accordingly, he is deemed
to be interested in such shares by virtue of the SFO.

2. Such shares are beneficially owned by the spouse of Ms. Wu 2.
Wallis (alias Li Hua). Accordingly, Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua)
is deemed to be interested such shares by virtue of the SFO.

3. The approximate percentage of the interest in CCMGT's 3.

issued share capital is based on a total of 3,289,706,120
shares of CCMGT in issue as at 30 June 2022.
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Disclosure of Interests (continuea)

RESR B 38 )

Save as disclosed above or under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, as at 30 June 2022, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors and chief executives
were deemed or taken to have under the provisions of the SFO),
or which were required to be and are recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The original share option scheme has expired on 13 May
2018. The shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
conditionally adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which has been approved on the extraordinary
general meeting held on 19 April 2018. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide the people and the parties working
for the interests of the Group with an opportunity to obtain an
equity interest in the Company, thus aligning their interests with
the interests of the Group and thereby providing them with
incentives to work better for the interests of the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the employees of the Group
(including the executive Directors) and such other persons as
the Board may consider appropriate may be granted options
which entitle them to subscribe for Shares representing, when
aggregated with any Shares subject to any other scheme(s) of
the Company, up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue of
the Company as of 19 April 2018, unless the Company obtains a
fresh approval from the Shareholders to renew the said limit or
the Shareholders specifically approve the grant.

The total number of Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time. The
amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of a grant of the
option is HK$1.00 (or its equivalent in RMB or any other currency
acceptable to the Company).

PREXHMN T TBEREE) —HiREE
5h 2 12202256 B308 MMEAATNESF £
ETBABRBREZHMBEANREATHHE
HEOEE (E&ER(EFRAERG)EXVED)
Z R0 BERD REST  EERE(F5
FRHREIRB ) EXVERE 7R B8N WA E &
RE RN EEI KR (BERE(E
SREERADRX  EEREEZTHA
ERBEH/AEFEANERRKR) > HIRE
(BERAERA) BI2HRRELKREE
SRARBDRFENE MR X
B WRBRETRIAN G RAT KB PR
BRmI KA -

s R R it )
RENBEREZESEENR2018FE5813H E
mo A NBIRE (TARER) M20185F4819H
ZERERFHIREPRREBBRMFRANE
PetEstd (TRERRIESTE) - RUBRESTE
EEGRTATERN@EMBOZALRE
BERERABDREZHEG MR REZF
mEAREER S HRRESAEER
ZHmmEM -

SRIFR AR EMERRMESTH FTHIRER
WAERRGHHOER HERE  RIFERE
A rEERES (BERTES) REFT
BB BENHEMA T ERBRELURE
B EIRB AR AT EREMEBIFTHH
ERRG A FEBBIR2018F4F198 &
ABEETRMDEB10%-

RIFEARR B RMBEEREST B IR LM H K
TENEREETERETHRETOR
PR TREBBERIIRKEETRME
BHI30% o AR AR MR BRER A
HHEEER1.008 T (AEENARERE
NERMNEFEMER) o
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Disclosure of Interests (continuea)

RESR I B )

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted and to be granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company to each participant in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant of the options
must not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options which would result in the number of the
Shares issued as aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit must be
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting at which such
participant and his or her associates must abstain from voting.

Any grant of share options to a participant who is a Director,
chief executive, or substantial Shareholder of the Company
or any of their respective associate must be approved by the
independent non-executive Directors, excluding any independent
non-executive Director who is the grantee of the share options.

The exercise periods of the share options may be specified by
the Company at the time of the grant, and the share options shall
expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of the grant.
As at 30 June 2022, share options to subscribe for 63,684,000
Shares (representing approximately 2.15% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 30 June 2022 (i.e. 2,964,116,120
shares)) remained outstanding.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and notified to a participant, provided that such
price shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
on the date of offer of a share option which must be a trading
day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five consecutive
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme will expire on 18 April 2028.
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Disclosure of Interests (continuea)

RESR B 38 )

Movement of share options granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme for the six months ended 30 June 2022

was as follows:

HE2022FE6830H ERNER » XA T IRE

BRESEROBEREZZESHINT !

Exercise
and
Exercise vesting As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
Name or category price per period 1 January during the during the during the 30 June
of participants Date of grant  Share (Notes) 2022 period period period 2022
TER
HEH  1R2022F 1202245
SHEMLHER b =b BRITHEE (Miz¥) 1818 HBAEBE  BRTE BRXY 6830A
Directors
)
Mr. Wang Jun (resigned 23 August 2018 HK$3.470 6 10,800,000 - - - 10,800,000
on 1 August 2022)
T BHE (R202F 2018FE8H23H 347087
881HED)
Ms. Li Hua’ 27 March 2013 HK$2.560 3 44,000 - - - 44,000
T ExL 201338270 2.5608 7T
23 May 2017 HK$1.764 4 - - - - -
201785823H 1764787
Ms. Chen Ying (resigned 12 June 2018 HK$4.296 5 4,990,000 - - - 4,990,000
on 1 August 2022)
B BEZE (02022F 2018%6B128  4.296ETT
8B1H &)
Chief Executive
officer
BERATE
Mr. Yang Mingyao 27 March 2013 HK$2.560 3 300,000 300,000
(appointed on 14
February 2022)
IBHREE (2022 2013F38270  2.5608 7T
2B14REZRMT)
12 June 2018 HK$4.296 5 3,000,000 3,000,000
2018F6812H  4.296B 7T
Mr. Wang Jun (ibid.)
(resigned on
14 February 2022)
T #gRE@EL ®
20222 14H §HE)
Senior Management, 25 July 2011 HK$2.160 2 - - - - -
and other employees
of the Group
AEESREERE. 201F7A2H 21608 7T
REMES
27 March 2013 HK$2.560 3 6,650,000 - = (100,000) 6,550,000
2013%F3827H  2.560B 7T
23 May 2017 HK$1.764 4 48,200,000 - - - 48,200,000
201785823H 1764787
12 June 2018 HK$4.296 5 4,000,000 S = - 4,000,000
201868 12H 4,296 7%
23 August 2018 HK$3.470 6 - - - - -
201888230  3.470B7T
77,984,000 - - (100,000) 77,884,000
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RESR I B )

Notes: B 5E

1. In relation to each grantee of the share options granted under the 1.

Share Option Scheme, no share option is exercisable within the
first year from the respective dates of grant, that is, 25 July 2011,
27 March 2013, 23 May 2017, 12 June 2018 and 23 August 2018
(the "Dates of Grant”), not more than 20% of the share options are
exercisable within the second year from the respective Dates of
Grant and not more than 40% of the share options are exercisable
in each of the third and fourth year from the respective Dates of
Grant.

2. The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 2.
25 July 2012, 25 July 2013 and 25 July 2014 respectively to 24
July 2021. The vesting period of the 3 tranches begins on 25 July
2011 and ends on 24 July 2012, 24 July 2013 and 24 July 2014,
respectively.

3. The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 27 3.
March 2014, 27 March 2015 and 27 March 2016 respectively to
26 March 2023. The vesting period of the 3 tranches begins on 27
March 2013 and ends on 26 March 2014, 26 March 2015 and 26
March 2016, respectively.

4. The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 4.
23 May 2018, 23 May 2019 and 23 May 2020 respectively to 22
May 2027. The vesting period of the 3 tranches begins on 23 May
2017 and ends on 22 May 2018, 22 May 2019 and 22 May 2020,
respectively.

o8 The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 51
12 June 2019, 12 June 2020 and 12 June 2021 respectively to 11
June 2028. The vesting period of the 3 tranches begins on 23 May
2017 and ends on 22 May 2018, 22 May 2019 and 22 May 2020,
respectively.

6. The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 23 6.
August 2019, 23 August 2020 and 23 August 2021 respectively to
22 August 2028. The vesting period of the 3 tranches begins on 23
August 2018 and ends on 22 August 2019, 22 August 2020 and 22
August 2021, respectively.

7. The 44,000 share options are beneficially owned by the spouse of 7.
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua), therefore Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua)
is deemed to be interested in her spouse’s share options for the
purposes of the SFO.

REERESSRENBRENSRKEA
REBNEE R BI2011478250 ~ 2013
F3H27H 2017458238 ~ 2018568 12H
K2018F8H23H (MRHHHA) BEERAR
BITEERE, NSRBRYHBESTE2ER
TETEBB0%RMWERE , MREFEER
RN EZRBIESE  DRARBTER
BA0%RY B BG HE o

BREDAZHITE TEHRS R BE20124F
78250 201378250 %2014E7825H
EE2021FE7824H 1k Z#H B BHIBE2011
F7B25HB% B RIEE201267824H ~
201378248 K&20145E7 8248 4% -

BIRED A= HITE TEREAD R B2014F
3827H 2015438278 &2016%F3827H
EZE2023F3826H 1L - = #HL B EHIE2013
F3H278 A% DHIEE2014F3826H ~
20155 3H26H 201653826 B 43R ©

ERED B ZHITE THEHH DB E20185E
5823H 2019458230 &202045823H
EEZE2027FE5822H 1k Z R BHIE 2017
F5823HB% > B RIEZE20185F5822H ~
2019858228 K&202045822H3 455 o

IR D A = HITE TR DB B2019F
6B 12H 202068128 &2021%F6A12H
EEZE2028F 68118 L - = #H B BHIE2017
F58238 A HHIEE2018F5822H
20195 5822H 20205 822H 45 %R °

RIS B = HITE THEHD B B20196F
88 23H 202088230 &20214E8H23H
TEZE2028FE8H22H 1k Z# R BHIE 2018
F8H23HRE D RIEE2019F8822H ~
2020588228 &202148822H &5k ©

Tz ECBE D ERL4,00017 BB 1
BRI (RS R ERD)  FELLIREAD
ERHRBBREN B -

Additional information in relation to the Share Option Scheme BRI B MREINE B & A E R
is set out in note 21 to the financial statements of this interim EFHRRME21 0
report.

Central China Real Estate Limited 2% 33 Bt f7 4 BR 2 1] | Interim Report 2022 #1015



Disclosure of Interests (continuea)

RESR B 38 )

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 30 June 2022, other than the interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares or Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes” above, the
following persons had interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares:

TR A LA v A Z

18202256 A30H MARBDEETNEETT
BWABFA RN EXTEEREEZTHA
SRR~ 8RR D 3N A 55 T AV m Ak
BIRTERESS MEBPMAREZRSATE
ERTBTHRABZE@RRABSIN LLTA
ITRARTZRONEERG FHEEEAR
B SRS ARG EXVEE 2R FE30 2B 1%
XFPURBEZ m KA > Nk AR T
RIFE S R ERAISEIBFAFEZEEC
P e =

RO AT

Approximate
percentage of
the interest in the

Capacity and nature Number of Company’s issued

Name of Shareholder of interest Shares held share capital’
4 g NG

B81TRA

IR B REZHE Fr¥FRR (7 8B RIBE49 F 3 kb
Joy Bright Investments Beneficial owner 2,078,036,8672 70.11%

BEKE BmBEBEA

Notes:

1. The percentage of the interest in the Company’s issued share
capital is based on a total of 2,964,116,120 Shares in issue.

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Joy Bright
Investments and is deemed to be interested in the 2,078,036,867
Shares held by Joy Bright Investments for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

1. RAERTIBETRAVEZTHLIZBE
TR D AR EL2,964,116,120f% 51 & ©

2. HRAKEFARERBZHEETRE
WRIBRBESRERIRRAHERS BE
H B F52,078,036,867 8% & 19 #E i o

PR £ XAt 9b 0 722022468308 » I FEAE
AHEMAL (FRADESFHTETHRAER
5N RARB 2R HARRERG R EBRE
BHRABRGIEXVEFE2KRIDE ZEX
ARARRNBREZ BmENE » WIREE
KRB IRPIEIBFELNERARNBFEZ
Mz EmeKa e
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

13855 1 b HoAth &0k

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always valued the superiority, steadiness and
rationality of having a sound system of corporate governance
and is committed to continuously improving its corporate
governance and disclosure practices. For the six months
ended 30 June 2022, the Company complied with all code
provisions and, where appropriate, adopted the recommended
best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) with the exception of code provision F2.2 as
addressed below.

Code provision F.2.2 — This code provision requires the chairmen
of the Board (the “Chairman”) to invite the chairman of the audit,
remuneration and nomination committees to attend the annual
general meeting.

Mr. Xin Luo Lin, an independent non-executive Director and
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Company,
was unable to attend the 2022 AGM due to other business
engagement. Mr. Wu Po Sum, an executive Director and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company,
attended the 2022 AGM.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
the Directors in their dealings in the Company’s securities.
Having made specific enquires with each Director, the Company
confirmed that all Directors had complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for the six months ended
30 June 2022.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information (continued)

1385 160 b HA &R o

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Company has
not granted any share options pursuant to the share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the shareholders during
the extraordinary general meeting held on 19 April 2018. As of
28 March 2022 (being the date of the Company’s annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2021) and 16 September 2022
(being the date of this interim report), the total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme, for which the underlying
share options have been approved by the shareholders but
are yet to be granted by the Company, is 143,926,256 shares,
representing approximately 4.86% and 4.72% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of the Company's annual
report and this report respectively.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as the disclosed in Note 27 to this interim report, there
were no significant events subsequent to 30 June 2022 which
would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this interim report.

REVIEW OF INTERIM RESULTS BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has discussed with the
management the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Group, and has reviewed the Group’s unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2022 and the audited interim consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2022. The
unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 was published by the Company
on 31 August 2022 and the audited condensed consolidated
interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2022 presented herein has been audited by the auditor of the
Company.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to declare an interim dividend (the
“Interim Dividend”) for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (six
months ended 30 June 2021: HK$14.75 cents per share).

0 BT~ 4 R Il A 23 ) ki

B E2022F6H30H EREA RN KRB
HEMMBASMERE  HEHBELOEM
KRB LEHFESH

I R R i )

HE2022F 68300 LE/NEB » A RAF KRR
BERER2018F48 198 BRI EERI A
BHOENEBRESE ((5tE8)) BT EAER
HE o EE2022E3828H (BNZA B & £2021
F12B31HIEFENERHHED) 2022598
168 BIAFRHEAZR S BHR) > RIRET 8 mT (it 2
THRMDEES (ERAEREDERERHE
MEARAT M KRBH) 2143,926,2568% > 3 )
WERARBREFERSHPERARS HE
B ITRRZANAI4.86% 2 4.72% °

o 0 1

P4k A P R 4R 25 I BE27 PR AR BB 1 - M8 4R 142022
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ANBDBZEESEEREEBTmASE
BEFRAN G RAIRER  TEBERAE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Hig N7 A% BRI ¥

N

Independent auditor’'s report to the shareholders of
Central China Real Estate Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the condensed consolidated financial
statements of Central China Real Estate Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 103 to
160, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2022, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the condensed
consolidated cash flow statement for the six-month period then
ended and explanatory notes to the condensed consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, the condensed consolidated financial statements
are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 34 (“HKAS 34"), Interim financial
reporting, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the condensed
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together
with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the condensed consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Py N7 AZ B RS )

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 1 to the condensed consolidated
financial statements, which indicates that the Group incurred
a net loss of RMB5,941 million and net cash outflows from
operating activities of RMB2,564 million for the six months ended
30 June 2022. Included in the current liabilities were loans of
RMB5,762 million and senior notes of RMB5,354 million. The
recent macroeconomic conditions and the volatility in China real
estate industry has brought certain uncertainties to the Group. It
may be more challenging for the Group to refinance loans than
it has historically been. As stated in note 1, the interim financial
information has been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which depends upon the support from the investors
and the Group's lenders and the Group’s ability to generate
sufficient net cash inflows from future operations and/or other
sources. These facts and circumstances, along with other
matters as set forth in note 1 indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

OTHER MATTER

The comparative consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the condensed
consolidated cash flow statement for the six-month period
ended 30 June 2022 and the relevant explanatory notes were
extracted from the interim financial information of the Group for
the six-month period ended June 30, 2021, which is unaudited
but reviewed by KPMG in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Review Engagements 2410, Review of interim financial
information performed by the independent auditor of the entity,
issued by the HKICPA.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
interim report, other than the condensed consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the condensed consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

o 37 K% BB R S )

In connection with our audit of the condensed consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the condensed
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR

THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with
HKAS 34 issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
condensed consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the condensed consolidated financial statements,
the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the condensed consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes
our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these condensed consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the condensed consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the condensed consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the condensed consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the condensed
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Tse Wong Pui.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

16 September 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

o WA

for the six months ended 30 June 2022 #%202246H30H 1k 75 H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %I HR)

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30HIEER
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
biaE ARETT ARETIT
Revenue Wz 3 7,300,552 20,356,906
Cost of sales 5 & B A (6,746,597) (16,719,102)
Gross profit EF 553,955 3,637,804
Other revenue H s 4 65,618 130,800
Other net (losses)/income Hih (5518) WA FEE 4 (2,620,375) 190,137
Selling and marketing expenses HEKRMIBHEERS (708,279) (773,087)
General and administrative expenses — ¢ K TERE (615,340) (788,693)
Impairment losses on trade and other B 5 ~ EhEUIE K
receivables and contract assets BHRBEENRERE 5 (327,129) (35,110)
(3,651,550) 2,361,851
Finance costs =% 5 (469,791) (464,356)
Share of profits less losses of FEAL B A Bl R F R e 18
associates 3,380 817
Share of profits less losses of joint ~ fEh &= X EF]REE
ventures (65,333) 68,874
(Loss)/profit before change in BRICEMEATEEHK
fair value of investment FriS#ial (B518) &
property and income tax (4,183,294) 1,967,186
Net valuation (l0ss)/gain on KEYEGE
investment property (B518) /W3 % 48 9 (1,513,625) 96,886
(Loss)/profit before taxation PRIg AT (B518) T 5 (5,696,919) 2,064,072
Income tax PSR 6 (244,565) (1,038,859)
(Loss)/profit for the period AR (B548) iz Fl (5,941,484) 1,025,213
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Consolidated Income Statement (continued)
AW AR @

for the six months ended 30 June 2022 # % 202286H30H 1k /5M# H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA R ¥ 1HR)

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30HLEREAR
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Kt AREFT AREETTT

Attributable to: P& -
Equity shareholders of the Company ZAAB#@mFFA A (5,605,323) 729,124
Non-controlling interests JEER T (336,161) 296,089
(Loss)/profit for the period HA (B518) i F) (5,941,484) 1,025,213
(Loss)/earnings per share S (B518) BT 7
- Basic (RMB cents) —EX (ARE¥ED) (195.07) 25.63
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#58 (AR D) (195.07) 25.54
The notes on pages 112 to 160 form part of this interim financial F112BE 1608 M sE4E AP B F IR &
report. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the BH—ED ENEAABDERITE ARBD
Company are set out in note 21. ISR EE21 0
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

o 4 i W 2 R

for the six months ended 30 June 2022 #%202246H30H 1k 75 H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %I HR)

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30HLEREB
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%FT AR®TIT
(Loss)/Profit for the period R (&518) @ Fl (5,941,484) 1,025,213
Other comprehensive income for the HREMEEWE FIRIER
period (after tax and reclassification ZEHDiEEHAER)
adjustments)
Items that will not be reclassified to FEEM D EERHIES
profit or 10ss:
Equity investments at fair value through BATESAEMEE RGN
other comprehensive income BRI E
- net movement in fair value reserve — R EEETZEE
(non-recycling) (RA & (E) 3,238 9,459
Iitems that may be reclassified HEGSEEN 7 HEZEmER .
subsequently to profit or 10Ss:
Exchange differences on: PERZER
— Translation of financial statements to —ITEBERREZIE
the presentation currency (239,943) 62,029
- Arising on a monetary item that —EXBEDBIINEBRE
forms part of net investment in FRENERIER
foreign operations (141,379) 78,868
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HIREMZ2E (5518 Ik
for the period (378,084) 150,356
Total comprehensive (loss)/income HAZE (§518) R 4EEE
for the period (6,319,568) 1,175,569
Attributable to: FE1L :
Equity shareholders of the Company KABIERFAEA (5,983,417) 879,484
Non-controlling interests JEFER R (336,151) 296,085
Total comprehensive (loss)/income HAZE (B518) WmEEE
for the period (6,319,568) 1,175,569

The notes on pages 112 to 160 form part of this interim financial BI2EE 1608 MY 53 48 p A~ HBBF 75 3R
report. HEH—E D
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

oo Bk R
at 30 June 2022 JA20224F6H30H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %IHR)

At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
7202245 20214
6830H 12B31H
NOZ?@ RMB’'000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥TFT AREFT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz BB R E 8 8,471,032 7,801,961
Investment property KEME 9 3,711,801 5,074,100
Intangible assets and goodwill BEBERBE 1,091,258 1,110,223
Biological assets TYEE 8,225 11,368
Interests in associates B A B fEm 170 631,432 208,757
Interests in joint ventures SEThE#R 11 7,332,286 9,504,297
Other financial assets HittsmEE 679,080 672,049
Deferred tax assets RILFTSMEE 33,119 212,877
21,958,233 24,595,632
Current assets MENEE
Trading securities RS M85 45,320 53,647
Biological assets TYEE 2,960 9,547
Inventories and other contract costs & EEME LA 12 95,051,718 87,784,245
Contract assets BHNEE 54,081 32,764
Trade and other receivables = &Eﬂﬂ@uﬁz%ﬂiﬁ 13 5,548,762 5,703,023
Deposits and prepayments &%&iﬁﬁ 14 12,879,414 14,183,252
Tax recoverable gL 3,734,335 3,596,734
Restricted bank deposits ZBR&IERITIERR 15 2,885,414 3,946,166
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 16 3,622,412 5,901,642
123,824,416 121,211,020
current liabilities REIBE
Bank loans RITE™R T)\ 17 (3,341,460) (2,399,050)
Other loans Hﬁbfﬁ 18 (2,420,400) (1,201,760)
Trade and other payables = %&ET@E‘%N%’KIE 79 (51,622,988) (54,740,364)
Contract liabilities BHEE (59,263,303) (52,361,021)
Senior notes BEER 20 (5,354,493) (3,160,096)
Lease liabilities HEaE (30,070) (96,356)
Taxation payable FETIR1E (1,343,422) (1,881,476)
(123,376,136) (115,840,123)
Net current assets MMEERE 448,280 5,370,897
Total assets less current BMEERTEAE
liabilities 22,406,513 29,966,529

Central China Real Estate Limited #t %32 Bt £7 4 BR2A 1) | Interim Report 2022 #1015




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continuea)

B Bk L 2 )

at 30 June 2022 J220224F6 H30H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %I HR)

At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
7202245 20214
6830H 12B31H
No(e RMB’'000 RMB’000
K&t ARETT AREFT
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Bank loans RITER 17 (3,551,778) (2,550,565)
Other loans HAE R 18 (150,000) (320,000)
Senior notes BEER 20 (10,972,022) (12,308,542)
Lease liabilities HEaE (182,526) (399,368)
Deferred tax liabilities EILRIEEE (1,440,246) (1,644,733)
(16,296,572) (17,223,208)
NET ASSETS BEEFE 6,109,941 12,743,321
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRKEE
Share capital [N 260,118 260,118
Reserves EE 3,064,429 9,082,259
Total equity attributable to ERFEZFAA
equity shareholders of FE(h #E 2R 4R A
the Company 3,324,547 9,342,377
Non-controlling interests JEERRE S 2,785,394 3,400,944
TOTAL EQUITY W iE%E 6,109,941 12,743,321

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
16 September 2022.

Wu Po Sum
RO
Director
e

The notes on pages 112 to 160 form part of this interim financial
report.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
oo M i SR B

for the six months ended 30 June 2022 #%202246H30H 1k/5# H

108

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %IHR)
Share-hased Property Fair value
Share Share Statutory Other Exchange  compensation revaluation reserve Retained Non-controlling Total
capital premium  reserve fund  capital reserve feserve feserve reserve  (non-recycling) profits Total interests equity
HRAZHH RARESH
B Ritad ielEE  AfANEE EfkR Helie  NEEHER (RadE) REEH 58 FekEs R4S
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR AE#TR AE#TR ABHTR AERTR AERTR AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR AE#TR
Balance at 1 January 2021 RONEIR1RZER 258,195 27131061 3,760,502 295,088 (351,216) 104,226 6419 10540 4561779 11,376,654 3,005,381 14,582,035
Changes in equity for the six months ended ~ EZ202168308 L7 BAZ
30 June 2021: fEags:
Profifor the perod B - - - - - - - 9.1 priavs 296,089 1025213
Other comprehensive income £ EkE - - - 140,901 - - 9,459 - 150,360 (U] 150,356
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - - - 140,901 - - 9,459 mu 879,484 296,085 1,175,569
Dividend approved in respect of previous years ~ BEEERENRS 21 - - - - - - - (663,039) (663,039) - (663,039)
Aporopriation o statutory reserves fund BRTIEHES - - 270,083 - - - - - (270,053) - - -
Restricted shares issue under share award scheme ) - 181,990 - (181,990 - - - - - - - -
Shares issued under share option scheme a0 2169 40 - - - (20,678) - - - 58,898 - 58,898
Equity settled share-oased payment - - - - 253 - - - 253 - 2,53
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (8412) (8412
Distrbution in specie - - - - - - - - (1,316,521) (1,316,521) - (1.316,521)
‘Acquistions of additional interests in subsidiaries - - - (663,164) - - - - - (663,164) (654,901) (1,318,085)
Acquistions of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 218,666 218,666
2169 259397 210,053 (845,154) N 1853 - - (2,249,613) (2,561,295) (444,647) (3,005,942)
Balance at 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 K202156A308 R
WNETRBZEH 260,364 2,990,458 4,030,855 (550,066) (210,315) 106,079 6479 19,999 3,041,290 9,694,843 3,056,819 12,751,662
Balance at 1 July 2021 NNETRIB 4R 260,364 2,990,458 4,030,555 (550,086) (210.315) 106,079 6479 19,999 3,041,290 9,694,843 3,056,819 12,751,662
Changes in equity for the six months ended ~ EZ2021£12818 1L/ BRZ
31 December 2021: i
Proftforthe period B - - - - - - - (124,210) (124210) 351,982 0111
Other comprehensive income £ EkE - - - 75,299 - - 51,831 - 127,130 3 121127
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - - - 75,299 - - 51,831 (124210) 292 3979 354,899
Dividend declaed in respect o the current period 214l - - - - - - - (364,168) (364,168) - (364,168)
Dividend paid to non-contraling interests - - - - - - - - - (574,501) (574,501)
Appropriation to statutory reserve fund - - 11797 - - - - (an1797) - - -
Capital contrbution from non-controling nterests - - - - - - - - - 621,01 621,021
Restricted shares granted and subscribed under share
award schieme - 1,188) - 1188 - - - - - - - -
Repurchase and cancelaton of ordinary shares (246) (2,305) - - - - - - - (2,551) - (2551)
Equity setted share-Dased payment - - - - 11,352 - - (1.738) 9,614 - 9,614
Disposals of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 2 2
Distrbution in specie - - (144,138) - - - - 144138 - - -
Disposels of parte interest i subsidiares HENRATENES - - - 3 - - - - - 3 89 1,600
Acquisitions of additondl interests n subsidiaries ~ EEHEATEE - - - 988 - - - - - 988 (57,689) (56,701)
Acquitfons of subsideres KEHELE - - - - - - - - - 244 2444
(246) (3493) 67,659 2901 - 11,382 - - (433,565 (395,386) (7.854) (363,240)
Balance 31 December 2021 RONENANAZER 260,118 2,986,965 4098214 (547,159) (135,016) 17431 6479 7830 2483515 9342317 3,400,944 12743321
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

ARSI R @

for the six months ended 30 June 2022 # % 20224F6H30H 1L/ A

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %I HR)
Share-hased Flr valug
Share Share Statutory Other Bxchange compensation Property revaluation Tesene Retained Non-contraling Total
capial premium resenefund  capttalreserve Teserve Teserve reserve  (non-ecycling) profits Total interests equity
PUORGL) EEER
k& Ritad EEHRE  HfEAEE ERBR WeliE  NEEfER (F7&E) REEH 4} FEREE RE4E
Note RMB000 RMB00 RMB00 RMBO0 RMBO0 RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB00 RMB00
L3 AE#TR AE#TT AE#TT AE#TT AE#TT AEBTT NEBTT NEBTT NEBTT AE#TT AE#TR AE#TT
Balance at 1 January 2022 ROREIRIRZER 10118 298965 40821 (547,159) (135016) 17481 8419 7180 248515 93031 340094 127831
Changes in equity for the six months ended ~ &Z2022%6F30BLAERZ
30 June 2022: fEags:

Profit for the period B = = = = = = (580539 (580533 (3%161) (591484)
Oihier comprehensive income £ EkE = (31332 - - 338 - (378,094) 10 (378,084)
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE = = (3132 - - 3% (5,605,323 (5983417) (336,151) 6319,568)
Dividend approved nrespect of the previous years ﬂﬁi@ﬁmﬂ& 2160 = = = = = = = = (66,307) (66,307) = (66307)
Dividend paid to a non-Contraling interests £3 = = = = = = = = = = (253,335 (253,335)
Equity settled share-based payment WE %N&Mﬂ R 1) - - 57,985 - (12389 - - 1,259) um - um
Dispasal of subsidiaies HERBAT = = = = = = = = (67730 (6773
Disposals of partal nerest in subsiciries HERRATSNER - - - (2503 - - - - - (32509 kibi] )
Acouistions ofaciional nterests n subsidaries ~ #EHELATER = = = 005 = = = = = 005 (2088) (22000)
Aoquisiions of subsidiries WERELR - = = - - - - - - 5149 51495
- B8 (12388) - S (67,562 (3443 (279.399) (313812
Balance t 30 June 2022 12022E6R30R 248 20118 2986965 409821 (501,622) (516,348) 105083 6419 75,088 (3,189.370) 33547 278539 6109941
The notes on pages 112 to 160 form part of this interim financial F1128 £ 1608 B9 Mt 5F 48 AR 4 -0 2 BF 75 3R

report.
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Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

i W & 5 Bl i R

for the six months ended 30 June 2022 #%202246H30H 1k/5# H

(LU R BIHR)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30HIERER
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBT T
Operating activities R EE
Cash used in operations KEPMARE (1,805,038) (1,611,832)
Income tax paid [EENPFiRT (759,456) (1,727,302)
Net cash used in REEEFR AR E R EE
operating activities (2,564,494) (3,339,134)
Investing activities KEIEE
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE BERRBNR
plant and equipment (59,462) (185,528)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE BRE KRR ERESRIE
plant and equipment 148,932 72,440
Net cash paid upon acquisitions of WK B R BN B[ IRE/FEE
subsidiaries (170,752) (484,497)
Net cash inflow upon disposals of HENBLABNIERE
subsidiaries TRAF EE 439,933 43,111
Investments in joint ventures REETrERE (4,800) (85,973)
Investment in associates REEABKRE (19,600) -
Advances to joint ventures BRFEEDRE (1,649,193) (796,067)
Repayment from joint ventures BERFEER 1,517,193 623,819
Advances to associates BRTHZE AT (101,579) (8,004)
Repayment from associates Bt & A B 46,055 23,675
Dividend received from equity B R 458 5 WY S B
securities 2,324 -
Interest received B UWF 2 28,235 95,398
Others HAth - 3,900
Net cash generated from/ KREEHRE (FRA) REe R4
(used in) investing activities 177,286 (697,726)

The notes on pages 112 to 160 form part of this interim financial

report.
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Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continuea)

i W 5 5 Bl I R

for the six months ended 30 June 2022 # % 20224F6H30H 1L/ A
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %I HR)

Six months ended 30 June

HFE6H30H1ENAER
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000

Kt ARETRT AR®ETTT

Financing activities B EE
Proceeds from new bank loans L ERIT AT 2,143,200 2,598,785
Repayment of bank loans ERIBITEMR (942,999) (2,217,258)
Cash receipts of guarantee deposits  $RITERIERESHNIRS

of bank loans &N - 395,866
Proceeds from other loans and HMER R EERENRIE

borrowings 1,514,528 2,331,896
Repayment of other loans and ERAMERREES

borrowings (1,158,860) (4,200,996)
Net proceeds from issue of senior BITEBAEBRMEMIEFEE

notes - 3,009,119
Repayment of redemption upon BEORESINHELEE

maturity senior notes - (4,543,185)
Repayment of corporate bonds NEIEHER - (1,500,000)
Net cash outflow from settlement of 1A SR T BEEEERN

derivative financial instruments BERHIRE FEE - (217,093)
Net cash distributed in respect of BEMDIRZIBEDIKFEE

distribution in specie - (1,307,290)
Proceeds from shares/restricted TR 35 BE IS R 51 81 S B 17 52 B

shares issued under share option 21T IR, IR

scheme and share award scheme AR PR 1ERRIE 37,392 120,692
Interest paid BENFE (1,152,738) (1,060,697)
Dividend paid BENKRE - (663,039)
Dividend paid to non-controlling EIEIER R TR E

interests (253,335) -
Acquisitions of additional interest in  1ZEEHI B A T wm

subsidiaries (22,000) (347,723)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B{JHAEHREMNE RIS (43,894) (55,304)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BtEEMHSHFEZHD (14,623) (19,608)
Others HAth (275) =
Net cash generated from/ B EENFR1S. (FRF)

(used in) financing activities REREE 106,396 (7,675,835)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERRELEEY

equivalents W BEEE (2,280,812) (11,712,695)
Cash and cash equivalents at R1IB1BENRERIAEEEY

1 January 5,901,642 22,618,964
Effect of changes in foreign SNEEEREETE

exchange rate 1,582 (34,054)
cash and cash equivalents at R6H30BMRERIREEEY

30 June 3,622,412 10,872,215
The notes on pages 112 to 160 form part of this interim financial F112BE160E WM 55 48 B 2 A B B 75 3R

report. EWN—E Do
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 55 9% B sk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 504N DL R 51 HR)

Central China Real Estate Limited (“the Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 15
November 2007. Its principal place of business is at Room
7701B=7702A, 77th Floor, International Commerce Centre, 1
Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong and its registered
office is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. This interim financial report
as at and for the six months ended 30 June 2022 comprises
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
“the Group”) and the Group's interests in associates and joint
ventures. The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and the Group is principally engaged in property
development, property leasing and hotel operations in Henan
Province in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC").

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

This interim financial report has been prepared in
accordance with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, including compliance with
Hong Kong Accounting Standard (HKAS) 34, Interim financial
reporting, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA).

The interim financial report has been prepared in
accordance with the same accounting policies adopted
in the 2021 annual financial statements, except for
the accounting policy changes that are expected to be
reflected in the 2022 annual financial statements. Details of
any changes in accounting policies are set out in Note 2.

The preparation of an interim financial report in conformity
with HKAS 34 requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses on a year to date basis. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Central China Real Estate Limited #t %32 Bt £7 4 BR2A 1) | Interim Report 2022 #1015
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 f5HA4N DL R 51 HR)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

This interim financial report contains condensed
consolidated financial statements and selected explanatory
notes. The notes include an explanation of events and
transactions that are significant to an understanding of the
changes in financial position and performance of the Group
since the 2021 annual financial statements. The condensed
consolidated interim financial statements and notes

B T (A7)
ERBMBREQVEBRREHUBHR
RRETREWE ZEMWEOIER
BEEEHRRS BT HRE2021E
EMBREGREAEEZHBRE
RERZEBYLAEE - HHES
HYBREREMELFOERES
PSS ERNERTR L TR

thereon do not include all of the information required for a BHRRNFABER

full set of financial statements prepared in accordance with

HKFRSs.

Material uncertainty related to going concern AL 4 45 8 FH B Y oK A Tl 1

The Group incurred a net loss of RMB5,941 million and
net cash outflows from operating activities of RMB2,564
million for the six months ended 30 June 2022. Included in
the current liabilities were loans of RMB5,762 million and
senior notes of RMB5,354 million. The Group is aware of
recent macroeconomic conditions which have potential
implications on the business of the Group in the near to
medium term. This mainly includes the tightened policies
adopted by the local Chinese governments towards the
real estate sector in 2021 and the deteriorating consumer
sentiment in China, resulting in the whole real estate sector
suffering from short-term liquidity pressures, which is even
worsened by the recent lock-down of cities in Henan and
other provinces in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
during April and May 2022 due to the COVID-19.

The recent macroeconomic conditions and the volatility
in China real estate industry has brought additional
uncertainly to the Group. It may also be more challenging
for the Group to refinance loans than it has historically
been. The Group may be unable to repay the loans
and senior notes in full when they fall due unless the
Group is able to generate sufficient cash inflows from
its future operations or disposal of the Group’s assets at
a reasonable price in an appropriate timeframe and to
renew or refinance the banking facilities and senior notes
upon maturity. All these facts and circumstances indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

B ZE202266A30H LEABA  AEH
EEXEFEBARKOOAMBTREE
EHREMEFBEARK25.64FE T
REaETEEERARKS7 62T
REBAEE ARKSISAMET KEH
MBI RESER R AEEPE
HANESEBEEF E-EXTE0RE
2021EFREM A BNHEMETEN
WEBREURTEHEEELSI
EQNBEEMETEEEREARESMN
Bh mfrmkihEARENER
(TR B EthE 5Bk 522022464
BESAHBAFSMXBBETHS
BECEEMBZERT]

i RR R A RO B R B BBt EE AT 3
BY R B 2 A< 52 B 75 R BR OD SRR TE M ©
AEESENBRETAIUELENES
BB -BRIFEAEEENERKE
BRUGEBEREEERBANHESR
EEEE ANIBARFR/BETHER
BAREBREELEREARETARA
BRAREB A SEEZN B ARFEHE
BERNBAEER  LHRBRERE
EEXRTHEEE  IENEAEBFE
EERIBE DB R E R RER ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

114

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) A LR (4H)
Material uncertainty related to going concern BILE¥ 0 45 8 FH B Y oK AS T s 1k
(continued) (%4)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given consideration to the future liquidity
of the Group and its available sources of finance in
assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. The directors
have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared
by management, which covers a period of at least 12
months from 30 June 2022. Certain plans and measures
are formulated to mitigate the liquidity pressures and to
improve its financial position which include, but not limited
to, the following:

(i)  The Group will continue to implement measures to
accelerate the pre-sales and sales of its properties
under development and completed properties held for
sale, and to speed up the collection of sales proceeds
and other receivables;

(i)  The Group will closely monitor the process of
construction of its property development projects
to ensure that construction and related payments
are fulfilled, the relevant properties sold under pre-
sale arrangement are completed and delivered to the
customers on schedule, such that the Group is able to
release restricted pre-sale proceeds as planned, while
maintaining more stringent cost control measures;

(i)  The Group will not commit on significant capital
expenditures and land acquisitions before securing
the necessary funding;

Central China Real Estate Limited #t %32 Bt £7 4 BR2A 1) | Interim Report 2022 #1015
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 f5HA4N DL R 51 HR)

1  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Material uncertainty related to going concern
(continued)

(iv)  On 1 June 2022, the Company, Joy Bright Investments
Limited (the immediate parent company of the
Company, “Joy Bright”) and Henan Tongsheng Zhiye
Co., Ltd. (“the Investor”) entered into a framework
agreement, pursuant to which, subject to the
execution of a definitive subscription agreement
between Joy Bright and the Investor, Joy Bright
would sell to the Investor 29.01% of the issued
share capital of the Company; and subject to the
execution of a definitive subscription agreement
between the Company and the Investor, the Investor
will subscribe for the convertible bonds due 2024 in
the principal amount of up to HK$708 million with
a coupon rate of 5% and a yield to maturity of 9%
issued by the Company. On 21 July 2022, Joy Bright
and Youdao Development International (Hong Kong)
Limited, a directly wholly owned subsidiary of the
Investor entered into the share sales and purchase
agreement and the investor agreed to acquire 29.01%
of the Company’s issued shares at a consideration of
HKD648 million. Subsequently on 5 August 2022, Joy
Bright provided a shareholder loan of the equivalent
amount upon the receipt of the consideration; and

(v) the Group will also continue to seek for bank loans
and other financing and borrowings to finance the
settlement of its existing financial obligations and
future operating expenditure.

1

o PLILHE (47)
AL A 4 T R B 1) oK A Tl o 1

(%4)
(iv)

R202256 518 KA T ~ RiER
BERRAB (RABIMNEREEA
g IRE) BrmEREXERR
’AT (TEEHE)) B ERH
Bt NREELEESERK
HEHEE BEFRREE D
EXRBBETRAN29.01%;
RAEARBEBREEZERKR
BiHar REERIBEEAR
B EITATENEBIBE7.08EETT
2024 F E| B mT AR E S  EE
MEEZ5% éIJHHH&”Zf’—W%
202278210 BEHEKE
EZER2ENBLREIAEHR
BREE (F48) BR2AE(Youdao
Development International (Hong
Kong) Limited)sTiZR D E B 1#

T KREEREBERBARIZ
29. O'I%E?’*??foﬁ RE#6.48
EAETT HEN202248H5H 7 B
EERKRIREREHRRZESE
HIRERER ; &

FEBRTREESKIBTERU
REMBEREE  UZNMHIRF
EMBEERRAREBERZ
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) A LR (4H)
Material uncertainty related to going concern BILE¥ 0 45 8 FH B Y oK AS T s 1k
(continued) (%4)

The plans and measures as described above incorporate
assumptions about future events and conditions. If the
above plans and measures are successful, the Group will
be able to generate sufficient financing and operating cash
flows to meet its liquidity requirements for at least the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
Based on the directors’ intentions and the cash flow
forecast mentioned above, the directors are of the opinion
that it is appropriate to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2022 on
a going concern basis. Should the Group not be able to
continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the interim financial information.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to this interim financial report
for the current accounting period:

. Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts —
cost of fulfilling a contract

None of these developments have had a material impact on
this interim financial report. The Group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 f5HA4N DL R 51 HR)

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WAR P iR
(a) Revenue (a) Wi

The principal activities of the Group are property
development, property leasing and hotel operations.
Revenue of the Group for the period is analysed as
follows:

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or service lines is
as follows:

FEENEIEXHFEYMEME
MEMERBEEE - HRAE
EN:SE &g in I

(i) WathY7 48
REIBERIAMRBEDE
ZEREMR@mWMT

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6A30HLEAER
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREETTT

Revenue from contracts with ERMEHREEN
customers within the scope of £155F&HER

HKFRS15 ERaW=E
Disaggregation by major products or %3 & & ol IRFS 48 ) 48
service lines
— Sales of properties —HEYE
— Revenue from hotel operations —RBEBELZE W E
— Revenue from project management —3K B8 H B EARTERY
service Y
- Others —H
Revenue from other sources Hhug e
- Rental income from investment —REYENESIWA
properties
— Rental income from properties for —&HFEYEMFASUTA
sale

7,017,562 19,417,567
89,408 165,599
21,267 566,363
100,450 115,626
7,228,687 20,265,155
65,025 70,078
6,840 21,673
71,865 91,751

7,300,552 20,356,906
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I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 Wiedi Beor iR (AF)
(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued) (a) Wik (38
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (continued) (i) Wwzmhy7 48 ()
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with B EIERA2E2E
customers by timing of revenue recognition is as FEHWmAT :
follows:

Six months ended 30 June

EE6H30HLLER
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT AREETT

Point in time BF R 2h
— Sales of properties —HEYZE 5,439,997 17,012,882
- Revenue from hotel operations — R EAE &SNS 89,408 165,599
— Others —Hfth 100,450 115,626
5,629,855 17,294,107
Over time B R ER
— Sales of properties —IHEYE 1,577,565 2,404,685
- Revenue from project management —3R B8 H & EARFHHY
service W = 21,267 566,363
- Rental income from investment —KEYENHEEUWA
properties 65,025 70,078
- Rental income from properties for —RHEYENESIA
sale 6,840 21,673
1,670,697 3,062,799
7,300,552 20,356,906
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting

()

(ii)

Products and services from which
reportable segments derive their revenue

Information reported to the Group’'s chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance is more focused on the Group
as a whole, as all of the Group’'s activities
are considered to be primarily dependent on
the performance on property development.
Resources are allocated based on what is
beneficial for the Group in enhancing its
property development activities as a whole
rather than any specific service. Performance
assessment is based on the results of the Group
as a whole. Therefore, management considers
there to be only one operating segment
under the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating
segments.

Geographic information

No geographical information is shown as the
revenue and profit from operations of the Group
is substantially derived from activities in the
PRC.

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

3

Wi Be 57 B s (BE)
(b) B

(i)

(i)

&7 1R B W 9
aa K IR %

EFRAEBRFEEERSE
BB IR DB KD 8 &N
FEMERELE RAE
REAEERAS —EB R
REXAREBEMNMAEEKS
BRATEEBYEHE
HER - EREERE TS
i 15 fa] & 2 & E 0 5 &
BBYEREEEEF mIE
RIFAE 45 EIRTS o BT
B ERAEENERE =
B-WMEBERAR BES
B BREERFRLE
DENRE  AEEEE—
(EES=bak

HEEH
i 3 7 S B 1O U 3 R 4SO
WF T B E AR
B UL R 2 SR B R o
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I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSSES)/ 4 HAW s B Al Of54E) WA
INCOME b ]

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30HLEREB
2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Other revenue Hithug
Interest income FMEUWA 28,235 109,167
Dividend income from equity securities RRZAEFHAIIZ BULA 2,324 3,900
Government grants BT f Bl 19,273 7,630
Others Hith 15,786 10,103
65,618 130,800
Other net (losses)/income Hith (§548) WA 358
Net realised and unrealised loss on REMEBSEER K
trading securities REREGEIEFE (10,457) (2,925)
Inventory write-down FEMR (1,736,096) (251,381)
Net loss on disposals of property, plant HE# ¥ B & ZFHEEPEE
and equipment (25,068) (12)
Net gain on deemed disposals and RIEHERHESE B
disposals of joint ventures W 55 B8 3,276 36,134
Net (loss)/gain on deemed disposals RIELERLENE AT
and disposals of subsidiaries (note 26)  (E518) U 358 (MizE26) (474,955) 380,135
Net gain on deemed disposals and RIEHERHERE AT
disposals of associates U & 73 58 - 8,486
Net exchange (loss)/gain SNEE (B518) W s P48 (91,192) 56,305
Penalty accruals FEEH SRR (276,952) (26,984)
Others Hih (8,931) (9,621)
(2,620,375) 190,137
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WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

RRBLIT () i Al
PRIRATHRAI B GEA) U TEE:

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6HA30HLENER
2022 2021
20224 20214E
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBETT AR®T T
(a) Finance costs (a) REERKZS
Interest on bank loans and other RTERREMEENH S
borrowings 1,163,617 1,158,334
Interest on lease liabilities HEAaENHE 21,038 19,608
Total interest expense on financial NABEESH T AERN
liabilities not at fair value through ERMEENEFERX
profit or loss 1,184,655 1,177,942
Interest accrued on advance EEBNRESFIE
payments from customers 715,159 1,214,418
Less: interest expense capitalised B ERREERYE
into properties EXMEBFIERE
under development (1,441,477) (2,057,639)
458,337 334,721
Net change in fair value of METENAREE
derivatives EEEE 11,454 129,635
469,791 464,356
(b) Other items (b) Hfthimg
Amortisation iy 9,787 4,861
Depreciation charge TEER
- owned property, plant and —BEYE- BB REHE
equipment 111,362 108,635
- right-of-use assets —fEREEE 22,806 41,828
Impairment losses on trade and 85  HtEWRIBE K
other receivables and BREENRERE
contract assets 327,129 35,110
Cost of properties sold EEWERK 6,565,831 16,371,267
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I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

6 INCOME TAX

(CZREE UL Y UN T | )

LEELS

Six months ended 30 June

HE6H30HIEREAR

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT

Current tax HEAFRIE
PRC Corporate Income Tax R ZEFTER 43,240 817,393
PRC Land Appreciation Tax FR R - A E AR 271,355 292,096
withholding tax SRR - 113,562
314,595 1,223,051

Deferred tax RIEFRIE
PRC Corporate Income Tax R FTEHR (100,015) (131,009)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax FR B - A E AR 29,985 (53,183)
(70,030) (184,192)
244,565 1,038,859
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WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

6

INCOME TAX (continued)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in the Cayman Islands.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for as
the Group has no estimated assessable profits in
Hong Kong.

PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The provision for CIT is based on the respective
applicable rates on the estimated assessable profits
of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC (“PRC
subsidiaries”) as determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC.

The PRC subsidiaries were subject to the actual
taxation method, charged CIT at a rate of 25% (2021:
25%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
period.

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

All income from the sale or transfer of state-owned
land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities
in the PRC is subject to LAT at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation of land
value, with an exemption provided for property sales
of ordinary residential properties (E@ZEFETE) if
their appreciation of land value do not exceed 20% of
the sum of the total deductible items.

Withholding tax

Withholding taxes are levied on the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong subsidiaries”)
in respect of dividend distributions arising from profit
of PRC subsidiaries earned after 1 January 2008 and
interest on inter-company balance received by Hong
Kong subsidiaries from PRC subsidiaries ranged from
5% t0 10%.

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

6

PS8t (4

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

RERSEESNRRIKER &
ANEBREMEAFSEEHE
A o

P 2 8 B 4 5 85 00 S A AT £ 3
FESRI A S R 3L B RIS
TR IE 18 o

rp R £ SR RSB (T
B
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B R FRGIEE) Mt & o
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ERER o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

7

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB5,605,323,000 (2021: profit
of RMB729,124,000) and the weighted average of
2,873,478,898 ordinary shares (2021: 2,844,797,169
shares) in issue during the interim period.

Diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share was based on
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB5,605,323,000 (2021: profit
of RMB729,124,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 2,873,478,898 (2021:
2,854,966,974 shares).

(i) (Loss)/Profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company (diluted)

(CZREE UL Y UN T | )

7

T O &R

(a)

(b)

T B 25 A s 4
STHEHESREABBELEREA
BEEERAARMGEEA
R 5,605,323,0007 (20214 :
m A AR #729,124,00070) K
AAHEETEBERNMEFE
) #2,873,478,8988% (20214 :
2,844,797,1698%) ©

T A 4 Y s 4
ERALATZEARIREA
FE(5 E5 8 A R #5,605,323,000
T (20214 @ H A AR K
729,124,0007c) Az & 48 B% B9 00
SEHE2,873,478,898P% (20214 :
2,854,966,9740%) st E & KR #EE
518 o

(i) ZRAEEBEREDFTEAE
14 (B578) 57 (1#8)

Six months ended 30 June

H#E68308 1L/ EA
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF AREFT
(Loss)/Profit attributable to equity ~ #EziFH AFEML (5Gi8)
shareholders (diluted) wmA (5E) (5,605,323) 729,124
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7 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 7 R OEE) BA &
(b) Diluted loss per share (continued) (b) TFRREEETE (4
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary (ii) ZERRAIIIHET 152 (4 5)

shares (diluted)

Six months ended 30 June

#HE6H30HLLAER
2022 2021
202245 20216
Weighted average number of ordinary  1R6B30H A Z @R
shares at 30 June T 2,873,478,898  2,844,797,169
Effect of deemed issue of ordinary RIERBARRA B BAE
shares under the Company's share SR B ERNET A
option scheme and share award BITEBERNEE
scheme - 10,169,805
Weighted average number of ordinary 165308 BV & &R
shares (diluted) at 30 June T HE (%) 2,873,478,898  2,854,966,974
8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 8 VI3~ Wil bkt
(a) Acquisitions and disposals of owned assets (a) W R s aA &R
During the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group B E20225 68308 LE/XER > &
acquired items of property, plant and equipment EEBEVE BERZEBEHR
with a cost of RMB114,612,000 (31 December 2021: KA ANRM114,612,0007T (2021
RMB478,997,000). Items of property, plant and F12H318 : AR 478,997,000
equipment with a net book value of RMB174,001,000 7T) & E2022F 68308 1E/X
(31 December 2021: RMB2,829,000) were disposed of BEAHEREFEAARE
during the six months ended 30 June 2022, resulting 174,001,000 cRI¥) % ~ B B %
in a net loss on disposal of RMB25,068,000 (2021: R (2021128310 : AR
RMB12,000). 2,829,0007T) » EAX L EFEIE

AR #25,068,0007C (20214 : A
R #12,0007T) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, properties
transferred from “property, plant and equipment” and
“inventories” to “investment property” were amounting
to RMB125,865,000 (2021. RMB323,428,000) and
RMB197,347,000 (2021: RMB358,953,000), respectively as a
result of change of use.

The valuations of investment properties were updated at
30 June 2022 by the Group’s independent valuer using the
same valuation techniques as were used by this valuer
when carrying out the December 2021 valuations. As a
result of the update, a net loss of RMB1,513,625,000 has
been recognised in profit or loss for the period.
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9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 9 BEAPE
Total
4t
RMB’000
AER®TIT
At 1 January 2022 52202251818 5,074,100
Transfer from property, plant and equipment HEME BEREE 125,865
Transfer from properties for sale EBREFEYE 197,347
Additions wE 96,114
Disposal HE (268,000)
Change in fair value NABEED (1,513,625)
At 30 June 2022 1220226 H30H 3,711,801

HE2022F6830HIENEB B ™Y
¥ BERRBINFEIEATKREY
= =72 Bl A A K #125,865,0007T
(20214 : AR #323,428,00070) &
AE#8197,347,0007t (20214 : AR#E
358,953,0007T) > Rl FA 3R S B R R ©

FEBBIUGEMNBHET20214
NBEEMBERNGEES EZEMR
BYER2022F6H308 L E - EH
®BER1SFEEARE1,513,625,0007T
Bt AE/Bme
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9

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 9 REAWEGEH)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment

properties

()

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as

follows:

Level 1 valuations:

BIRIGE(E ¢

Level 2 valuations:

F2MRIE1E ¢

Level 3 valuations:

SBIMRAE(E ¢

(a) BEAPEN A RfEEG R

(i) A[AEEER
TREJNEAEBNRKRSEH
RAREEMHEESENR
EMERAEBE BERBY
HBHREEHNFBIZRANE
BESEMEEN=ZRE27%
BERBRDE RABEES
BNDEEZAB2EME
MR ERE A BN
RUEREEMREE AW
i

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

ARBEEERS 1REBAEHE IRAEAREEENS R EE
TGP RERENRE

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available
NABEEBR2ZREA BIRFES 1RO TREEA) ;T2 BREA
BATAERBA - AOBREHAE R EESTHBEENRAEB

Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs
FREBATIHEHABTENLRAEBE
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(CZREE UL Y UN T | )

9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 9 BEWE G
(a) Fair value measurement of investment (a) PEAVENARMEESHR &)
properties (continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) KAABEER (E)
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2022 categorised into
12022568308
MARBEAENES
Fair value at
30 June 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
#2022
68308
MAREE F14R H24R F3
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETFT ARETFR AREFRT
Recurring fair value REMRABETE
measurement
Investment properties: REME
- In the PRC - REE 3,711,801 - - 3,711,801
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2021 categorised into
120215128318
NAAEEFEDEA
Fair value at
31 December
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
120215
12A31H
MARER F14R EVE ERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET T
Recurring fair value mERAREETE
measurement
Investment properties: REME
- Inthe PRC - RAE 5,074,100 - - 5,074,100
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9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (continued)

(1)

(i)

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

9 REAVE &)
(a) BREVEMARMMAR R &)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AABEER B
During the six months ended 30 June 2022, there B 220220 6H30H LE/< @
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, B B8R K E24 2 B
or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). The B BB ARE T E3IR
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between (20214 1 f®) - AEEW
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the BEDRELXNHKRSHR
reporting period in which they occur. BREALBEEH&K ZEN
& o
All of the Group’s investment properties were 2022868 30H 520214
revalued as at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 12831H AEEBFRERE
2021. The valuations were carried out by an YEHEEG - HEBRBIL
independent firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation HEMEHBME—KFE
and Professional Services Limited, who have HHEEREXERAR
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong NEET HETHEEE
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience HEMEEEFREE  NE
in the location and category of property being B RENFEARS
valued. The management has discussion with AR BEEENRETHERK
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions FEREHBPETHER
and valuation results when the valuation is B38| £ BT 59 5 B R &%
performed at each interim and annual reporting HEER-
date.
Information about Level 3 fair value (i) B=RAIABEEEN
measurements
Valuation Unobservable Weighted
techniques input Range average
fEER TABRBHA HE i RS
Investment properties Income capitalisation Daily market rent 0.411t07.82 2.89
in the PRC approach (RMB/sq.m.) (2021:0.41t0 8.55)  (2021: 3.55)
RARERNRENE BAB ARG SHTRHES
(NRE/FHK)
Capitalisation rates 4.0% to 7.0% 5.78%
BAX (2021:4.0% t0 7.0%) (2021: 5.9%)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(CZREE UL Y UN T | )

BRAE (A
(a) BREVEMARMMAE R &)

9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 9
(a) Fair value measurement of investment

130

properties (continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value (ii) SRAABEFEEN
measurements (continued) (#&)
In undertaking the valuation of investment RETHEMEGEER B
properties, the independent firm of surveyors THEMEFMEERB

Central China Real Estate Limited #t %32 Bt £7 4 BR2A 1) | Interim Report 2022 #1015

have mainly adopted the income capitalisation
approach whereby the rental incomes of
contractual tenancies are capitalised for the
unexpired terms of tenancies. They have
also taken into account the reversionary
market rents after the expiry of tenancies in
capitalisation. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the market rent and
negatively correlated to the capitalisation rates.

The movements during the period in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are set
out in note 9.

Fair value adjustment of investment property is
recognised in the line item “net valuation (loss)/
gain on investment property” on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

All the gain/loss recognised in profit or loss for
the period arise from the properties held at the
end of the reporting period.

WABEE REHELN
BY A8 = WA BL R JE i B 1
MIRREITE AR - WETR
EREXCEANIPEN
BRMHBEE RABES
BHEMIGHETIERR HE
R EERE

ZEBIMBAABEFEN
BR 8 7 HE P B9 2 B 0 B
5590

REEEHMENAAEE
REBSAGGREaRKRE
MENGE (EBR) RmF
LERREISD

KRB PEINAAE
B@ARERREBARFT
BERE-



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

10 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

10 W% 2w b

At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
6830H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AEBEF T
Share of net assets BB EZFE 242,650 160,200
Amounts due from associates JFE U Bt =t A B FRIE 388,782 48,557
631,432 208,757
11 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES BEHEAR
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
1220224 120214
6830H 12B31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFx AREF T
Share of net assets (R E EFE 2,303,739 2,700,666
Amounts due from joint ventures BN & &R ERIE 5,028,547 6,803,631
7,332,286 9,504,297
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

11 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Central China Real Estate Limited #t %32 Bt £7 4 BR2A 1) | Interim Report 2022 #1015

Deemed disposal of joint ventures in step
acquisitions

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, the
Group entered into equity transfer agreements with
respective joint venturers to acquire additional equity
interests. Upon completion of the above transactions,
these joint ventures became subsidiaries of the
Group.

The net gain of RMB3,276,000 (2021: RMB36,134,000)
on deemed disposals of these joint ventures was
recognised in profit or loss during the period, by
remeasuring the Group’s previously held equity
interests in these entities at the acquisition date fair
value.

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from joint ventures included
amount of RMB121,012,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB1,170,671,000) which are interest-bearing at
10% — 12% per annum, unsecured and have no fixed
terms of payment. The remaining amounts due from
joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of payment. They are expected to be
recovered after more than one year.

(CZREE UL Y UN T | )

11 SEEERELR &)
(a) BifEdH W A ESE

1563

B E2022F6830H LEER - &
EEBEEAE XK EEE
5% 2 LA UK B BB 90 IR © BR 5E
TR GB ZEEELENS
AEEBKBAT

BERENtEAERBERZS
EECERANRETKREEN
NEE R BIEHEZSE
BB 09 Uk 2P 88 A R #53,276,0007T
(20214 : AE"836,134,0007T)
PRI FERR o

(b) MEWE R KR

FERaeaErERBEBARE
121,012,0007% (2021512831
H: AR#¥1,170,671,00070) 2%
EFTRI0%E12%5T B~ EFIF R
EEEENP - EREERENR
BERBEAERF - REREET
BRB ZEREERRENBS
—F B[ o



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 f5HA4N DL R 51 HR)

12 INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS 12 AR AL S AR A
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
420224 20214
65308 128318
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBETTT

Inventories =78
— Properties held for future —FIEREHBERERGTEYE
development and under
development for sale 88,075,223 79,006,969
— Completed properties held for sale —RFEGFENBEBTYE 6,554,351 8,402,943
- Others —H 77,709 50,247
94,707,283 87,460,159
Other contract costs Ht &4 4 344,435 324,086
95,051,718 87,784,245
As at 30 June 2022, the Group’'s inventories of R2022F 68300 AEB AR
RMB624,149,000 (31 December 2021: RMB4,673,099,000) 624,149,000t 7F & (2021412831
were pledged as securities of joint ventures’ loans. H: AR%4,673,099,0007T) AR & &

EEEBRBIERER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

13§ 5 B Fo Al WK R

At At

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20224 R20214
6H30H 12HB31H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARBETTT

Trade debtors and bills receivable, net of loss  FEURBR R FEIRZ 4

allowance NERIBRER 91,697 92,142
Other debtors Hh FEULER X 1,747,768 1,893,364
Amounts due from joint ventures BN & & BERIE 133,936 173,192
Amounts due from associates FE W Bt & A Bl FRIE 3,744 4,021
Amounts due from entities controlled by the JE U R R 4% 122 AR B BR 42

ultimate controlling shareholder NEfE 218 198,485 112,242
Amounts due from entities jointly controlled FEU B AL R BG BR BR A #7

by a close family member of the ultimate HEZEGNER 2 MIE

controlling shareholder 3,095 4,578
Amounts due from non-controlling interests FE WL I 422 G A 2 TR TE 3,362,956 3,405,521
Financial assets measured at amortised cost B AT EN SR

BE 5,541,681 5,685,060
Derivative financial instruments TTEEmITHE
- redemption call options embedded in senior  — &% ZE & FrMTAIEE D]
notes SOEEHARE 7,081 17,963
5,548,762 5,703,023
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 f5HA4N DL R 51 HR)

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13 ©5) R ARG m (45

Amounts due from joint ventures and non-controlling
interests are unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
terms of repayment.

Amounts due from entities controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholder mainly represented amounts

B EEEERIFERESENIESE
TR B BT EEEERHAR -

B RRIERRRIZEFNERRIEET
BEAEBRREHENAE BIERHAt

MERBHME ZFENESERR
RGIRBEE ORGSR

in relation to the lease, hotel and other miscellaneous
services provided by the Group, which are unsecured and
to be settled according to the contract terms.

BREELERBRERIT IZER
KB%ZE12%5t B RIEMN —FREE -

Amounts due from joint venturers are unsecured, interest-
bearing at 8%-12% per annum and expected to be repaid
within one year.

(a) JRE:5 Wi
RN R 5 & B 5 & W IB 1R 5 2
R (HWmERE URE
ERE) URNBRAREFEREN

(a) Aging analysis
The ageing analysis of bills and trade receivables,
based on the invoice date (or date of revenue
recognition, if earlier) and net of loss allowance, is as

follows: ERECDATAT ¢
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
7202245 20214
6830H 128318
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
Within 3 months EEA 57,062 56,302
3 to 6 months 3@ B Z61E B 18,955 20,363
6 to 12 months 6fE B =128 B 10,103 11,827
Over 1 year 1EM 5,577 3,650
91,697 92,142

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due upon the FEW AR A FE N IR 1E B S 20T
invoicing. E=[p:i0
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(CZREE UL Y UN T | )

14 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
At 30 June 2022, the balance included deposits and
prepayments for leasehold land for development
purpose of RMB9,678,477,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB11,502,378,000), which will be transferred to inventory
upon the registration of the ownership interest in the land.

%8 B W%

R2022F 68301 » #5555 1ERD &
ARZHEAETHZEREMRARE
9,678,477,0007% (2021 12831H : A
E2#511,502,378,0007T) » FA B 5E LAY
FRAEEREREEEETFS

14

15 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 15 SZRUBISRAT 14 %

At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
420224 20214
6H30H 128B31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®TF T

Guarantee deposits in respect of: BEATHEENRESE .

- mortgage loans related to —MEHENZIBENR
property sale 2,077,027 1,973,270
— bills payable — BN ER 808,387 1,972,896
2,885,414 3,946,166

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 BlERIEFED
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
1220224 120214
6830H 12B31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARTFIT
Cash and cash equivalents in the TR AR RIRERERTP
statement of financial position and NIREKRIREEEY

cash flow statement 3,622,412 5,901,642
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 5 9% B 5 )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

17

BANK LOANS

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

17

(a) As at 30 June 2022, bank loans were repayable

AT fi K

(a) JR20224E6 H30H * BATHS

as follows: BB HM P :
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20224 202146
68308 128318
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETIT
Within 1 year or on demand TFERNAREREE 3,341,460 2,399,050
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEBBE2ER 2,048,322 1,077,560
After 2 years but within 5 years 2B B5F N 1,344,856 1,314,005
After 5 years S5&1& 158,600 159,000
3,551,778 2,550,565
6,893,238 4,949,615

(b) As at 30 June 2022, the bank loans were secured

(b) JR20225E6 H30H > SRATHT X

as follows: RIHCHR DS D P :
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
1120224 20214
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AREF T

Bank loans RITER

- secured —HigH 6,854,238 4,910,615
— unsecured — K 39,000 39,000
6,893,238 4,949,615
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

17 BANK LOANS (continued) 17 BT 5
(c) As at 30 June 2022, the secured bank loans are (c) J*20225E6 H30H » fi fkHi i

secured over equity interest in subsidiaries of A3 Ae K BAAS 5 1 B 2 w1

the Group and other assets as follows: HE e B Al o 3 P 840 > SR 4

B

At At

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

?20224% 7220214

6H30H 12831H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARBETTT

Properties for sale FEME 7,840,352 5,313,645
Property, plant and equipment L IEN Y -] 1,135,395 781,856
Investment property KREYE 202,598 =

9,178,345 6,095,501
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 5 9% B 5 )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

18

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

OTHER LOANS 18 HAfi=%
(a) As at 30 June 2022, other loans were repayable (a) JiR20225E6 H30H > HAL =%
as follows: MEH@M T :
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
1220224 120214
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T ARET T
Within 1 year 1ER 2,420,400 1,201,760
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEBBE2ER 149,000 319,000
After 2 years but within 5 years 2B B5F N 1,000 1,000
150,000 320,000
2,570,400 1,521,760

(b) As at 30 June 2022, the other loans were secured

(b) JR20226E6 301 » HALIEE

as follows: [(UE1% 8 74 (1
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
720224 20214
6830H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T

Other loans HMER

- secured — Bk 2,570,400 1,407,700
— unsecured — g - 114,060
2,570,400 1,521,760
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

18 OTHER LOANS (continued) 18 HAWfEk 47
(c) As at 30 June 2022, the secured other loans are (c) Ji*20224E6 H30H » A HiHp H

i £ K LA AS 5 1 B 2 ) R

Tt B Lt 5 2 A 4 > SRS

secured over interests in subsidiaries of the
Group and other assets as follows:

i
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
6830H 12831H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®FT AEBETIT
Properties for sale FEME 4,845,175 2,536,217
Property, plant and equipment L EN T =YSE 347,048 324,877
5,192,223 2,861,094
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 5 Be A HE T =K H
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20224 R20214
6H30H 12831H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®T T
Trade creditors and bills payable FET AR FE (T 235 32,990,797 32,832,477
Other creditors and accrued charges HtENRARESTER 7,187,132 6,501,449
Amounts due to joint ventures B & & hERIE 1,511,056 5,926,640
Amounts due to associates FEH & A B IE 138,119 146,532
Amounts due to entities controlled by — FE{T HI SR AR 1= RG RS BR #2461 A9
the ultimate controlling shareholder B IE 1,773,546 1,345,035
Amounts due to non-controlling FE(T IR I N IB
interests 5,463,501 4,668,657
Financial liabilities measured at BEHEMASTENETHMEE
amortised cost 49,064,151 51,420,790
Other tax payables H R IE 2,558,837 3,319,574
51,622,988 54,740,364
Amounts due to joint ventures and associates are EBHaEhxREERABRIBEASRIE

unsecured, interest-free and have
payment.

no fixed terms of
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 19 =5 R AR W (&)

142

Amounts due to entities controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholder mainly included amount due to
Central China New Life Limited B E#FHEEBRAT
(“Central China New Life") together with its subsidiaries of
RMB1,279,925,000 (31 December 2021: RMB1,006,233,000)
and amount due to DIT Group Limited SR RER K EH
BRAR (“Drawin Intelligent Manufacture”) together with
its subsidiaries of RMB493,621,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB336,197,000), for receiving services from these entities
as disclosed in note 25, which are interest free, unsecured
and to be settled according to the contract terms.

Amounts due to non-controlling interests included amount
of RMB1,387,000 (31 December 2021. RMB180,043,000)
which are unsecured, interest bearing at 9%~14% (31
December 2021: 12%~14%) per annum and repayable
within 1 year. The remaining amounts due to non-
controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of payment.

The amount of financial guarantees issued expected to
be recognised as income after more than one year is
RMB9,890,000 (2021: RMB11,123,000).
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ENHRRERREZHNNEE
MREFZGERZWRRD MmE
NREMEZTBERLAE (TEEMN
£F) ERHENBRAEREAER
#1,279,925,0007¢ (2021412831
H: AR%1,006,223,00070) K FE
EREEHNFEEEERR2E (TE LK
BE)) EREWBRAEREBEBARE
493,621,0007T (20214128310 : AR
#%336,197,0007T) (RERKIEE25) > A
MREARE BIEREBRESOK

oy fath yem
TEIE o

ENEEREZRESEARE
1,387,0007T (20214128318 | AR
#180,043,0007z) > # FILIF ~ F2 FF)
FI%ZE14% (2021F12831H : 12%=E
14%) st ERBR—FRERER -HiRE
NEERETREARIEF - 2EX
mE TR

TEHRENBE—EBRBABRANE
BHBBERSEAS ARE,890,000
75 (20214 © AR #11,123,0007T) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FR% A f5IAAN > LLA R 51 HR)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
(a) Aging analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade creditors and bills payables based on

19

¥ 5 b JLAt RE 1+ K 0 (4)

(a) MR Wi

RBRERR REZEZAHES
P& A BR AR % FE AT IR BOBR &S 0 A

the invoice date is as follows: wm
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
1220224 20214
6H30H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT
Within 3 months EEA 15,924,081 17,420,384
3-6 months 388 E6EH 3,184,464 4,777,432
6-12 months EVEEIVAENS 7,590,841 5,851,222
Over 12 months 12BHA L E 6,291,411 4,783,439
32,990,797 32,832,477
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I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(CZREE UL Y UN T | )

20 SENIOR NOTES 20

R

Liability component of the Senior Notes:

BARBERED !

At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
6H30H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETFT AREETIT
US$500 million due in August 2022 202298 H I HASE =T 3,350,257 3,160,096
US$300 million due in April 2023 2023F48 BIfA3E =TT 2,004,236 1,899,358
US$200 million due in November 2023 2023118 2| #i2E &7t 1,316,949 1,249,026
US$400 million due in August 2023 2023F8H I HAAE =TT 2,674,144 2,536,964
US$200 million due in July 2024 20247 B EIEA2E =TT 1,334,113 1,265,947
US$300 million due in August 2024 20248 F BIHA3EE T 1,942,531 1,843,349
US$300 million due in May 2024 202458 B HA3E =T 1,988,065 1,887,026
US$260 million due in July 2025 2025578 EIHB2. 612 =TT 1,716,220 1,626,872
16,326,515 15,468,638

Representing: g
- Current —mE 5,354,493 3,160,096
- Non-current —3EmE 10,972,022 12,308,542
16,326,515 15,468,638

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Company
did not redeem any outstanding senior note nor issue

senior notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 5 9% B 5 )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends

()

(ii)

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

21 EA R R

(a) BE
Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) AT EmfFEAR
attributable to the interim period RE
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
1220224F 7220214
6H30H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AR®T T
Interim dividend declared after the — FREBHARI %2 EIRAY A EA
interim period: Nil (2021 interim: B2 (202158 ¢
HK$14.75 cents (equivalent to SR EBER14.7581U
RMB12.27 cents) per ordinary HEERARK
share) 12.27453)) - 364,168

The interim dividend has not been recognised as
a liability at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
attributable to the previous financial year,

PR EHR R B IR
BRRERE

(i) FRAH BB IFE
AW E—HBFERE -

approved during the interim period:

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30HLEAEB
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%FT ARBTT
Final dividend in respect of the T BEERBRE
previous financial year, approved Rt E  SREER
during the following interim period, 2.703&1l FEZER AR
of HK$2.70 cents (equivalent to 2.219) (B E2021F68
RMB2.21 cents) (six months ended  30H LE/NE B : 26.807%
30 June 2021: HK$26.80 cents il FBER AR #22.65
(equivalent to RMB22.65 cents)) )
per ordinary share 66,307 663,039
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 ARG RER (&)
(continued)
(b) Equity Settled Share-Based Transaction (b) BIHER &S ROy B IE R 2 5
(i) Share option schemes (i) FEREZ
The number and the weighted average exercise BEBREHERMNEFIET
price of share options are as follows: fFEENT .
2022 2021
20224 20214
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
mEEH iRt S
I#E BRExE 1fEE BREHE
HKS$ HKS
BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January B1B1B RERTE 3.98 77,984,000 3.67 108,050,000
Exercised during RER/ ERTE
the period/year - - 2.71 (26,066,000)
Forfeited/lapsed during IR,/ K3
the period 2.56 (100,000) 4.05 (3,500,000)
Outstanding at 30 June R6B30H W RITHE 3.99 77,884,000 3.97 78,484,000
Exercisable at 30 June R6B30H A F171E 3.99 77,884,000 4.09 63,684,000
The options outstanding at 30 June 2022 had a R2022FE 68308 # K17
weighted average exercise price of HK$3.99 (30 BB EMEEEITEES
June 2021: HK$3.97) and a weighted average 3.997% 7t (2021FE6830F :
remaining contractual life of 5.53 years (30 June 3.97787T) K N #E 35 F &R
2021: 6.49 years). BHFEHRA5.534F (202146

B30 : 6.494F) o

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, no B E2022FE6830H L/~ @
options (2021: 26,066,000) were exercised to B> #miTEDRELRRN G
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company. ZimRRREERRE (20214 ¢

26,066,0001%) ©
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WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(b) Equity Settled Share-Based Transaction
(continued)

(ii) Share award scheme

On 21 December 2020, the Company announced
the share award scheme to grant 108,000,000
shares to 216 employees, which was subject to
such employees’ acceptance.

During January and February 2021, 201
employees accepted the share award and
subscribed an aggregate of 95,950,000 restricted
shares at total consideration of HK$227,856,000.
The restricted shares are subject to service and
performance vesting conditions, with 20% of the
granted shares vested every year on and after
the first anniversary of the grant date during the
next five years.

Movements in the number of outstanding share
award scheme are as follows:

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

PO it BB e (28)
(b) LAREZR&SSE D) 25 SEHERI 22 55

(i) R17EEREE

120205128218 > XA F
N EREE > 216
% B &% 1108,000,0004%
Rip HERFZEREEW
BILEIEE

R2021F 1B %28 > 2014
BERMRKRMER S E
DL 4B {8227,856,00078 7T
RS £95,950,000/2 3 [
BB 17 o 32 PR HI B 15 B FE AR
BhRETEBEREERE
FEEE MRARREFEH
BEENE—EEFERHE
BEERB20BNER LR

e

4 51T 6 A 13 B2 D 3t B B
B@EmT

Number of

restricted

shares

= BRI 19

# B

At 1 January 2021 R2021FE181H =

Granted during the year FREH 95,950,000

Lapsed during the year FRERH (1,250,000)
At 31 December 2021 and R2021FE12B31H &

1 January 2022 2022FE181H 94,700,000
Vested and transferred HRERBREEE

during the period (19,020,000)

Forfeited during the period BRI (8,680,000)

At 30 June 2022 120226 830H 67,000,000

Interim Report 2022 H1}§1#i+% | Central China Real Estate Limited & 330 3 B 7 75 B2 v

147



148
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I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(CZREE UL Y UN T | )

22 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 22 B THMAREFAGHR
INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (a) B2 sefE A sl 0 4 il By
value s
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (i) XAEBEER

The following table presents the fair value of TR TAEBE R IR S
the Group's financial instruments measured at AEREMHEEFENE
the end of the reporting period on a recurring BTEAAEE BT
basis, categorized into the three-level fair value TERBEADTBYERS
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value ZREI3FRABESE
measurement. The level into which a fair value FMAEN=BEAREEE
measurement is classified is determined with o nnBESEFMEEN
reference to the observability and significance BTS2 RBUTHES X
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as Fr Ao A s p n] B2 72
follows: EREEHERET .

- Level 1 valuations:

B—MRIGME

- Level 2 valuations:

B MREE

- Level 3 valuations:

B IREHE

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

ERAF—RBARE DRGEEMEREENERINEERTEN
REHABRESAELAEE

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available

RRAS-RIBARE IRETEE—RINAITHERGARBBAERL
AEE BUARBEATNATREZDABE TABHRBARBIERE
BTG EEE

Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.
RAEARTOHRRGABBSAEANEBE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (continued)

()

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group has a team headed by the finance
controller performing valuations for the
financial instruments, mainly the unlisted equity
securities. The team reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. A
valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at
each interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer.

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

22

E TR A iR G

(a) BAZ FufE i vt ok 1) <5 o0 e
i ()
(i) RAEEER (B

AEENIBAVBEBRES
BENERHERIA (X2
BIFLHEERS) BT
B -mEEREEREFEME
EREBERZZEGRE - &H
BReTHKEERSH
HERBEEONMANEE
STEE2FNMGERS LH
BEMBEBERRAE-

Fair value measurements
as at 30 June 2022 categorised into
#2022 6A30H 2 A R BEHEREA

Fair value at
30 June 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
#2022
6A30H2Z
AREE F— B B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETR AREFT AR#TR
Recurring fair value REUARABETE
measurements
Financial assets: EHEE.
Trading securities: RAMES
- Listed equity securities in —EBLMRRES
Hong Kong 45,320 45,320 - -
Other financial assets: HtEpEE .
- Non-trading listed equity —ERFH LRSS
securities 12,824 12,824 - -
- Unlisted equity securities —FrmREES 666,256 - - 666,256
Derivative financial instruments: 74 £8IE :
— Redemption call options -BOBEEEIEAE
embedded in senior notes 7,081 - 7,081 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

22 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued)

22

Sk TR A R G

(a) BAZ Fuf 4 vt ok 1) <5 o0t e

i ()
(i) RAEEER (B

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2021 categorised into
RNE12BINBZANEBENEREA

Fair value at
31 December
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F20214F
1283182
NABE F— B8 E=8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETFT AREFT AREFTT
Recurring fair value mERAREETNE
measurements
Financial assets: FHEE:
Trading securities: RAMES
- Listed equity securities in —EELMERES
Hong Kong 53,647 53,647 = =
Other financial assets: HtSpEE .
- Non-trading listed equity —ERFME ERES
securities 20,963 20,963 - -
- Unlisted equity securities —FLmEGES 651,086 - - 651,086
Derivative financial instruments:  #74£8TE :
— Redemption call options —BEBLERIREHE
embedded in senior notes 17,963 - 17,963 -
During the six months ended 30 June 2022, there REZE20225F6830H 1L/

were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

150 cCentral China Real Estate Limited 33 i@ B 7 % B 23 7 | Interim Report 2022 Yl &

BR E—REE MM
WEREE TESBAS=
R E B = RERE T (2021
FE) - AEBZBERAN
WESEEZRESHRES
BERABEERZENE
Bo



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 22
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

E TR A iR G

(a) BAZ FufE i vt ok 1) <5 o0 e

fuld &)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in (ii)

Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of redemption call options in Level
2 are determined by assessing the difference
between the fair value of the senior notes by
quoted price and the pure bond value.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts and foreign exchange rate swap
contracts in Level 2 are determined by
discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate. The discount
rate used is derived from the relevant interest
rate swap and cross currency basis swap yield
curve as at the end of the reporting period plus
an adequate credit spread.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the
estimated amount that the Group would receive
or pay to terminate the swap at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account current
interest rates and the current creditworthiness
of the swap counterparties.

For Level 2 financial assets at fair value at
profit or loss (“FVPL"), fair values are generally
obtained through the use of valuation
methodologies with observable market inputs or
by reference to recent transaction prices.

REZRAREETEIRE
ZIEETAZRBA S

e 55 = A B [0] 50 B B AR Y
AREE HFEELERE
REEBAENAAEBER
MESBEZEAEZERE

E o

E_MINEERS ORI
EEXISHGONAAE
BNHEGNERERME
RMOBRRTANAEXEE
EeEANMBERASREH
AEFAMNEEAKRER IR
AR Z W m RN LEE
HMEEREMSE -

FMRBHNARBERTS
FEBRBEHAR KER
ERMEXREREF N
EREENT R WE LS
T L= AR BT 88 -

ME_MURAEBEFE
BHEZFHFABHEZ (T2
RHEBEESFEBEHEZHFTA
EfEm) NEMBEEM
S ARBE-—REBER
HEREBAEIBRETS
WMABE) HASERAXS
BREH-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

22 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 22 g T HMAREEGHR 3

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of non-publicly traded
equity investments as of 30 June 2022 of
RMB666,256,000 in Level 3 is determined
by reference to the net asset value of these
investments.

The movement during the period in the balance
of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

(a) B2 sefE A sl 0 4 il By
faf 4)
(iii) BRAE=ZRBAIAIEBEFZZ
B E202256H30H =
BIELABERZERTEN
NABEARIK666,256F
T2 EZEREZEE
FEMETE -

HARE=ZMAREES
BEFRNEFHBERNOT -

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
20224 20214
68308 64308
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBETTT

Unlisted equity securities: JELETEERBS

At 1 January K181H

Additional securities acquired Fir U BB BY RE S 58 5

Net unrealised gains or losses AR EME2EEE
recognised in other comprehensive  FERAYR IR UL 5
income during the period W EIERER

At 30 June R6H30H

Total gains or losses for the period HRIBESHAKRITANEE

651,086 477,686
15,170 21,546
666,256 499,232

included in profit or loss stAEmEAR WS

for assets held at the end o E5 I8 4B 5
of the reporting period
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FR% A f5IAAN > LLA R 51 HR)

22 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 22 R THMARERESHR 3
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (a) BLZ sefE i Gl 00 4 il Be
value (continued) s 4)
(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value (iii) BRAB=RAALBEFZEZ
measurements (continued) B (#)
Any gains or losses arising from the FEERBEENREAN
remeasurement of the Group’s unlisted equity RAEMHEEEBSFENTE
securities held for strategic purposes are i 2 4 B9 1E o] W = 3% 5 38
recognised in the fair value reserve (non- REM2EE P ESDS
recycling) in other comprehensive income. Upon ARABEFEE CRAIEE) -
disposal of the equity securities, the amount REmEsHER Htha
accumulated in other comprehensive income is HWREPRFAREHEEZE
transferred directly to retained earnings. AREBBH o
(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at (b) a2 el fa A 4 1 2
other than fair value Z 2 ufEfi
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial R2021F12831H &20225F6 8
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were 308 - A& B 42 BY A 5K 3 85 AR A
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 FIRMNESMT A REEEER
December 2021 and 30 June 2022. NEEHEEEKRDH
23 COMMITMENTS 23 7R
Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2022 not 11202256 530H o i # ;2 b HA B FS R
provided for in the interim financial report: EREFHEENRBITHNEARKEDN
B
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
220224 20214
6H30H 12831H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Capital commitments for property YMEBRENEARRKE

development
- Authorised but not contracted for —BREBHRTH 72,229,480 71,140,158
— Contracted but not provided for — BN E R R IEHEE 18,356,099 18,032,775

90,585,579 89,172,933
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 5B AN » DL R F1ER)

24 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

(a) Guarantees given to financial institutions

for mortgage facilities granted to buyers of

the Group's, joint ventures’ and associates’

properties

The Group, joint ventures and associates provide
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks in connection with the mortgage
loans entered into by buyers of properties. Pursuant
to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default
of the mortgage payments by these buyers, the
Group, joint ventures and associates are responsible
to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together
with any accrued interests and penalties owed
by the defaulted buyers to banks. The Group's,
joint ventures’ and associates’ guarantee periods
commence from the dates of grants of the relevant
mortgage loans and end after the buyers obtain the

24 WO

(a)

SR A R~ 5B R E
A n]PSE H R R IR EK
S LB 1 9

FEE -GECERBE QTN
ETRITAMEESFIRMAN
RIBERELIER - RIFEFRIF
oM EE KR ILIBAR
AAER cERERBEAT
ARRTEEXCHNZEERA
AR ERERERIEITE
MBS - AEE -GELEER
BMERATNEFRPBARZREBE
ML ARG RERESEMR
BEMENERERIBRER-
12022668308 /MEBE R

ERRBERMARITIR HERHE

individual property ownership certificates of the fREFEUWT .
properties purchased. The amount of guarantees
given to banks for mortgage facilities granted to
the buyers of the properties at 30 June 2022 are as
follows:
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20225 1220214
6H30H 128318
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBET T
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage FEIEFTUTRIEE AL
facilities granted to buyers of: BEREIBITIELIER !
— the Group's properties —KREBEYE 51,775,424 53,297,798
- the joint ventures’ and associates’ —BEPERERT
properties LYES
(the Group's shared portion) (REEDEHZBD) 3,159,110 3,248,579
54,934,534 56,546,377
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

24 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE (continued)
(a) Guarantees given to financial institutions

for mortgage facilities granted to buyers of
the Group's, joint ventures’ and associates’
properties (continued)

The directors do not consider it is probable that the
Group, joint ventures and associates will sustain
a loss under these guarantees during the periods
under guarantees as the Group, joint ventures and
associates have not applied for individual property
ownership certificates for these buyers and can
take over the ownership of the related properties
and sell the properties to recover any amounts paid
by the Group, joint ventures and associates to the
banks. The Group, joint ventures and associates
have not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as its fair value is considered
to be minimal by the directors. The directors also
consider that the fair market value of the underlying
properties is able to cover the outstanding mortgage
loans guaranteed by the Group, joint ventures and
associates in the event that the buyers default
payments to the banks.

(B 55 A fa Ak > DN RS HR)

24 WBEDR (B
(a) MEmIASEE - 5B EERBGE

A n] P H R R IR E K
SRS IR AR (B

HRAEER sECERBER
Bl AR F ERPHE R ER
B WA ERERBEYEMARER
HEERRYE  LURHAEE
GETERBEATMIRITX
THEARE RESBREE
E-cEEERBEATN TR
EERNREHERERERER
HEERRZERFRNAAEE
R A EE cERERB
BB EESE W FIER
ERELERA -BEFTRD M
B R BT HEMEDN
AFHEEHABBEREENHE
EE - SERERBEATER
AIZIBE R
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I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

24 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE (continued)
(b) Guarantees given to financial institutions for

(c)

Central China Real Estate Limited #t %32 Bt £7 4 BR2A 1) | Interim Report 2022 #1015

bank loans and other loans granted to joint
ventures and associates:

The Group provided guarantees to bank loans
and other loans of joint ventures and associates
amounting to RMB3,051,863,000 as at 30 June
2022 (31 December 2021: RMB6,521,705,000). The
Group closely monitors the repayment progress
of the relevant loans by those joint ventures and
associates. At the end of the reporting period,
the directors do not consider it is probable that
claims will be made against the Group under these
guarantees.

Guarantee given to Henan Hongdao

On 24 December 2019, the Group entered into
an arrangement to provide guarantee to Henan
Hongdao Business Information Consultancy Co., Ltd.
AR SAEEFE BB R AE ("Henan Hongdao”),
the entity controlled by Mr. Wu Po Sum, in respect
of Henan Hongdao five-year bank loan amounting to
RMB500,000,000, with annual guarantee fee at 1% of
the principal amount outstanding.

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, financial
guarantee income of RMB2,500,000 was recognised
(2021: RMB10,103,000).

(CZREE UL Y UN T | )

24 WBEOR (B
(b) ¥MTZFEBEERGFEAFM

(c)

SRAT ARk B LAt A5 53 v <5 i B3t
RRPE I OR

2022568308 > A& & E &
EELERBEATDNRITE
MEREMERREEFRARE
3,051,863,0007% (2021412831
H: AR#6,521,705,00075) ° s
EERYERZEGE b ERE
ENBEBEERNEREE R
REPR EETFABEEEBFTK
AIAEAZ SR RMEERR

1) ) v 50 3 B e O
R2019F 128248 » &R EE 5T
ULHMABPERLSEZSDN
BRI MAERBEELAE
[RAB (MAmAE)) AR
500,000,0007c Y H FHAR T B =X
(FEEGRERAXREELREN
1%) B/ A IR EIER o

B E2022F6830H ILE/NER >
B IERIA A R #2,500,0007T
(20214 : AR 10,103,0007T)
B R o



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FR% A f5IAAN > LLA R 51 HR)

25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25 HOKBHET 25
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed PRAPETEREEMI DTKEDN
elsewhere in this interim financial report, other material R REEERIN B E 20225 6830H 1k
related party transactions entered by the Group during the NER o AEEET I 2 H & oA R B
six months ended 30 June 2022 are as follows: ERZWMTF .

At At

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

1420224 20214

6H30H 12H31H

Note RMB'000 RMB’'000

Wit ARBFT ARBTT

Project management service income
from joint ventures or associates
License fee from entities controlled by

the ultimate controlling shareholder
Interest income from joint ventures
Receiving service from entities

controlled by the ultimate

controlling shareholder

Rental income from entities jointly
controlled by a close family
member of the ultimate controlling

shareholder

REGELFAMELTHNEE

BERBBA - 2,533
TEREERRERZERNEEN

SFO& @) 7,500 -
REGERENFEIWA ) 4,056 52,451

B & AR R iR SR I I BB R WUR TS

Hotel and other miscellaneous income 2K B R RIRTIZHIMSHE

from entities controlled by the
ultimate controlling shareholder
Directors’ and chief executive's

emoluments

()d) (1,043,633) (897,037)
REBHRRERRRN—2IIH
HEZEHERNHSIRA
(G 4,110 2,331
B R E A RETR A
(c) 4,332 10,384
EERERATEME
(6,517) (18,424)
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I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Notes:

(a

Central China Real Estate Limited #t %32 Bt £7 4 BR2A 1) | Interim Report 2022 #1015

On 13 May 2021, the Group and CCMGT entered into a
license agreement (the “Trademark Licensing Agreement”)
in respect of “#%" (“Jianye") and related trademarks for
an initial term of ten years after the listing date. Pursuant
to the license agreement, the Group charged licensing fees
since 31 May 2021, the listing date of CCMGT in the following
manner: (i) for the first three years: RMB15,000,000 per
annum,; (ii) for the fourth to sixth year: RMB20,000,000 per
annum,; (iii) for the seventh to tenth year. RMB25,000,000
per annum, if applicable, calculated on a pro-rated basis
for less than an entire calendar year. Neither the Group
nor CCMGT has the right to unilaterally terminate the
Trademark Licensing Agreement. For the six months ended
30 June 2022, the Group has recorded licensing revenue of
RMB7,500,000 (2021: RMB1,250,000) pursuant to the license
agreement, which was included in “other revenue” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The amounts represent interest income in relation to
advances to joint ventures.

Central China New Life, an entity controlled by Mr. Wu Po
Sum, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company,
together with its subsidiaries, provides various types
of services for the Group, mainly including, real estate
agency service, consultation and management service,
intelligent technology service, membership maintenance and
management service, gift package procurement service and
other miscellaneous services.

In connection with the gift package procurement service,
Central China New Life also purchased hotel and other
miscellaneous services from the Group.

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture, an entity controlled by
Mr. Wu Po Sum, together with its subsidiaries, provides
engineering services for the Group.

Shanghai Meihua Yuezhang Investment Company _E/EFE#E
SR EFRAF, an entity jointly controlled by a close
family member of the ultimate controlling shareholder,
Central China New Life, CCMGT and Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture, together with their subsidiaries, leases

properties from the Group.

(CZREE UL Y UN T | )

25 HKBAWT 225 (48)

miat -

(@)

202158130 AEBE P FRE
Epp ) (TE%)) REEEmEsT
A ek (TEZsraltfegl) o 4
REARR A L BT F - RIBHF AR
%o ANEEB2021F58318 (FRE
¥ HEE) BRUTARNUEEA
B ()EH=F : 85 AK#15,000,000
T (NFAEEFE BEARE
20,000,0007% ; (i)H7EEFE10E | &
F AR #825,000,00070 (MNEH) - %
TREEEFELLAFE - AEEHF
REESHEEEFERIEEEHT
ek o I E 2022568308 LE/XEA -
AEBRBHFOIBERSTITURA
AR #7,500,0007T (20214 : AR
1,250,0007%) » Z WA Bt AR a1
mRMTE MU AL -

ZEHEEEERE
WA e

EREBRNFE

BERED (—HHASADRKER
RRBRERATEZEFNER) ERH
MELE HAEBERMHESERS
TERERMEARERS HAKRE
ERBT SEMERT E8HEK
BERS Y RBERE U E thE
AR ©

B RIBRBM S > BERLEFET
A 7 &= [ B B A S e HLth A TR AR

SRR CEZEFNERRAREEE
B EM B AR m A EEEHIRER
%%0

HERIERRR - BEREE PR
BERRREEURZERTNNE
AEREH N EHFEERINER LS
FELSKERRABDBEAERAE
ELS



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 f5HA4N DL R 51 HR)

26 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 26 KB AN

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group
disposed several equity interests of certain entities. After
the completion of the disposal, these entities were no
longer subsidiaries of the Group and certain of these
subsidiaries became joint ventures or associates of the

Group.

The disposals of subsidiaries had the following combined

effect on the financial position:

BE2022F6H30BLEAEA  AEH
HEETERZETRE-RNEES
BERmE 2EBECTIBRATER
ZHBRB  EFTZEWEBRTER
REEEZOERERBMEART -

WEABIHEEEHHHERTEEU
= ;

RMB’'000

AREFT

Property, plant and equipment ME-BEMEE 1,647,398
Intangible assets mEEE 58,706
Investment property KEYE 268,000
Inventories and other contract costs FEREMEHAME 3,412,775
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A FE W R IE 546,015
Tax recoverable B EEGRE 72,695
Deposits and prepayments & &AM RIE 77,559
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE E 50,078
Restricted bank deposits ZREIFRITER 55,397
Cash and cash equivalents HEMIREEEY 145,533
Bank loans RITREM (847,870)
Other loan HEmR (15,588)
Trade and other payables B 5 kEMEMRIE (1,502,625)
Lease liabilities HEAaE’ (202,448)
Contract liabilities =Ep=NE (2,530,314)
Taxation payable FES R IE (11,729)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIBE (R (4,026)
Non-controlling interests JEER = (67,732)
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I 5 i 3R B BT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

26 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

27
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RMB’000
ARBET T
Net assets BEEFE 1,151,824
Net loss on disposals of subsidiaries (note 4) HEWBABEEFEE (M:F4) (474,955)
676,869

Satisfied by: HUTEEEN
Cash B& 585,466
Interests receivable FEUL #E &= 33,354
Interests in associates REE DN ER 58,049
676,869
Total consideration received BWRELEEE 585,466
Total cash and cash equivalents disposed FTHERE MRS S EYAREE (145,533)
Net cash inflow BERAFEE 439,933

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

On 21 July 2022, the Company, Joy Bright Investment
Limited (“Joy Bright”) and Youdao Development
International (Hong Kong) Limited, a directly wholly
owned subsidiary of Henan Tongsheng Zhiye Co., Ltd.
CimRREEAMRAT) entered into a share sale
and purchase agreement, the details of which were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
21 July 2022 as published on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

On 8 August 2022, the Company has redeemed
outstanding senior notes due in 2022 upon maturity
with principal amount of US$500,000,000 and
nominal interest rate of 6.875% at the predetermined
redemption price.

(@)
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